11.96-01 II-A-215

EPA 550/9-82-343

AIRPORT COMMUNITY SOUNDPROOFING AND RELOCATION STUDY

United States. Environmental Protection Ageney-



۰.

بالم منظم و شراع منطق و شور بالم JULY 1982

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY OFFICE OF NOISE ABATEMENT AND CONTROL WASHINGTON D.C. 20460

REPORT D	OCUMENTATION 1. REPORT NO.	2.	3. Recipient's Accession No.
م	AGE EPA 550/9-82-343	<u>l</u>	<u></u>
4. Titls and S	ustille Airport Community Soundproofing		5. Report Date
	and Relocation Study	•	July 1982
			6.
7. Author(s)	Richard Chais and John Kirkland		8. Performing Organization Rept. No.
9. Performing	Organization Name and Address		10. Project/Task/Work Unit No.
ORI			12 Contract/Di an Anus/Di Ma
Silv	er Spring, Maryland. 20910		In COA CO OI CIEA
	• • •		10 EPA 08-01-0154
			(G)
12. Sponsoring	g Organization Name and Address		13. Type of Report & Period Covered
U.S.	Environmental Protection Adency		
Offi	ce of Noise Abatement and Control		Einal
Wash	ington, D.C. 20460		CON /ONAC
15. Supplemen	ntary Notes	<u></u>	
	For many airports, a residual population	n imported by ai	rcraft noise will
	For many airports, a residual population remain after benefits from all other no This report considers residential sound means of achieving airport noise/land us of issues involved in such a program is a program a methodolgy is developed and affecting noise exposure. A forecast is airport noise exposure that will occur of The study also examines the noise exposi- operations, flight procedure, and restr Soundproofing and relocation costs are of	n imported by ai ise control mean proofing and rel se compatibility given. To quan used to integra s presented of c during the balan ure benefit of n ictions on popul developed for fo	rcraft noise will s have been realized. ocation programs as a v. A detailed discussion tify the cost of such te parameters hanges in air carrier ce of this century. oise abatement flight ation encroachment. ur airports.
7. Dosument /	For many airports, a residual population remain after benefits from all other no This report considers residential sound means of achieving airport noise/land us of issues involved in such a program is a program a methodolgy is developed and affecting noise exposure. A forecast is airport noise exposure that will occur of the study also examines the noise exposi- operations, flight procedure, and restr Soundproofing and relocation costs are of Amelysis & Descriptors	n imported by ai ise control mean proofing and rel se compatibility given. To quan used to integra presented of c during the balan ure benefit of n ictions on popul developed for fo	rcraft noise will s have been realized. ocation programs as a v. A detailed discussion tify the cost of such te parameters thanges in air carrier ce of this century. oise abatement flight ation encroachment. ur airports.
7. Document / b. identifier	For many airports, a residual population remain after benefits from all other no This report considers residential sound means of achieving airport noise/land us of issues involved in such a program is a program a methodolgy is developed and affecting noise exposure. A forecast is airport noise exposure that will occur of the study also examines the noise exposi- operations, flight procedure, and restr Soundproofing and relocation costs are of Aircraft Noise, Airport Noise, Aviation Uniform Relocation Act, Relocation, Sour Noise Impact, Noise Abatement Flight Pro Procedures. m/Open-Ended Terms	n imported by ai ise control mean proofing and rel se compatibility given. To quan used to integra s presented of c during the balan ure benefit of n ictions on popul developed for fo	Compatibility, ort Nuisance, Abatement Airport
7. Document / b. identifier c. COBATI P b. Availability :	For many airports, a residual population remain after benefits from all other no This report considers residential sound means of achieving airport noise/land us of issues involved in such a program is a program a methodolgy is developed and affecting noise exposure. A forecast is airport noise exposure that will occur of the study also examines the noise exposi- operations, flight procedure, and restr Soundproofing and relocation costs are of Aircraft Noise, Airport Noise, Aviation Uniform Relocation Act, Relocation, Sour Noise Impact, Noise Abatement Flight Pro Procedures. */Open-Ended Terms	n imported by ai ise control mean proofing and rel se compatibility given. To quan used to integra s presented of c during the balan ure benefit of n ictions on popul developed for fo Noise, Land-Use hdproofing, Airp predures, Noise	Compatibility, ort Nuisance, Abatement Airport
7. Dosument / b. identifier c. COBATL F b. Availability :	For many airports, a residual population remain after benefits from all other no This report considers residential sound means of achieving airport noise/land us of issues involved in such a program is a program a methodolgy is developed and affecting noise exposure. A forecast is airport noise exposure that will occur of the study also examines the noise exposi- operations, flight procedure, and restr Soundproofing and relocation costs are of Aircraft Noise, Airport Noise, Aviation Uniform Relocation Act, Relocation, Sour Noise Impact, Noise Abatement Flight Pro Procedures. */Open-Ended Terms	n imported by ai ise control mean proofing and rel se compatibility given. To quan used to integra s presented of c during the balan ire benefit of n ictions on popul developed for fo Noise, Land-Use hoproofing, Airp becedures, Noise	Compatibility, ort Nuisance, Abatement Airport
7. Dosument / b. identifier c. COSATI F b. Aveilebility :	For many airports, a residual population remain after benefits from all other no This report considers residential sound means of achieving airport noise/land us of issues involved in such a program is a program a methodolgy is developed and affecting noise exposure. A forecast is airport noise exposure that will occur of the study also examines the noise exposi- operations, flight procedure, and restr Soundproofing and relocation costs are of Management Noise, Airport Noise, Aviation Uniform Relocation Act, Relocation, Sour Noise Impact, Noise Abatement Flight Pro Procedures. m/Open-Ended Terms	imported by ai ise control mean proofing and rel se compatibility given. To quan used to integra s presented of c during the balan ictions on popul developed for fo Noise, Land-Use hdproofing, Airp breedures, Noise	Compatibility, ort Nuisance, Abatement Airport

-

JULY 1982

いいたい、 おおおいち 大口がたる 豊かなにに ながたりをためた シンはが行った た

All and a state of the state of

ORI Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

AIRPORT COMMUNITY SOUNDPROOFING AND RELOCATION STUDY

PREPARED BY:

RICHARD CHAIS LARRY RONK JOHN KIRKLAND JAMES SELWOOD

PREPARED UNDER: CONTRACT No. 68-01-6154

FOR THE:

OFFICE OF NOISE ABATEMENT AND CONTROL U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, D.C. 20460

This report has been approved for general availability. The contents of this report reflect the views of the contractor, who is responsible for the data presented herein. This report does not necessarily represent the official views or policy of EPA. This report does not constitute a standard, specification or regulation.

PERMISSION IS GRANTED TO REPRODUCE THIS MATERIAL WITHOUT FURTHER CLEARANCE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

•

1997 - P. H. H. H. H.

1

1.1.1.1

÷ i

.

	Page
1.	INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY
	PART 150 PLANNING PROGRAM
	SELECTION OF REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORTS 1-4
	PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT
	Fleet Forecasts
	Noise Source Regulation 1-6
	Demographic Forecasts 1-7
	 Representative Airport Program Costing 1-7
	Noise Abatement Flight Procedures 1-7
	SCENARIO DESCRIPTION AND PROGRAM IMPACT
	Land Use Control 1-8
	Alternative Flight Procedures 1-9
	Priority Runways and Curved Flight Tracks 1-9
	Expanded Soundproofing Zone
	RELOCATION COSTING PROCEDURE

÷ -

.

1

.

العقب أنزا

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Cont)

.

1

.

And the second and the first of the second states and the second s

II.	SOUNDPROOFING/RELOCATION PROGRAM ISSUE ANALYSIS	2-1
	FRAME OF REFERENCE	2-2
	Specific Objectives of the Program	2-2 2-10
	SOUNDPROOFING CONSIDERATIONS	2-10
	Installation Specifications	2-10 2-12 2-13 2-14 2-16 2-19 2-20
	RELOCATION CONSIDERATIONS	2-21
	Maintenance of Relocation Area	2-22 2-24 2-26 2-28
	ELIGIBILITY	2-30
	Program Coverage	2-31
	Schools and Hospitals	2-37
	FUNDING	2-38
	Noise Fees	2-38
	REFERENCE	2-47
III.	REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT DEVELOPMENT METHODOLOGY	3-1
	BACKGROUND.	3-1
	DATA BASES	3-2

Page

• 1

منعر المعادلة ما أوراد الأروار الأروار والمروار والمرارك والمرارك والمراجع والمحافظ والمراجع والمحافظ والمراجع

TABLE	0F	CONTENTS	(Cont)	
			. .	-

Page

Categories of Airports. 3-3 Input Data Required to Run the FAA's INM. 3-7 Input Data Required to Run the ALAMO. 3-1 PRIORITY RUNWAY AND FLIGHT TRACK STRATEGY. 3-1 Priority Runways. 3-1 Curved Flight Tracks. 3-1 AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS 3-1 AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS 3-1 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT CATEGORY SELECTION. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Representive to Changes. 3-2 Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-2 REFERENCES 3-3 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-4 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-14 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences.	Data Required to Define Distinct	
Input Data Required to Run the FAA's INM.3-7Input Data Required to Run the ALAMO.3-1PRIORITY RUNWAY AND FLIGHT TRACK STRATEGY.3-1Priority Runways.3-1Curved Flight Tracks.3-1AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS3-1REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT CATEGORY SELECTION.3-2Qualitative Considerations.3-2Qualitative Considerations.3-2Representivity to Changes.3-2References3-2References3-2References3-2References3-2References3-2References3-3PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT.4-1GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS.4-2FLEET FORECASTS.4-3National Air Carrier Fleet Composition.4-3Representative Airport Fleet Projections.4-8Noise Source Regulation4-9DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS.4-13Updating Procedure4-15REFRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING4-22Rports Population4-22Number of Residences.4-22Area4-23	Categories of Airports	3-3
Input Data Required to Run the ALAMO.3-1PRIORITY RUNWAY AND FLIGHT TRACK STRATEGY.3-1Priority Runways.3-1Curved Flight Tracks.3-1AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS3-1REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT CATEGORY SELECTION.3-2Qualitative Considerations.3-2Qualitative Considerations.3-2Sensitivity to Changes.3-2REPRETERMINATION3-2REFERENCES3-33PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT.4-1GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS.4-2FLEET FORECASTS.4-3National Air Carrier Fleet Composition.4-3Noise Source Regulation4-9DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS.4-13Updating Procedure Framework.4-13Updating Procedure.4-15REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING4-22Roorts Population4-22Number of Residences.4-22Area4-22Area4-22	Input Data Required to Run the FAA's INM	3-7
PRIORITY RUNWAY AND FLIGHT TRACK STRATEGY. 3-1 Priority Runways. 3-1 Curved Flight Tracks. 3-1 AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS 3-1 AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS 3-1 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT CATEGORY SELECTION. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Sensitivity to Changes. 3-2 REFORT DETERMINATION 3-20 Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-3 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area. 4-22	Input Data Required to Run the ALAMO	3-14
Priority Runways. 3-1 Curved Flight Tracks. 3-1 AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS 3-1 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT CATEGORY SELECTION. 3-2 Internal Consistency. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Representative Airport Changes. 3-2 Report DETERMINATION 3-2 Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-3 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-4 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-14 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22	PRIORITY RUNWAY AND FLIGHT TRACK STRATEGY	3-14
Curved Flight Tracks. 3-1 AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS 3-1 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT CATEGORY SELECTION. 3-2 Internal Consistency. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Representive Considerations. 3-2 Report Determination 3-2 Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-3 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-4 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure IPROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area 4-22	Priority Runways	3-15
AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS 3-1 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT CATEGORY SELECTION. 3-2 Internal Consistency. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Report DETERMINATION 3-2 Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-2 REFERENCES 3-33 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-4 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area 4-23	Curved Flight Tracks	3-17
REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT CATEGORY SELECTION. 3-2 Internal Consistency. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Qualitative Considerations. 3-2 Sensitivity to Changes. 3-2 RPORT DETERMINATION 3-2 Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-2 REFERENCES 3-33 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-4 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area 4-22	AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS	3-17
Internal Consistency.3-22Qualitative Considerations.3-22Sensitivity to Changes.3-22RPORT DETERMINATION3-24Methodology Used to Select Rports3-22REFERENCES3-33PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT.4-1GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS.4-2FLEET FORECASTS.4-3National Air Carrier Fleet Composition.4-3Representative Airport Fleet Projections.4-4JUpdating Procedure Framework.4-13Updating Procedure.4-15REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING4-22Number of Residences.4-22Area.4-23	REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT CATEGORY SELECTION	3-22
Qualitative Considerations. 3-22 Sensitivity to Changes. 3-24 RPORT DETERMINATION 3-24 Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-24 Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-24 REFERENCES 3-33 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-8 Noise Source Regulation 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area. 4-22	Internal Consistency	3-23
Sensitivity to Changes. 3-20 RPORT DETERMINATION 3-20 Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-21 REFERENCES 3-33 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-4 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area 4-22	Qualitative Considerations	3-23
RPORT DETERMINATION 3-20 Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-22 REFERENCES 3-33 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-4 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area. 4-22	Sensitivity to Changes	3-26
Methodology Used to Select Rports 3-22 REFERENCES 3-33 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-8 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area 4-22	RPORT DETERMINATION	3-26
REFERENCES 3-33 PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-8 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area 4-22	Methodology Used to Select Rports	3-27
PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-8 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area. 4-22	OFFEDENCES .	2 22
PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT. 4-1 GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-8 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area. 4-22		3-33
GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS. 4-2 FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-8 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area. 4-23	PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT	4-1
FLEET FORECASTS. 4-3 National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-8 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area 4-23	GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS.	4-2
National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-8 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area. 4-23	FLEET FORECASTS.	4-3
National Air Carrier Fleet Composition. 4-3 Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-8 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area. 4-23		
Representative Airport Fleet Projections. 4-8 Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area. 4-23	National Air Carrier Fleet Composition	4-3
Noise Source Regulation 4-9 DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING PROCEDURE. 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area. 4-23	Representative Airport Fleet Projections	4-8
DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS. 4-13 Updating Procedure Framework. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-13 Updating Procedure. 4-15 REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING PROCEDURE. 4-22 Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences. 4-22 Area 4-23	Noise Source Regulation	4-9
Updating Procedure Framework	DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS	4-13
Updating Procedure	Updating Procedure Framework	4-13
REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING PROCEDURE. Rports Population Number of Residences. Area	Updating Procedure	4-15
Reports Population 4-22 Number of Residences 4-22	DEDDECENTATIVE ATODADE ODACDAM COSTINC	
Rports Population 4-22 Number of Residences 4-22 Area 4-23	PROCEDURE	4-22
Number of Residences	Rports Population	4-22
Area. 4-23	Number of Residences	1-22
The sector	Area	1-23

111

all farmer

IV.

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Cont)

.

۷.

VI.

🖓 da gala nomen en de la com

.............

Page

Program Cos	-Soundproofing
Regional Sc	Indproofing Costs 4-24
Program Cos	-Relocation 4-28
NATIONAL NOISE E	POSURE ESTIMATION PROCEDURE 4-35
NOISE ABATEMENT	LIGHT PROCEDURES 4-36
Takeoff Pro	edures Description 4-36
Procedures	o Assess Noise Abatement Impacts 4-39
REFERENCES	
SCENARIO DESCRIPTION	ND PROGRAM IMPACT 5-1
SCENARIO DESCRIP	ION
BASELINE AIR CAR	IER FLEET 5-2
LAND USE CONTROL	IMPLICATIONS 5-5
ALTERNATIVE FLIG	T PROCEDURES 5-9
EXPANDED SOUNDPR	OFING ZONE
Soundproofi	g Zone Selection 5-13
Program Exp	sure Implication 5-15
AIRPORT PROCEDUR	5 5-17
SUMMARY	
RELOCATION COSTING PRO	CEDURE 6-1
UNIFORM RELOCATIO	ACT REQUIREMENTS 6-1
ALLOWABLE COSTS.	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
DEFINITION OF REL	CATION CASES 6-4
Renters Who	Remain Renters 6-4
Renters Who	ecome Homeowners 6-8
Rental Prope	ty To Be Purchased 6-8
Owner-Occupi	d Units To Be Purchased 6-8
CASE FREQUENCIES	6-9
Renters Who	emain Renters 6-9

iv

.

•

......

فحاصر حصورك والراب والمراجعة

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Cont)

A STATE OF THE OWNER OF THE OWNER

Renters Who Become Homeowners. 6-11 Rental Property To Be Purchased. 6-11 Owner-Occupied Units To Be Purchased 6-11 6-11 6-12 6-12 6-12 6-13 6-13 Purchase Price of Owner-Occupied Units 6-14 Purchase Price of Rental Property. 6-15 6-16 6-21 Relocation Element Cost Summary. 6-22 6-24 APPENDIX A: SOUNDPROOFING/RELOCATION PROGRAM EXPOSURE SUMMARIES . . A-1

Page

LIST OF TABLES

<u>Table</u>		Page
2.1	Parties Involved In Planning/Implementing a Soundproofing/Relocation Program	2-4
2.2	Land Use Compatibility With Yearly Day-Night Average Sound Levels	2-33
2.3	Effect On Redevelopment of Including or Excluding Noise Sensitive and Noise Tolerant Manufacturing Activities	2-36
2.4	Noise Charge Per Aircraft Operation Miami RPORT	2-43
2.5	Representative Landing Fee (dollars) (U.S. Airports)	2-45
3.1	Example of Tabular Presentation of INM Results	3-8
3.2	Example of the ALAMO Report Output	3-11
3.3	Aircraft Classification for INM Runs	3-13
3.4	Example Groups of Variables Resulting from Factor Analysis	3-20
3,5	Rank of Airport Categories on the Six Variables Used in the Final Classification	3-25
3.6	RPORT Determination Analysis: Airport Category A	3-29
3.7	Distribution of Airports by RPORT Category	3-31
4.1	Baseline 1979 Aircraft Fleet	4-4
4.2	Air Carrier Fleet Composition by Seat Capacity	4-6
4.3	Air Carrier Fleet Capacity by Seat Capacity	4-7

A STATE OF THE STA

vì

LIST OF TABLES (Cont)

The second second

Page

;

.

.

ļ

4.4	Annual Departures by RPORT Category	4-10
4.5	FAR-36 Noise Levels by Stage	4-12
4.6	Consumer Price Indexes for Residential Rent and Home Purchase, 1965-1979	4-18
4.7	Average Residential Soundproofing Costs: Single- Family Dwellings (1979 Dollars)	4-29
4.8	Average Residential Soundproofing Costs: Multiple- Family Dwellings (1979 Dollars)	4-30
4.9	Average Residential Soundproofing Costs: Multi- Family Units For All Regions (1979 Dollars)	4-31
4.10	Distribution of Airports by Soundproofing Region	4-32
4.11	Average Residential Soundproofing Costs by RPORT Category (1979 Dollars) ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	4-33
5.1	National Noise Exposure Scenario Summary	5-3
5.2	National Noise Exposure Associated With Changes in Aircraft Fleet Mix and Operations	5-4
5.3	Relationship of Impacted Area to Population (Mimai Airport)	5-6
5.4	Relationship of Impacted Area to Population (San Antonio Airport)	5-7
5.5	Area Impact of Alternative Flight Procedures La Guardia Airport (Square Miles)	5-10
5.6	Population Impact of Alternative Flight Procedures	5-12
5.7	Comparison of Primary and Expanded Soundproofing Zones (Miami Airport)	5-16
5.8	Population Comparison of Straight Versus Curved Flight Tracks and Priority Runways (1979)	5-19
5.9	Comparison of Abatement Alternatives (Fleet Year 2000)	5-22
6.1	Assistance and Cost Reimbursement Items Under Relocation Act	6-5
6.2	Cost Elements and Relocation Costs	6-7
6.3	Actual and Estimated Mortage Interest Rates for the Years 1955-1979	6-18
6.4	Relocation Costs per Case (\$1979): Miami, FL Baseline 1979 Operations	6-23

vti

والمتحدية مروور وهرمر والمراسي بالمستمير والر

LIST OF FIGURES

<u>Figure</u>		Page
3.1	Example of Graphic Presentation of INM Results	3-9
3.2	Grouping of Airports in Five Categories	3-24
4.1	Sample Demographic Profile Report	4-14
4.2	Regions of Differing Construction Practices	4-26
4.3	Takeoff Flight Procedure Profiles	4-38
6.1	DEMCOM Output Report: Miami Rport with 1979 Demographics	6-10
6.2	Scatter Diagram of Mortgage Interest Rates and	6-19

Ì

1

and the first and the same shares of a same share with a same share a market and the same same

viit

مستعلقه والعموسية والأرواري وروار الأورية عنيار التارين الروارية والمراجع المروار المتناه المتح

ويعدد بالمتوعود ومواجع والمواج والهور

I. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

The concern with airport noise has led to a number of major steps to reduce exposure levels. Tangible benefits of these steps are evident today. Quieter aircraft are now operating in the U.S. fleet, adjusted flight procedures result in some aircraft being flown in a quieter manner, some airport operations are geared to appropriate flight tracks and airport proprietors and local officials are carrying out noise abatement actions at particular airports. The result of these actions has been a reduction in the number of people exposed to high levels of noise from aircraft operations. Further reductions in exposure will occur during the balance of this century as the federal noise regulations which have been promulgated become fully effective.

÷

Lunge at 1816 merene

For many airports, a residual population impacted by aircraft noise will remain after benefits from all other noise control means have been realized. This report considers a residential soundproofing and relocation program as a means of achieving airport noise/land use compatibility. A detailed discussion of issues involved in such a program is given. To quantify the cost of such a program a methodology is developed and used to integrate parameters affecting noise exposure. A forecast is presented of changes in air carrier airport noise exposure that will occur during the balance of this century. This study also examines noise exposure benefits of noise abatement flight operations, flight procedures, and restrictions on

1-1

population encroachment. Soundproofing and relocation costs are developed for four airports.

PART 150 PLANNING PROGRAM

A major new program was recently established to promote a planning program to develop compatibility of aircraft noise with land-use near airports. Specifically, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) on January 6, 1981, established interim regulations prescribing requirements for airport operators who choose to develop an airport noise compatibility planning program. This program, codified at 14 CFR Part 150 (hereinafter Part 150), establishes a single system of measuring airport noise and a single system for determining the exposure of individuals to aircraft noise. A standardized airport noise compatibility planning procedure also is prescribed. The compatibility program seeks to obtain compatibility of aircraft operations with community activities within acceptable safety, economic and environmental parameters. This may be accomplished by reducing existing incompatible land use in the vicinity of a particular airport and by preventing the introduction of new incompatible land uses in the future.

Each airport program developed under Part 150 must address noise control alternatives, subject to the constraint that the alternative strategy be appropriate to a specific airport, including the following:

- Preferential runway system
- Construction of barriers and acoustical shielding, including the soundproofing of public buildings
- Restrictions on the use of the airport by any type or class of aircraft based on aircraft noise characteristics (such as curfews, noise abatement takeoff approach procedures and landing fees)
- Flight procedures to reduce noise exposure
- Acquisition of land and interest therein to insure airport compatible land uses.

میں ہوتے ہوئے اور دورین کو میں اور کو ایک وجو ہوا۔

The noise control alternatives no doubt will help improve the noise environment at airports and, more specifically, generate added confidence that the estimates of people exposed will be reduced in future years. However, the noise "problem" and its related effects on air carrier operations will continue until compatibility is achieved. Statistics that demonstrate reduced noise exposure 20 years hence may provide little solace to people who currently, or in the near to mid-term, will live in areas of unacceptably high airport noise levels. But some encouragement may be derived from a land use change program if the most heavily impacted areas are treated in the near future.

The Part 150 planning process requires that incompatibilities be identified and plans be included for their elimination. This could include, after reasonable noise control alternatives are implemented, a program of soundproofing and relocating private residences exposed to airport noise levels exceeding L_{dn} 65 dB and 75 dB, respectively. The objective of Part 150 is to establish a maximum <u>outdoor</u> level of L_{dn} 65 dB to assure compatibility with Federal criterion. When L_{dn} 65 dB cannot be reasonably met, soundproofing could provide an acceptable level of indoor noise and, if outdoor noise cannot be reduced to L_{dn} 75 dB, the opportunity to be relocated.

Soundproofing and relocation are certainly not new noise control measures. Both have been employed in selected circumstances in the United States and abroad. However, there is extant relatively minimal experience with a comprehensive relocation/soundproofing program, particularly in conjunction with broader, more comprehensive airport noise control planning processes.

분고

A Marielle un destauronen

With this in mind, subsequent chapters of this report analyze issues (Chapter II) and present background material (Chapters III and IV) relevant to the planning for and implementation of a comprehensive airport soundproofing/relocation program. To place the various issues and background material in a proper perspective, scenarios concerning the level of noise exposure and attendant program implementation costs are developed. Guiding the development of these scenarios are four general assumptions:

1-3

- All private residences within specified noise contours (i.e., L_{dn} 65 to 75 dB and, as an option L_{dn} 75 to 80 dB) will be candidates for soundproofing assistance
- All private residences within other higher specified noise contours (i.e., greater than L_{dn} 75 dB (or L_{dn} 80 dB) will be candidates for relocation assistance
- The program should apply to residences exposed to specified noise contours projected for the year 2000
- The concept of representative airports, or "Reports" will be used to assess program issues and costs which might be faced by airports interested in this program.

SELECTION OF REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORTS

The second s

The concept of and procedure to select representative airports, or Rports, are described in Chapter III. In general, each representative airport represents a distinct category of airports specified in terms of area and population exposed to adverse noise levels. Airports included in the Rport selection process were limited in the first instance to those with scheduled commercial jet operations (398 airports). The universe was further restricted by excluding airports with less than four air carrier jet operations per day, as less than four flights would not constitute a noise problem. Factor analysis was then used to group the remaining 326 airports into six distinct Rport categories. Within each category, a single airport was sought which, on average, represented the noise exposure characteristics of all other airports in that category. However, for two of the categories no such representative airport could be found and representative airports were not selected. The remaining four categories for which Rports were selected contained 129 airports and accounted for 62 percent of the 1979 national departures.*

The four representative airports used in this study are presented in the table which follows.

*Excluded airports are generally characterized as having relatively few daily jet operations and minimal to no adverse population noise exposure.

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Study Rports				
Rpot <u>Category</u>	Number of Airports	Selected Roorts		
A B C D Total	13 1 44 71 129	Miami, FL (MIA) La Guardia, NY (LGA) San Antonio, TX (SAT) Sioux Falls, SD (FSD)		

Much of the analysis in this report of noise abatement and control options use the forecast experience of the four Rports as a basis and is further predicated on generalized distribution of runway operations and flight tracks. However, calculations are also made for 10 airports to determine the noise implications of preferential runways and curved flight tracks. The procedure employed to generate a comparison of a base case assuming even distribution of runway and straight flight tracks with a system of priority runways and curved flight tracks, also is presented in Chapter III.

PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT

Chapter IV of this study describes the procedures to develop the scenarios from which program impacts and issues are assessed. Principal elements of the procedures involve air carrier fleet forecasts, demographic forecasts, representative airport program costing, alternative flight procedures, optimized ground tracks and controls on residential encroachment.

Fleet Forecasts

مون کی و از ا<mark>مروز کرد از اور از ا</mark>

Since the projected mix and number of aircraft operations will have a direct bearing on the level of airport community noise exposure, the fleet mix was developed for base year 1979 and for forecast years 1990 and 2000. Aircraft growth was based on a moderate 1.7 percent annual growth rate in total aircraft. However, reference to the number of aircraft understates the expected rapid expansion in commercial air service. As new aircraft types are introduced into fleet service, they will replace older

1-5

types which not only are noisier and less fuel efficient, but also have lower seat capacities. As shown in the table below, between 1979 and 2000 the number of commercial aircraft is estimated to increase 42 percent and the average seats per aircraft to increase 104 percent. The larger capacity aircraft require many fewer annual departures to handle any given passenger demand level, thus explaining the decrease in departures in year 2000.* However, the larger aircraft will be noisier than smaller aircraft using the same technology.

	Air	Carrier Fleet Forecasts			
		<u>Baseline</u>	Fare	Forecast Year	
		<u>1979</u>	<u>1990</u>	2000	
Number of Aircraft		2,384	2,870	3,397	
Average No. of Seats Aircraft	per	156	231	319	
Number of Departures Thousands	in	4,606	4,777	4,394	

Noise Source Regulation

and a second second

Noise levels for existing and new production aircraft are governed by Federal Aviation Administration Regulations (FAR 36). Compliance depends upon when the aircraft are designed and produced, with the existing noise limits designated as Stage 1, 2 or 3. The changing mix of aircraft will evolve toward meeting the Stage 3 level. For example, 21 percent of the air carrier fleet met Stage 2 at the beginning of 1977 and 48 percent at the beginning of 1981. About 86 percent of the U.S. fleet is expected to meet Stage 2 by 1985.

The airport-community noise benefits of the more advanced control requirements for Stage 3 aircraft will not accrue for some time due to the 20 year or so lead time required for new noise technology aircraft to make up enough of the air carrier fleet to make a noticeable impact on community noise exposure. Thus, the generation of aircraft using the Stage

*Total seat capacity increases from 372,000 to 1979 to 1,082,000 in year 2000, a 191 percent increase over the 21 year period.

فيحيرون المراجع والمحاج والمواجع والمراجع والمناجع والمتعاط والمتعاد والمحاج والمحاج والمحاج والمحاج والمحاج والمحاج

3 technology developed in the late 1970's will not begin to fully impact exposed communities until the late 1990's.

Demographic Forecasts

Housing, population and other demographic patterns around airport communities have not remained static in the past, nor are they expected to remain so in the future. For example, many communities (defined by noise contour bands) experienced different growth rates for population and residential units during the 1970's. These and other changes are captured by updating selected demographic variables based primarily on growth rates for population and households. Exposure parameters selected for detailed analysis in this technical supplement are: (1) population; (2) area; (3) residences; and (4) program cost.

Representative Airport Program Costing

Estimates of the four previously mentioned exposure parameters were developed from data for selected noise contour bands. Estimates a population, area and residences were obtained from computer program outputs described in Chapters III and IV. Representative airport program costing was performed by multiplying the average cost of soundproofing or relocating a residential unit by the number of those units in a given noise contour band.

Noise Abatement Flight Procedures

÷.,

....

All and the second s

Aircraft are capable of using a variety of safe departure procedures, each of which generates different noise levels and different airportenvirons noise exposure patterns. The three take-off procedures assessed in this study are:

- AC 92-39 (recommended by the FAA in Advisory Circular 91-39)
- ALPA/NWA Max (recommended by the Airline Pilots Association, or ALPA)
- ALPA/NWA Min (also recommended by the ALPA).

SCENARIO DESCRIPTION AND PROGRAM IMPACT

An airport proprietor has available a number of options and perspectives from which to address the airport-community noise exposure problem. These are assessed in Chapter V by means of scenarios which are developed by varying the factors which strongly influence the extent of airport noise exposure. A measure of the effectiveness of noise abatement options is gained through a comparison of exposure levels associated with various fleet forecast years.

Land Use Control

د این از مسلم معلم می می وارد این می وارد می وارد این این وارد این این این می وارد می این از می وارد می وارد م مراجع

A major problem faced by many air carrier airports is the encroachment of non-compatible residential development into areas adversely impacted by airport noise. Benefits which might otherwise accrue from noise abatement actions often are more than offset by population or residential growth. The table below summarizes the benefits of aggressive noise compatibility planning and implementation on noise exposure levels associated with the year 2000 air carrier operations.

	Year 2000 Population (in thousands) by Lee dB Contour		
Land Use Control Implications	65 to 75	75+	<u>Total</u>
Unrestricted Population Growth	3,489	139	3,629
No Growth After 1990	2,766	119	2,885
No Growth After 1979	2,185	101	2,287

A measure of the opportunity lost by not instituting effective land use control is that absent such control, normal population growth between years 1979 and 2000 would expose an additional 1.4 million people to adverse noise levels. The exposure numbers presented here and elsewhere in Chapter V are derived from a data base (see Chapter III) which does not consider <u>actual</u> airport runways and flight tracks. Accordingly, while presentation of actual values tends to provide a point of reference to quantify the airport noise problem, more importance is the relative change in these values as various noise control options are considered. For example, land use control in years 1979 and 1990 would reduce population exposure by 63 and 79 percent, respertively.

1-8

and the second second second second second

Alternative Flight Procedures

Unlike the abatement measures summarized earlier, use of alternative flight procedures does not offer the opportunity for generally uniform improvements in airport-environs noise levels. Rather, they tend to shift the locus and intensity of impacts between areas. For example, when considering the current fleet mix, the ALPA/NWA procedures may reduce total noise exposure as measured by people exposed to levels greater than L_{dn} 65 dB but they also increase exposure levels in areas closer to the airport already experiencing the most intense impact. The converse is the case for the AC 91-39 takeoff procedures. By the year 2000 with higher by-pass ratio engines the later procedure reduces exposure levels in absolute as well as relative terms, as shown in the table below.

An airline working with the airport proprietor might consider employing the ALPA/NWA Min or Max procedure for low bypass ratio engined aircraft and the AC 92-39 procedure for aircraft with high bypass ratio engines.

Priority Runways and Curved Flight Tracks

÷.

1 1111 - 111 - 111 - 111 - 111 - 111

The baseline computer runs employed for this report were made using an equal distribution of operations on all runways suitable for these operations. However, special studies have been made to estimate the reduction in number of people impacted by aircraft noise and of cost of soundproofing and relocation when aircraft use runways and ground tracks which route them over the most sparsely populated areas. The priority rating of runways and ground tracks is based on population within the L_{dn} 65 dB contour. The first priority runway is used at all times when the wind limits permit, i.e., all head winds and up to 5 knots tail winds and up to 15 knots cross winds. The second takes what it can of that remaining time with the same limits. Turns are made in flight to avoid populated areas at FAA limited bank angles when the aircraft has achieved the FAA prescribed altitude and airspeed.

In general, significant reductions in noise impact can be made most airports using these procedures. This report presents data for (1) straight in and out ground tracks and equal distributions of operations on appropriate runways and (2) priority runways and curved ground tracks.

1-9

It was not possible within the scope of this study to obtain the actual runway distributions of operations and the actual ground tracks used at each airport studies. Thus, the benefits shown are from an arbitrary baseline to an optimum operating procedure.

ويرد المربقة ويسترجين ويسترجين والمناب والمناب والمنابعة والمنابعة والمنابعة والمنابعة والمنابعة		والمحمد الشرائية ومستشمين المرامية المرحوة فرمينا فيتهدهم
	Population Exposed to Greater than L _{dn} 65 dB (1,000's)	
<u>Fleet Year</u>	Straight	Curved
1979	7,553	3,014
1990	4,376	1,756
2000	2,287	834

A comparison of the effect of alternative airport procedures is provided below:

The above estimates are on based on the forecast experience of the four Rports. To forecast experience of an enlarged group of 10 airports indicates a potential population noise exposure of 50 percent when considering straight flight tracks and even runway distribution with curved flight tracks and priority runways.

Expanded Soundproofing Zone

Section Solution of Long and Section and and and and and section for many summer and

. It is recognized that the pattern for the development of compatibility in a practical manner may differ from one airport to the next. The noise exposure level (L_{dn}) at which the strategy for developing compatibility shifts from soundproofing to relocation, for example, may be moved upward for apartment houses, or houses with essentially no outside grounds with gardens and play or living space, as compared with houses with such outdoor amenities. Thus, in some areas with essentially no indoor living, people can be protected from outdoor L_{dn} levels of 80 or higher if their residences are soundproofed to indoor levels of L_{dn} 45 dB or lower.

There is also the practical problem of overall cost for the development of compatibility. If the area from which residents are being removed is to be converted to industrial or some other compatible use, there

1-10

والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمعاد المراجع

is the question of the amouth of land vacated per dollar cost to the project. The land area vacated by apartment dwellers or dense housing areas is small compared with single family houses with lawns, gardens, etc. For this reason and because the per unit cost of soundproofing of apartment is less than for single family houses, the cost of relocating familiers from apartments compared with soundproofing is much higher than for single-family houses with grounds.

There is also the important question of the desires of the people living in high noise exposure areas. In some cases, segments of the exposed population are seriously disturbed by the noise but initially don't want to relocate. However, after their neighbors have moved they don't want to stay in a partially deserted area. The development of practical plans to meet the needs of each local situation must be made at the local level with all elements of the local situation involved in the planning. For the above reasons the costs for soundproofing and relocation have been determined for:

Class A -- Soundproofing increases of L_{dn} 65 to 75 dB

and removal in areas above L_{dn} 75 dB

Case B -- Soundproofing in areas of L_{dn} 65 to 80 dB

and removal in areas above L_{dn} 80 dB.

The costs are developed for both A and B recognizing that at some airports (such as LaGuardia) the soundproofing may be used even above L_{dn} 80 dB and at other airports there may be no soundproofing above 75 L_{dn} . Of course, by the year 2000 there will be many airports in the categories studied where there will be no areas above L_{dn} 75 dB.

RELOCATION COSTING PROCEDURES

これのコイン・レビレンの開始者に対象のの情報の認定の利益の のためな 感得をはないない 時間の

معتقله ومرافقه بأواتية

Chapter VI describes the framework from which the relocation costs were developed. The type of assistance which may be offered in a given relocation/soundproofing program is modeled after the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of

1-11

1970. The framework begins with an overview of the applicability and requirements of this Act. Next a set of relocation cases is defined and a procedure to estimate the frequency of each case is set forth. Finally, costs associated with each program element covered by the cases are presented.

وموارد المراوية والمستساط والمستحد المراوية والال

للمحاد ويتعرجوا والمرادي

and the second second

II. SOUNDPROOFING/RELOCATION PROGRAM ISSUE ANALYSIS

The airport soundproofing/relocation program discussed in this study is proposed to complete the achievement of compatibility after all practical airport noise abatement actions have been taken under FAA's Part 150 (Reference 1). Affected residents are defined in this chapter as those living in the areas which will be exposed to airport noise levels in excess of L_{dn} 65 dB in the year 2000. (See Chapter V for quantification of affected population and measures which can minimize airport-community noise exposure.)

The carrying out of this objective implies that fairly detailed plans must be developed specific to each airport. However, before such detailed planning can commence, it is necessary to consider a number of issues which may have a substantial impact on the content of the plan finally produced and on the probability of its successful implementation.

3

Some of the issues that could be raised by the attempt to plan and implement a soundproofing/relocation program are discussed in this chapter. The list is fairly complete, since if an issue is not raised, it may prove to be an unexpected impediment to program implementation at a later date. The discussion of each issue of necessity is general, since specific airports are not considered at this time.

2-1

It is not sufficient simply to raise issues, but to suggest alternative means for resolving the issues. The means selected will be an element of the plan for a particular airport. Means for the resolution of issues must be equitable for all parties involved. They must also be politically, economically and socially realistic.

FRAME OF REFERENCE

It is necessary to consider the general framework within which the program will be conducted. Once the issues associated with the establishment of this framework have been brought to light, a great many subsidiary issues will become apparent. Therefore the initial set of issues are those dealing with specific program objectives, the principal protagonists in program planning and implementation, the legal framework within which they must act and the relationship of the goals of the program to the goals of the airport and the community in general.

Having established this general framework, it was possible to proceed to subsidiary issues in succeeding sections.

Specific Objectives of the Program

The Federal government has undertaken a series of steps to provide relief to residents in the vicinity of airports who are subjected to excessive noise. In promulgating Part 150, the FAA has taken an important step in this direction by providing standardized procedures for individual airports to develop a plan for noise alleviation. This Federal effort has been amplified to include a program for residential soundproofing in sound-impacted areas or relocation of residents where soundproofing is not feasible. This soundproofing/relocation study is a step toward achieving the general objective of providing noise relief to affected residents.

This general objective must be translated into a series of specific objectives that will guide implementation by an airport of the soundproofing/relocation program. These specific objectives must recognize

the legitimate needs and responsibilities of the various parties concerned with an airport's operation and development. Implementation of the program will be expedited, as pointed out in the FAA Advisory Circular entitled <u>Airport Land Use Compatibility Planning</u> (Reference 2), if all such parties (see Table 2.1) are involved in its planning. To determine how these parties can contribute to the planning process, it is useful to examine their specific objectives. The essential element of the planning process then is the integration and reconciliation of the frequently conflicting objectives of the individual parties.

In all cases, an interested party is assumed to have the particular objective of minimizing his contribution to the cost of the program. Thus, the objectives discussed below exist in addition to the cost minimization objective. Cost as an issue is discussed in a following section.

The airport proprietor (i.e. a city, county, authority, board, etc.), as operator and owner, provides air service to the community at a profit, or within a specific budget. The proprieter will be primarily responsible for planning and implementing the program, with the assistance of various agencies and governmental bodies. Exercise of this responsibility must be within an established legal framework with respect to noise. Generally, the proprietor has the power to select an airport site, acquire land, promote compatible land use, and control airport design, scheduling and operations. Limitations on this power are subject to constitutional prohibitions against the creation of an undue burden on interstate and foreign commerce, unjust discrimination and interference with activities pre-empted by the Federal government (i.e., FAA responsibility over safety and airspace management). This pivotal role of the airport proprietor derives in part from the mentioned responsibility. Perhaps equally important, however, is the fact that the proprietor is closest to the noise problem, with the best understanding of both local conditions, needs and desires, and the requirements of air carriers and others that use the airport.

ľ

A States

TABLE 2.1 PARTIES INVOLVED IN PLANNING/ IMPLEMENTING A SOUNDPROOFING/RELOCATION PROGRAM

- 1. Airport Proprietor
- 2. Federal Aviation Administration
 - General National Aviation System Responsibilities (e.g., development activities, funding source)
- 3. Airport Users
 - Customers
 - Traveling Public (business and leisure)
 - Cargo Shippers
 - Aircraft Operators
 - Air Carrier Airlines
 - Cargo Carriers
 - Military
 - General Aviation
 - Airline Pilots
- 4. Airport Communities
 - Private Sector (business)
 - . Affected Residents
 - Non-Affected Residents
- 5. Governmental Bodies
 - Municipal (local)
 - County
 - State

The shall share with the state of the street of the state of the state

- Regional
- 6. Other Airports (competitors)

مستقال مان مان مان من المان الم

The specific objectives of the proprietor in undertaking a soundproofing/relocation program are:

- To avoid noise damage claims
- To provide space and climate conducive to airport expansion
- To avoid curfews and capacity limitations.

The first objective is probably the most significant from his viewpoint. Courts have held that noise impacted homeowners can legally collect for damages (and collect again after a stated period). Perhaps just as important, the program is envisioned as a major tool which, when used in conjunction with other noise abatement options, would improve the image of the airport in the community. This in turn would help reduce community objections to airport expansion activities whether they involved physical expansion of runways or actions enabling an expanded number of aircraft departures. Obtaining space for expansion can be used as a rationale for undertaking the program. Expansion is needed to allow airport traffic to grow with the community. Finally, the imposition of curfews and similar measures obviously would lessen the airport's income and provision of service and thus is to be avoided if possible.

The FAA in its role of providing air traffic control and management of navigable airspace has the objectives of insuring the expeditious flow of traffic, and insuring the safety of passengers and persons on the ground. The basic national policies intended to guide FAA include:

- Regulation of air commerce in a manner to best promote its development and safety
- Promotion, encouragement and development of civil aeronautics
- Control of navigable airspace and the regulation of both civil and military operations therein in the interest of safety and efficiency
- Development and operation of a common system of air traffic control and navigation.

2-5

Ξ.

ţ.

Aside from operational changes to reduce noise, a soundproofing/ relocation program as such may have an impact on the traffic control function of FAA by improving take-off and landing safety. This improved safety results from the removing of residences from under the landing approach path. As monitors of Airport Development Aid Program (ADAP) funds, FAA has the objective of dispensing these funds where they contribute the most to the development of the National Aviation System. The FAA also provides financial and technical assistance to airport proprietors for noise reduction planning and abatement activities, consistent with the highest standards of safety.

The airport's customers (i.e., the traveling public and cargo shippers) have an interest in airport noise control as it may affect the service offered. One suspects the average passenger almost never thinks of the noise his travel may impose on persons on the ground. Airport users (i.e., air carrier airlines, cargo carriers, etc.), however, are most certainly aware of the noise problem. Their objective is to continue to operate at their current level, or to increase their level of operations. Recognizing that a severe noise problem may curtail their operations, they may support a soundproofing/relocation program. In fact, a program may be more acceptable than alternatives such as curfews and capacity limitations. Both customers and users would have a heightened interest in the program if required to fund the effort in whole or in part. Realization of the economic impact would depend on the funding level and mechanism employed as well as the relative allocation among the groups. For example, landing fees would directly impact the airlines, who could pass all or portions of the costs to customers in terms of higher ticket and air cargo rates. Interest among customers would not be as great here as under a funding mechanism calling for specific noise charges as a line item on each ticket or tariff.

The objective of airline pilots is to approach, land, take-off and climb-out with the minimum difficulty and in the safest manner. Special flight procedures are felt by some to hinder attainment of these objectives. Hence, if a choice had to be made, airline pilots may prefer a soundproofing/ relocation program over special flight procedures. It is recognized that the FAA has ulitmate authority over safety; alternative flight procedures which .

2-6

. Bill and the second states of the second adversely affect air safety would not be allowed. However, the opinions of airline pilots are well integrated into the FAA decision-making process and their cooperation or even encouragement would no doubt increase a proposed program's acceptability.

When discussing the objectives of airport communities, it is necessary to distinguish residents and businesses as a group and local governmental bodies as another group. Businesses, or the private sector in general, as represented by Chambers of Commerce or similar groups, are almost always in favor of high levels of operations at the local airport, and also in favor of physical expansion when there is a need to increase this level. They feel that good air service is good for local business. They tend to oppose curfews, capacity limitations and similar measures. To gain land for expansion and to eliminate the need for curfews, etc. they probably would favor a program if necessary.

Residents in affected areas logically might be expected to be in favor of a soundproofing/relocation program. However, experience with voluntary relocation programs has shown that only limited acceptance of relocation offers can be expected. Relocation thus becomes a desirable option when it is someone else's home or neighborhood to be affected. Strong neighborhood ties are the apparent cause of this reluctance. Hence the objective of many affected residents is to "stay put". Note that opposition from residents in non-affected areas can be expected if they are asked to pay part of the program's cost through increased taxes.

28

TY CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OF A

At the municipal or county government level, a large number of possible objectives can be listed. These can be discussed roughly in order of activity required. At the lowest level, the objective could be to maintain neighborhood integrity. Massive relocation could, in effect, destroy a neighborhood with a strong religious or ethnic component. This would lead to opposition to carrying out the relocation part of the program (but perhaps not the soundproofing part). Relocation also could possibly disrupt the carefully balanced local political structure that may exist in some cities. In these cases, the objective of the local government might be to oppose the relocation part of the program. Relocation, and its attendent erosion of local tax bases, would certainly meet with strong governmental opposition.

2-7

In some cases, there may be a few residences in a noise impacted region that are scattered among industries or other buildings. Since these industrial land uses are probably noise compatible, a relocation program would involve only removing the isolated residential structures. Thus, if the objective is to make the area noise compatible, the relocation effort involved would be minimal.

Aside from these somewhat minimum effort programs, a local government may have objectives that require complete clearance of the impacted area. Such objectives might be:

- To obtain land for public facilities such as parks, sewage treatment plants, water resevoirs, etc.
- To provide land for airport expansion
- To redevelop the area for a higher use to increase the tax base
- To eliminate a blighted area to reduce crime and the cost of public services.

These objectives are not mutually exclusive. Further, whether acquired land can be adapted to so-called higher uses remains questionable, particularly if it is to be accomplished on a major scale.

The described objectives of the local government reflect the broad responsibilities over the "body politic". However, an action that might favor the community at large may lead to resistance from specific individuals or businesses. Furthermore, residents in a high noise impact area are often extremely vocal in expressing their annoyance to community leaders, but at the same time (as mentioned) may just as vehemently oppose relocation. A careful balancing of individual versus community-wide interests is thus necessary.

The objective of state governments in undertaking a program in some cases are similar to those of local governments. In addition, certain unique objectives apply at the state level. The similar objectives include:

2-8

فالأحيا المعرفي والالتي والمراجع والمتصوف الأراج المراجع والمستخد الم

Relative to a francisco for the second and the second for the second and the second second second and the second of the

- To provide better air service
- To avoid curfews, etc.
- To obtain land for public facilities
- To provide for airport expansion
- To redevelop the area
- To eliminate a blighted area.

The unique objectives applicable to the state case are:

- To undertake programs that local governments will not undertake for social or political reasons
- To assure a better financial base for the program
- To ease the local tax burden.

これが、1999年には、1999年に

and the second s

The first of these recognizes that a state government can overcome local opposition to a program stalled by local government objections of the type mentioned above. The second and third recognize that the financial resources of the state are greater than those of local governments.

A regional group of states may undertake a program with the objective of accomplishing a needed program where the impacted area lies in more than one state (e.g., Cincinnati, Philadelphia, Omaha). Also, such a grouping may be desirable to assure that fees or taxes in one state to pay for the program do not divert traffic to an airport in a neighboring state.

As with any major new program, initial opposition may in large measure be based on fears which later prove to be unfounded. The relative costs and benefits, on an individual and collective basis, may not be readily apparent. Effective planning and early and open community involvement is thus considered a necessary program element.

Role of Noise Measurement

Applicability of, and eligibility for, a relocation/soundproofing program is most reasonably determined on the basis of noise exposure levels. Consequently, the definition of contours of constant noise exposure has great importance. The primary tool for this process is the use of airport noise prediction programs. The accuracy of noise exposure calculation procedures is, therefore, of concern.

Assuming that contour lines are precisely and accurately determined, using procedures specified in the FAA regulation Part 150, the larger question -- as to how this information is to be applied -- should be considered. The precise contour lines can not be implemented as rigorous boundaries for program action since they would split communities, neighborhoods, blocks and even individual structures and dwellings. Thus, the contours would have to be flexibly applied with a considerable degree of judgement. This judgement must be primarily based upon land use planning and economic and political considerations. Consequently, the technical benefits derived from measurements are unnecessary since approximations provided by computer prediction programs are a sufficient basis for program decision-making. These considerations are addressed below.

SOUNDPROOFING CONSIDERATIONS

There are a number of issues specifically related to the soundproofing component of the program. In general these issues can be classified as technical and programmatic. Technical issues involve standards, specifications, quality control, ventilation and similar items. Programmatic issues involve mainly legal and cost questions. Obtaining a waiver of damage liability in exchange for soundproofing is an example of a legal issue. The question of cost sharing by residents is an example of a cost issue.

Installation Specifications

โรกร้างกรณีที่มีสัญภัณฑ์ที่มีที่มีการเป็นสร้างกรณี 10 มรูโลกรได้แน่นองและเพลมีก็การแก่กันแก่ก็ได้แก่กระบบและและ

The specific building modifications required to achieve an acceptable interior noise level (defined as L_{din} 45 dB) are strongly influenced by the

2-10

منبع بر الد المعني الدينية الدين

and a second second

construction characteristics of the dwelling and its state of repair. The construction patterns vary considerably among geographic regions, but are fairly uniform within a region. Chapter IV of this report describes eleven regions with fairly homogeneous construction patterns and presents average costs of soundproofing average dwelling units within each region. Although soundproofing modifications will vary, they can generally be grouped by outdoor noise level as follows:

- L_{dn} 65 to 70 dB -- sealing leaks and improving weatherstripping
- L_{dn} 70 to 75 dB -- as above, plus installation of storm windows, storm doors and roof insulation (where necessary)
- L_{dn} 75 to 80 dB -- as above, plus modifying walls to add insulation (where necessary).

The application of these controls will vary with individual rooms depending upon room features (number and types of doors) as well as the building construction (type of exterior walls and roof) and condition (presence and condition of weatherstripping) such that room noise reductions of 0-5 dB, 5-10 dB and 10-15 dB, respectively for the exposure ranges mentioned above, will be required.

A catalogue of specific noise control modifications can be developed which defines the required features to achieve the desired interior noise levels as a function of the exterior noise level and building element type and its construction and condition. These modifications could be selected when a given noise path is determined to require increased attenuation. Contractor hiring and cost estimation can be performed after identifying the numbers of each specific modification required to soundproof some given number of buildings.

A special problem could occur when the dwelling is fairly rundown. Here there are likely to be many cracks and gaps (some quite large) which provide leakage paths for exterior noise. An extensive degree of

2-11

and a start for factor and and a start of the start of th

refurbishment would be needed to achieve the desired sound attenuation. Furthermore, the dwelling is likely to have numerous building code violations which would have to be corrected before a construction permit is granted. All of these factors add substantially to soundproofing costs, which may in certain instances be prohibitively expensive. In such cases, consideration might be given to relocating the affected residents as an option to soundproofing. A blighted neighborhood would contain many such dwellings and piecemeal relocation would generate problems, discussed elsewhere, associated with a checkerboard housing pattern. A further option would thus be the wholesale relocation of the blighted neighborhood.

Provision For Variations

Balanta a anti-a a

Considerable variations are likely to exist from dwelling to dwelling with respect to not only construction features and structural condition but also the presence of owner modifications such as enclosed porches and large dormers. Three general approaches exist which can be used in specifying the soundproofing modifications:

- Uniform installation of treatments regardless of dwelling-specific characteristics
- Installation of treatments based upon visual inspection of each dwelling
- Installation of treatments based upon acoustical testing of each dwelling (with or without retesting after installation).

The first approach described would be the simplest to implement. However, some dwellings may be given unnecessary noise controls and others insufficient features. The last approach conforms to the more standard noise control engineering practice of identifying and quantifying noise paths. It defines precisely the features which will be required for each dwelling. However, this approach has the disadvantage of considerable testing cost. The second approach is perhaps a compromise between the others. It provides some degree of "tuning" of the features to each structure with moderate program

2-12

المحاولة والمراجع والمحاولة والمحاولة فيتحدث والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والم

cost for inspection. However, this approach would not be sensitive to the isolation of small sound leaks which could substantially nullify the benefits of high noise reduction installations. Visual inspection -- perhaps in conjunction with some sort of post-modification performance verification -- is probably the most cost-effective procedure. (See discussion below on soundproofing performance verification.)

Another type of variance could arise when the homeowner or landlord wants to take advantage of a proposed soundproofing effort to install special features to enhance the enjoyment of the unit and increase its value. If walls are to be modified, for example, upgraded electrical wiring or special wall finishes may be desirable. Another example would be upgraded duct work as a predicate for installation of a central air conditioning system.

Consideration of owner-suggested variances could increase program costs, especially if it prevented adoption of the uniform installation technique. On the other hand, it would help encourage voluntary or even active program participation.

Ventilation and Air Conditioning Options

The exchange of air inside buildings with fresh outside air is a natural and necessary process. It is necessary in order to rid buildings of air with a high density of carbon dioxide and to clear the air of contaminates (such as smoke from cigarettes, cooking and heating by-products and dust). Current residential buildings in the U.S. typically have air infiltration rates of one to two air changes per hour. The minimum specified by the American Society of Heating, Refrigeration and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) is one air change per hour - with greater exchange rates in areas of heavy smoking.

From an enery conservation point of view, reduced air infiltration rates are desirable. Homes have been built with rates as low as 1/4 air change per hour although at low infiltration rates problems of aesthetics and health become significant. The problems include increased odors from human

2-13

Salar Salar Salar Salar
activities, increased humidity and increased chemical and radiation contamination, such as formaldehyde and radon gas emitted from the building materials (particularly, masonary products). The radon gas, RN 222, is a decay product released naturally by trace amounts of uranium in rock and soil. The amount that accumulates indoors is minimized as air is rapidly interchanged with fresh outdoors air. Radon-rich air in uranium mines is known to cause lung cancer and is considered by some to be a potentially significant hazard in energy efficient homes (Reference 3). In the context of the sound-proofing program, provision of ventilation would be required although the absolute quantity of ventilation should be the minimum necessary for comfort, aesthetics and health.

The most effective way to ventilate soundproofed homes is by means of a central forced-air system. The use of central air ventilation can be readily adapted to central air conditioning. The cost for the addition of air conditioning in soundproofed dwellings has been estimated as \$400 to \$2600 for single family buildings and approximately \$400 per residence for multiple family structures (Reference 4). Where central air conditioning does not already exist in a structure to be soundproofed, its installation could be at the building owner's option and cost. The use of central air conditioning does have the benefit of eliminating the need for acoustically baffling any existing window or wall mounted air conditioner units. In these cases credits could be provided building owners for any savings obtained from not baffling room air conditioner units.

Soundproofing Performance Verification

After soundproofing treatments have been installed, verification measurements are desirable to evaluate the effectiveness of soundproofing modifications installed after only a visual inspection, to identify performance deficiencies resulting from incompetent or dishonest contracting, or to evaluate the adequacy of installed treatments where dwelling-specific features such as enclosed porches and large dormers exist. These performance verifications might take any of three forms:

Indoor aircraft noise monitoring

2-14

The Destriction of the Art and Annahum and Annahum

- Exterior building wall noise reduction measurement
- Acoustic leak location.

Interior noise monitoring has the benefit of evaluating the actual performance of the structure in obtaining the desired performance goal. However, its implementation includes many of the difficulties involved in outdoor noise monitoring, such as those related to sampling (see previous discussion on the role of noise measurement). Indoor measurement presents additional difficulties related to the selection of appropriate measurement locations within the dwelling and the effects of background noise generated within the dwelling (which could often exceed that due to exterior noise sources). Furthermore, indoor monitoring would intrude upon the occupants of occupied dwellings although this may be minimized by measuring a very limited sample. (This limited sample might consist of perhaps 10-15 flyovers, preferably of noisier aircraft types, recorded as single event, sound exposure levels.)

The evaluation of building wall noise reduction performance involves the measurement of sound levels both inside and outside the building structure. It eliminates the difficulties related to sampling and background noise which exist for monitoring. However, existing and draft measurement procedures developed by the International Standard Organization (ISO) and the American Society for Testing and Material (ASTM) are not widely used and have poor repeatability. Significant problems related to their implementation arise from the variable effects of sound absorption in the interior rooms as well as the location of interior room measurement positions. Additional practical problems involve the locating of test noise sources (primarily loudspeakers) and exterior microphones -- particularly with respect to high-rise structures. Actual aircraft flyovers could be used as the source of noise but measurement errors would be caused by uncertaintities in the exterior noise measurement and variability of aircraft flight tracks. The aircraft flyover approach has been implemented in a well controlled situation with good correlation with the loudspeaker noise source measurements (Reference 5).

Leak detection has the advantage of simplicity of both procedure and required equipment and has even been proposed as a means of detecting air infiltration openings in buildings for energy conservation. Equipment required for such a verification method would involve simple noise sources such as an inexpensive loud speaker and cassette recorder, and elementary sound detecting devices such as a plastic headset of the kind provided to airline passengers. This method would be unaffected by many of the drawbacks of the above procedures but does not provide a quantitative evaluation of structural performance and is not suitable for evaluating performance deficiencies of large distributed surfaces such as windows.

All performance verification methods discussed above have inherent disadvantages. Consequently, the requirement for a post-modification verification is best met by the use of visual inspections as a primary quality control technique. Where deficiencies are suspected but not visually determinable, limited interior noise monitoring and/or leak detection techniques are most suitable.

Noise Liability Waiver

With What I have been broken that the set of the set of the set

One goal of the soundproofing program is to improve the welfare of the affected population. Another goal is to protect the airport against the threat of adverse noise suits. To better understand the implications of airport noise litigation, it is useful to briefly relate the general theories under which noise damages have been assessed.

<u>Noise Liability Theories</u>. The first, and most traditionally applied, theory is inverse condemnation which is broadly defined as the deprivation of private property by a party or agency without just compensation. The basis for the theory is that a property owner suffers a diminution in the market value of the property as a direct result of airport noise which causes a substantial interference with the use and enjoyment of the property. Loss of use and enjoyment of land would constitute a taking of property and, absent compensation, would violate the fifth amendment of the Constitution. Application of this general theory varies significantly among jurisdictions. Whether a particular party would be able to sustain the burden of proof of

2-16

And and a second se

showing that airport noise was the proximate cause of reduced property values would depend on the facts involved. The same holds true for the amount of damages which might be awarded. It is important to note, however, that such awards generally would be lump-sum payments and apply exclusively to property damages.

Damages under the nuisance theory, however, may entail continuing liability on the part of the airport proprietor. Generally defined, nuisance is that which annoys or disturbs one in possession of his property, rendering its ordinary use or occupation physically uncomfortable to him. Nuisance cases arise as a matter of "equity" wherein the courts balance the interests involved. This allows distinguishing between disturbances which are inconsequential, those that are offensive only to hypersensitive individuals and those that affect ordinary comfort as defined by the customs of a community. Thus, a nuisance may exist even in situations where some people are hardened to the discomfort but a normal person would still be adversely affected. Furthermore, nuisance need not arise out of a negligent act or conduct. Sometimes an activity is a nuisance per se, without regard to the care with which it is conducted or the circumstances under which it exists.

Upon a finding of a nuisance, the courts may grant a single award for past and prospective damages, or entertain successive actions for a continuing nuisance. A case in point is <u>Greater Westchester Homeowners</u> v. <u>City of Los</u> <u>Angeles</u>, 8 ERC 1406 (Cal. Super. Ct. 1975), aff'd, <u>Greater Westchester</u> <u>Homeowners Association</u> v. <u>City of Los Angeles</u>, 14 ERC 1074 (Cal. Sup. Ct. 1979). The lower court noted that the decisional law "...indicates that a loss to the homeowners of the use and enjoyment of his home which results in his annoyance, discomfort, mental or emotional distress is a compensable injury insofar as ...nuisance is concerned". Specifically rejected by the court was the arguement that affected residents assumed the risk of noise by moving into the area after the institution of jet operations at the airport. Accordingly, 41 plaintiffs were awarded damages in the aggregate sum of \$86,000 plus attorney fees.* Since airport noise was expected to continue to

1.1

*The plaintiffs also brought suit for property damages under the theory of inverse condemnation, award for which was not the subject of the referenced litigation.

be a nuisance, the court further noted that "the awards to those plaintiffs will not constitute a bar to future claims by these plaintiffs against the defendent city for the continuing emotional and mental distress caused by the continuing nuisance of noise from jet aircraft."

The court went on to note several alternatives which the city might consider in relieving itself from continuing nuisance liability. These are:

- Reduction in the jet aircraft decibel level
- Acquisition of homes through voluntary agreements or through direct condemnation actions
- Soundproofing of residential properties.

Although not binding on the disposition of the case, the court "unequivocally and unhestitantly" suggested that homeowners ought not to be forced to live in a situation of being subjected to jet aircraft noise nuisance and then periodically suing the city of Los Angeles for damages.

<u>Liability Waiver</u>. Given the distinction between inverse condemnation (lump-sum, property damage) and nuisance (continuing, personal injury damages), the utility of a liability waiver may be addressed under each theory seriatum.

The measure of damage of inverse condemnation is the reduction in property values attributable to airport noise. A general measure is provided by Nelson (Reference 6) whose studies suggested a noise discount of about 0.5 percent per decibel. A home in a L_{dn} 65 to 70 dB contour would thus experience a 2.5 percent reduction in property value.* Similarly, the

*Assumes a comparison of a dwelling situated in the mid-range of a L_{dn} 65 to 70 dB contour as compared to the mid-range of a L_{dn} 60 to 65 dB contour which would be outside the soundproofing zone. This measure excludes any appreciation in property values associated with the desirability of proximity to the airport proper - often a major employment center (see Chapter VI discussion of relocation replacement cost).

2-18

have been and the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state

والمراجع المتحجين فالمراجع

I.

reduction would be 5.0 and 7.5 percent for homes in the L_{dn} 70 to 75 and 75 to 80 dB contours, respectively. Assuming an average home value of \$40,000, this is a property value reduction (and therefore potential liability) of \$1,000 to \$3,000. These values compare favorably with the cost of soundproofing most homes in most soundproofing regions. It could thus forcefully be argued that acceptance of soundproofing assistance would substantially militate liability as home values would appreciate by an amount closely offsetting any depreciation attributable to excess airport noise.

Notwithstanding this point, a waiver would still be desirable since it would (1) preclude with greater certainty damage assessments and (2) obviate the need for often expensive attorneys fees associated with defending inverse condemnation suits.

In the case of nuisance, there is no systemmatic measure of potential liability because of the more speculative nature of personal injury damages. Impacts such as interference with person-to-person communication, ability to enjoy the use of the out-of-doors portion of property, sleep and the enjoyment of television are difficult to quantify and are extremely dependent upon localized conditions. Adjustments to property values related to soundproofing improvements would not obviate potential nuisance awards for past or future personal injury. Furthermore, while soundproofing would assure a quiet environment within a home, the use and enjoyment of the out-of-doors would remain impacted.

Liability waivers would thus be highly desirable, if not essential, as a pre-condition to offering soundproofing assistance.

Period of Acceptance

÷

人口な 特別の 古人間 読む いわざわ

「おおけい」というないというというという。

مسعمد المرسعة المراجع المغالية

In some of the types of soundproofing efforts, the resident would have the option of accepting or rejecting an offer to soundproofing his residence. If he rejects the offer, he may or may not be required to give a noise easement to the implementing agency. In either case, a question is raised concerning the program's duration, or how long should the offer to soundproof remain open? This queston implies that a fixed acceptance period should be established beyond which the program is terminated.

In some soundproofing efforts, the resident may be required to accept the soundproofing offer, or if the offer is rejected, required to meet other conditions, such as assigning a noise easement to the agency. In these mandatory situations, the acceptance period can be limited to the time required to contract for soundproofing or the time required to complete legal and financial arrangements. In other soundproofing variations, the resident may have his home soundproofed if he chooses, or decline soundproofing with or without conditions. In these voluntary cases, the acceptance time would presumably be longer than in the previous cases, since it seems more compatible with the character of a voluntary program to give the resident more time to come to a decision.

However, from the point of view of the agency, an extended, or indefinite, acceptance period has two disadvantages. First, the longer the period, the longer the agency must maintain offices, counseling centers, staffs, etc. to support the program. This continuing expense is not justified after some initial period, since the rate of acceptance of offers will probably decrease greatly with time.

Long term financing of the program probably is easier to arrange if a good estimate of the number of acceptances can be obtained early in the program. A short acceptance period allows this to be done.

A program of soundproofing between the L_{dn} 65 to 75 dB contour is envisioned here as part of a larger program which includes relocation inside of the L_{dn} 75 dB contour. The best time periods for the relocation and soundproofing elements of the program may not coincide. Although some partial reduction in administrative staff, etc. can take place at an intermediate point in the program, some attempt to match the time periods is probably most efficient.

Cost Sharing

والمراجع والمراجع والمتحد والمتحد والمراجع والمراجع والمحمد وال

A comparison of average unit soundproofing costs and property value diminution related to airport-generated noise was presented earlier. (A more detailed presentation of soundproofing costs by structure type, outdoor sound level and geographic region is provided in Chapter IV.) Although comparing

2-20

متعاصفها والمحدوقة والتوريب والتكرين المتارية وتشهرت التركيبين ومحموه والمحا

favorably with soundproofing costs in most instances, the diminution value is generally less. The argument thus could be made that the property owner would receive value in excess of potential damages and he should be required to contribute to the cost of soundproofing, perhaps equal to the cost differential.

However, such a stance considers only the inverse condemnation theory and not potential continuing liability associated with the nuisance theory. While quantification of damages under the latter theory are not possible in this study, it can be assumed that when added to inverse condemnation, total damage would at least equal or more probably exceed soundproofing costs. Since a liability waiver is considered an essential prerequisite for acceptance of a soundproofing offer, a cost sharing requirement might well' thwart implementation of the program.

Two expections to this general proposition are extant. First, if the program is to accept or even actively encourage owner-specified variations which exceed nominal soundproofing requirements, a degree of cost sharing would be in order. The second exception relates to the desire to obtain maximum voluntary program participation. Here, a nominal cost sharing of 5 to 10 percent of total costs may help make the property owner, feel he has a stake in improving the quality of life in his residence and in the general neighborhood. Nominal cost sharing could also be added only after a stated time to encourage early, voluntary program participation.

RELOCATION CONSIDERATIONS

12.1 - 11.1 (gang)

Ś

1, 1, 5, 1, 2

and the second s

There are a number of issues related specifically to relocation. These issues arise mainly from the specific objectives of the program. For example, if redevelopment is contemplated within some time period to obtain land for industrial purposes, then relocation would have to be mandatory in order to insure that the land involved would in fact be available for redevelopment. Achievement of some of the other specific objectives discussed previously only require voluntary relocation. Many relocation issues derive from this basic issue of whether relocation is mandatory or voluntary. An example is the availability of affordable housing for relocated residents. Other relocation specific issues are logical boundaries for the relocation area, maintenance of neighborhoods, etc.

Maintenance of Relocation Area

Balantin for the state of the s

Special care must be taken by the relocation agency to prevent crime and vandalism in the relocation area. For any relocation effort, there would be a short or long period during which homes and rental properties are being purchased and demolished producing either complete or partial clearance of the area. Thus, during this interregnum, the area has a checkerboard pattern of structures and vacant lots. Unless certain steps are taken, this pattern may lead to undesirable effects on those residents who elect not to relocate.

The undersirable effects include occupation of vacant buildings by squatters, vandalism, arson, vermin, trash and, as a consequence of these, sharply reduced property values. Other consequences of a piece-meal decrease in the general population of the area might include a loss of neighborhood stores and possibly a drastic cutback of city services.

When buildings are purchased, but not immediately demolished, squatters almost invariably move in. Consequently, confrontations frequently take place when they must be evicted by the authorities. Squatters are a problem in any land clearance project; airport relocation programs would not be an exception. The problem initially appeared at Logan, and has appeared in France at Orly and Charles de Gaulle airports (Reference 7).

The obvious solution to the squatter problem is prompt demolition of acquired buildings. This means the agency must negotiate a demolition contract which provides for "on-call" wrecking services. Even if squatters do not move in, empty buildings are prime targets for vandalism and arson. These are dangerous to remaining residents, as well as to the local police and fire departments. Again prompt demolition is the solution.

In addition to actual building demolition, it is necessary to clear the area completely including foundations, and to eliminate possible nesting locations for vermin. Furthermore, in the Logan case, it has been found necessary to do something active with the vacant property in addition to the passive actions of demolition and clearance. If this is not done, vacant

2-22

والمراجع والمتعاد والمتعاد والمعاط

lots become trash depositories or parking lots for abandoned autos. Actions that can be taken include landscaping, use by neighbors for vegetable gardens and use as playgrounds. These actions have been part of the Logan Airport program in the Neptune Road area.

A problem for which there is no simple solution is the loss of neighborhood grocery stores, restaurants, dry cleaners, etc. Obviously, as the population in the area declines, such local businesses find it unprofitable to remain. This loss of neighborhood amenities is particularly hard on elderly residents, the ones likely not to relocate. Porhaps a local "shopping bus" to other business centers is a possible solution.

Another closely related problem without a simple solution is the closing of local churches and synogogues. A public sector solution probably is not possible.

Another problem is the possible loss of a neighborhood school because of decreasing enrollment. Here, an adjustment in school bus routes is obviously possible.

The seriousness of these last three problems is highly dependent on local conditions. For example, in the Logan-Neptune Road project, the area is effectively isolated from the remainder of East Boston by a rapid transit line and a freeway. This isolation made neighborhood stores, schools, etc. particularly valuable to the residents. In contrast, in the Seattle-Tacoma project (Reference 8), no such obvious physical boundary exists. Neighborhood facilities simply move slightly further away, but are still accessible. Also, the two areas probably differ in the basic character of their populations. That is, the Neptune Road population is probably more neighborhood oriented than the Seattle-Tacoma population, and thus more dependent on neighborhood facilities.

In summary, the relocation agency must be ready to undertake certain actions if the quality of life is to be maintained in the impacted area for those residents who chose to remain, or who have not yet relocated. Prompt

化化化物 计算行算机 化和中心系列

The second second

2-23

والمراجع والمراجع والمنافعة والمتحافظ والمراجع المراجع

demolition of acquired buildings and development for constructive neighborhood use of vacant lots are primary actions. In addition, the agency must be prepared to enhance (and pay for) city services such as police and fire protection, school transportation, trash collection, etc.

Relocation Boundaries

A certain amount of flexibility is required in setting the boundaries of a relocation area. Aside from the basic analytical and operational errors involved in determining the L_{dn} 75 + dB contour, there are a number of social and developmental reasons for considering some expansion or contraction of the region bounded by the nominal relocation contour.

There are also basic economic implications of a flexibile relocation boundary. Costs associated with the soundproofing/relocation program components are presented in Chapter IV. For the 1979 fleet year, average soundproofing unit costs are \$1,920, compared to \$33,370 per relocated residence.* A boundary which expands the nominal or primary relocation zone would substantially increase total program cost. A contracted or mixed relocation zone would of course offer substantial cost savings. A measure of the cost impacts of flexibile boundaries may be gained in reference to the Chapter V discussion of an expanded soundproofing zone. Note that this section assumes the relocation zone is defined by the L_{dn} 75 dB or greater noise contour; as an option, the zone might also be defined by the L_{dn} 80 dB or greater noise contour.

The non-economic reasons why it may be necessary to have flexibility in setting the boundaries for a relocation region include:

 The need to set the boundary of a relocation region at a well-defined physical feature

*Costs are based on total residential units, which may range from a single unit home to individual units in an apartment building containing 50 or more rental units.

And the second second

- The need to consider the social character of the regions on both sides of a boundary
- The need to provide land for industrial projects, civic projects or airport expansion
- The desire to eliminate blighted areas.

These four reasons are discussed in the following sections.

<u>Well-Defined Features as Boundaries.</u> The boundaries of a region should be established as closely as possible to major readily-identifiable physical features. Examples of such features are main streets, freeways, railroads and waterways. This would avoid situations such as occur under German relocation law, where boundaries can pass through houses. Since modifying the German law is difficult, such property owners may wait years to receive the noise compensation payments provided under the law. In Switzerland, by way of contrast, noise impact zones can follow roads, waterways, property lines and even forest edges or terrain features (Reference 9).

Land for Redevelopment. Achievement of the fundamental objective of providing noise alleviation for impacted residents does not necessarily require the area to be completely cleared. A number of mandatory and voluntary programs allow residents to remain under certain conditions. However, if the impacted area is to be redeveloped for civic, industrial or commercial use, complete clearance of residences is necessary. In such cases, noise alleviation is achieved although it may not have been the principal objective of the program.

{. .

i,

14.

のたいとし、

. ... {v

ないというたいです。

Relief Contraction and a survey of the

Examples of redevelopment for civic purposes include use of the area for parks, water works, vehicle storage, etc. Examples of industrial and commercial uses include light to heavy manufacturing, warehousing and enclosed shopping centers. Included in this general redevelopment category could be the provisions of land for airport expansion. This does not refer only to

runway extension. Land is also required for hangers, warehouses, freight depots, etc.

The amount of land required for any of the above redevelopment purposes may be considerably different from the amount included within the relocation zone. If it is significantly greater, then using noise alleviation as a rationale for the program is weak. This would then raise questions about funding, legality, etc.

In these redevelopments the area involved should be extended to a logical physical boundary (freeway, railroad, etc.). This will eliminate leaving a small housing area sandwiched between the redevelopment project and the boundary, for example, between a warehouse and a railroad.

<u>Clearance of Blighted Areas.</u> Another rationale for complete land clearance is the removal of a blighted area. Such an area frequently is characterized by deteriorating housing and commercial structures, high crime rates, vandalism, etc. The cost is high of maintaining police, fire and other services in such a region. This high cost and the undesirable social conditions lead to a desire to redevelop the area.

This type of situation has lead the city of Inglewood to undertake a redevelopment program (Reference 10). The area is under the approach to the main runway at Los Angeles International Airport. Since Hollywood Park racetrack is adjacent, the plan is to create an expanded, integrated amusement area. The remarks of the previous section concerning boundaries and amount of land needed are applicable also in this situation. However, the use of noise alleviation as a rationale for land clearance may be stronger in this case if it is reasonable to assume that the blight was caused at least in part by the excessive noise.

Nature of Relocation Assistance

Whether relocation of residents is to be provided on a voluntary or on a mandatory basis, the cost of such assistance would be substantial primarily because it would entail property purchases at fair market value. In

2-26

An electric state of the second state of the

addition, there is ancillary assistance that would be provided under most circumstances which would impose additional costs on a per unit and total program basis.

The actual mix of relocation assistance, and the attendant level of coverage, may vary depending on the particular circumstances and policies of implementing jurisdictions. However, an understanding of the nature of such assistance may be obtained through reference to the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act of 1970, 42 U.S.C. 4601. The provisions of the Act and circumstances in which it might apply are presented in Chapter VI. The types of assistance and cost reimbursement required are as follows:

- <u>Advisory Service Costs</u>. These are costs incurred by the agency implementing the relocation effort and cover activities such as appraisals, negotiations, relocation assistance and administration. They may also include the cost of locating and appraising comparable replacement housing units.
- <u>Moving Costs.</u> These cover reimbursement for reasonable moving expenses. All moves are treated as if they were local, with most implementing agencies interpreting this as a move not exceeding 50 miles.

.

· 100 年春中教授中国的学校的学校和教育的学校和学校教育和教育教育和教育和教育和教育和

and the second s

- <u>Purchase Price of Real Property.</u> As tenants are relocated, rental unit owners are paid the fair market value for rental property purchases. Such properties may range from single unit structures to high rise apartments.
- <u>Purchase Price of Owner-Occupied Units</u>. Owners are paid the fair market value for property purchased.
- <u>Replacement Cost.</u> Relocated tenants and homeowners receive a payment to cover the increased rental or purchase price required to obtain comparable replacement housing in a quieter neighborhood.

- <u>Increased Interest Cost.</u> This cost item arises when the interest rate on a replacement mortgage exceeds the rate on an original mortgage. The current high mortgage rates would create a significant differential when compared to, for example, mortgages on homes purchased 5 or 10 years ago.
- <u>Closing Costs</u>. Incurred by all persons making a home purchase.
- <u>Downpayment</u>. This special provision in the Act is designed to assist displaced tenants in becoming homeowners. Cash allowances up to \$4,000 are provided for downpayments.
- <u>Income Foregone</u>. This cost item compensates landlords for disruption of their business operations as they loose their existing tenants in the course of a relocation.

Although the level of benefits provided may vary, the assistance items described above would apply to the majority of relocation programs. Likely variations would occur in the provisions of downpayment assistance, which may not be provided as an added benefit to tenants desiring to become homeowners. Another example is an "incentive" payment, offered as an inducement to relocation. Emminent domain power could be exercised to force relocation. Even so, an incentive payment would be useful in minimizing protracted delays associated with condemnation suits.

Availability of Comparable Replacement Housing

the week to be a set of the set of

The Uniform Relocation Act requires that adquate, affordable, comparable and socially acceptable replacement housing be available for persons displaced as a result of a relocation effort. While the relocation program addressed in this study is confined to the resolution of annoyance experienced by those who reside around airports, administrators of the program may face problems encountered by renewal projects in the past. Thus, the problems of adequate and affordable replacement housings for the relocation program is discussed in light of the parallel experience gained in urban renewal projects. To minimize adverse effects of the relocation program upon displaced persons, a disequilibrium in the housing market around the airport should exist. To absorb initially displaced families there must be a sufficient rate of vacancy in housings which are affordable to middle and low income households. In the past such a condition was required to be certified by renewal projects before federally sponsored demolition could occur. Concurrently, a disequilibrium in high income rental housing should also exist. In this market, however, there should be a shortage, if new high income rental housing is to be rented at a favorable occupancy ratio (Reference 11). In fact, such disequilibria are rare and in recent years there have been indications that reverse disequilibria are more likely to occur. Namely, shortages of middle and low income housing and a surplus of high income rental units are becoming commonplace.

The notion of comparable, replacement housing implies that the structures in question could be compared in terms of a set of common attributes. And these attributes should reflect the characteristics of the units and their surrounding area such as:

Ambient or outdoor noise level

ĥ

- Accessibility to employment centers
- Socio-economic characteristics of neighborhood
- Characteristics and dimensions of the structure.

A pivotal objective of a soundproofing/relocation program is, as stated previously, to provide relief to residents exposed to airport-environs noise levels in excess of L_{dn} 65 dB. This does not necessarily rule out relocation to an area located within an L_{dn} to 65 dB contour. Such action should insure that the new residence has either already been soundproofed to achieve the desired indoor noise level or built initially to reach this level. In general, however, relocation should be geared to areas exposed to less than L_{dn} 65 dB so as to minimize impacting the enjoyment of the outdoors. This factor has added importance when considering a voluntary relocation effort; residents are more likely to participate if they are able to perceive maximum, tangible improvements in their everyday lives.

Accessibility to employment centers can perhaps best be achieved by emphasizing relocation within the general environs of the airport. In many cases with large commercial airports, the airport proper is a prime employer. For example, Miami International Airport is estimated to account directly or indirectly for up to 20 percent of the metropolitan area's employment base.

Similarity of socio-economic characteristics of a neighborhood may be a particular problem for some relocation efforts. Residents in the Neptune Road area of Logan Airport have objected to assimilation into areas without similar characteristics. They thus have been reluctant to leave on a voluntary basis. As would be expected, demographic factors would be of lesser importance for a young, mobile professional than for an elderly resident with strong local ties.

The nature of the replacement structure sometimes transcends comparability; i.e., the replacement housing unit should provide basic amenities such as running water, indoor toilets, etc., even if not present in the orginal housing.

Areas with housing surpluses may have most of the mentioned attributes with the possible exception of demographic characteristics. But, as mentioned, housing stock disequilibria may well be the norm rather than the exception, especially for tenants trying to secure apartment units in an era of rapid condominium conversions. One way to minimize problems in securing replacement housing is to stagger relocation over time to avoid a massive exodus from the project area. This option does have certain disadvantage, such as maintenance of agency staff, checkerboard patterns or desire to utilize acquired land for redevelopment/airport expansion purposes.

EL IGIBIL ITY

and the start of the

The magnitude of the soundproofing/relocation program depends upon the numbers and types of structures eligible to receive the benefits of the program. People, in their initial reaction to the concept of airport noise alleviation, usually think only of residences. There are many reasons,

2-30

أستعر والأبراء والمرور الترورو والوصيصي المقاور الاخ

however, to contemplate extending program benefits to neighborhood stores, small businesses, schools, churches, etc. These raise a number of issues relative to equitable treatment, cost and social impacts.

Another set of issues concerning eligibility involves questions of timing. For example, should eligibility be limited to present property owners? Should a time limit be set on acceptance of assistance offers? Is future eligibility, if any, determined by present or future noise contours? The various answers to such questions greatly influence the magnitude of the program.

Other eligibility issues are not as easy to classify, but are unique in themselves. For example, should eligibility be extended to persons in high noise areas if the noise is mainly non-airport related? Again, is eligibility a matter of individual homeowner choice, or a matter for the local government of the area in which he lives?

Program Coverage

and the state of the second second second second second

ģ

Panding and and and

It is necessary to consider the desirability of extending the soundproofing/relocation program to various classes of non-residential structures. Non-residential structures house activities that can be classified in classical economic terms as sheltered or exposed. Sheltered activities produce goods or services consumed in the local area while the goods and services produced by exposed activities are consumed outside of the area. If the local area is defined as that within the L_{dn} 65 dB contour, then the factors to be discussed are those bearing on the eligibility of these two classes of activities to receive the benefits of the soundproofing/relocation program.

This section discusses issues related to the eligibility of exposed activities such as industries and commercial activities. The next section discusses one class of sheltered activities, public buildings such as schools and hospitals.

There are a number of factors which may influence the eligibility of exposed activities such as industries and commercial establishments to receive the benefits of a noise alleviation program. Among these are:

- Compatibility of the activity with various sound levels
- Self-noise generated by the activity
- The effects of redevelopment.

These factors are discussed in the following sub-sections.

<u>Noise Compatibility</u>. Eligibility for inclusion in a soundproofing/relocation program depends upon the degree to which noise interfers with the normal functions of the activity. There is general agreement that the activities of most heavy industries are little affected by noise, while mental activities are greatly affected by noise. Between these two extremes, however, there is some debate as to the noise levels at which an activity is seriously affected.

One set of noise compatibility values has been generated by the FAA as part of a set of interim regulations on airport noise compatibility planning programs. These Part 150 regulations prescribe a set of planning actions that an airport proprieter may take to reduce the impact of airport noise on neighboring land uses. In these regulations, the FAA has defined sound levels (Ldn) which are compatible with various land uses. Table 2.2 has been reproduced from Appendix A of the Part 150 regulations.

The categories, "Commercial" and "Manufacturing and Production", in Table 2.2 are (with the exception of "Retail Trade-General") the types of exposed activities discussed in this section. Such activities do not depend on the economy of the immediate area in which they are located.

The impacted area at any particular airport will not have all the commericial/manufacturing activities listed. Absence of some activity could

and the second second

TABLE 2.2

LAND USE COMPATIBILITY WITH YEARLY DAY-NIGHT AVERAGE SOUND LEVELS

	Yearly deprophil average scurid level (Las) in decision					
	Balow 63	43-70	70-71	75-40	80-85	Over 65
Assistant						
Residential other than mobile homes and transient joby-	۲	1 10	1 11	N	N	
ngs						
Malais home parts	¥	N	N		N	
Transient long the second s	Y	* N	1.1	I N	'N	N
Public unit						
Schools, hospitals and nursing homes	۲.	23	30	N	N	A
Churches, automates, and concert helts	¥	5	30	N		N
Governmental pervenie	۲	¥	23	29	Ň	Ĥ
Transportation	۲.	¥	• •	۲	4 9	4 9
Plang	۲	¥.	٩¥	۲	4¥	X
Convertier uter						
Chicas, bueness and protessional		۲.	25	30	N	н
wholeses and inter-building materials, hardware and	T	- T	۴Ÿ	۴Y	44	Ň
Tarin Rijulinari,						
	۲	۷.	25	20	N	
	Y	*	· • •	+ y	4Ψ	N
	۳.		8.	39	*	
warmaning and biobreaut						
Ministerry, general	Ŧ	¥	÷ 4	+ ¥	4 Y	
Autority strate and design and strategy and	<u> </u>	¥ .	25	39	N	N
villantine (second matrice) full (matrix	.	• •	14	• •	• • •	
Constant ferring for a second	Y	• •	• •	N	N	N
mental and renard, language busingtion and survicion ***	T	¥ (۲	¥ .	Υ	• • •
	¥.	• •	• •	. N	N	м
Constant readers and the second secon		N	- N 1	N	N	1
		Ţ	N	N	*	N
Cutil countries when a block and and a starting		, T	Y	h	N	1、 利
(1956 (1956 (1957)) (1957) (1957) (1957) (1957) (1957)	7	¥	23			. 8

"The designations contained in this table do not consiste a Federal descrimination that any use of land conversed by the program is assignable of unsampliable under Federal, Sate, st road law. The respondancy for determining the assignable and permaster land user renters with the local automate. And othermaisters under Part 150 are not managed to approximate the approximate and any determining land user renters with the local automate. And othermaisters under Part 150 are not managed to approximate the approximate and any determining land used and the transmitters of the approximate by local automates in response to toolary determined needs and values in activity make approximate land uses.

Key.

والمتعجر والمتعقق المعدو وودور والوور والمعارية والمعام والمعا

ARY \$LUCM-Standard Lend Use Coong Manuel. Y (Yes)-Land Use and resized secarch is compatible subflow restrictions. In (Ne)-Land Use and resized secarch are not compatible end should be prohibited. NUM-House Laws Resized is updates and one compatible and annual incorporation of more Ellistuation rise the design and particulation of installars. 25, 30, or 31-Large time and resized situcture generally compatible; measures to achieve NLR or 25, 30, or 35 multiple inspiration and assess and construction of situcture.

Interpretate the design and done human granting managements are entrance to entrance fully of an easily built of the supervised material sectors and the sectors and the supervised material sectors and the supervised material sectors and the supervised material sectors and the sectors and

h

1

â

1

change the allowable sound levels considerably. For example, in the manufacturing category, the absence of photographic and optical industries changes the allowable L_{dn} from 70 dB to 80 dB. Thus, for any given airport, noise compatibility will have to be determined using classifications specified more precisely than the classifications given in Table 2.2. This will require a fairly detailed inventory of the affected industries and commercial establishments in the area.

If the presented L_{dn} values are accepted, then the soundproofing and relocation boundaries selected for residences may be unduly restrictive for the commercial manufacturing cases considered here. If the noise reduction levels shown in the table (which apply to new construction) can be achieved by soundproofing existing structures, then the soundproofing zone could be between L_{dn} 70 to 80 dB. This would be a considerable reduction in area from that included within the residential bounds of the 65 L_{dn} to 75 dB contour. Similarly the relocation zone boundary could be moved into the L_{dn} 80 dB line, if "should be prohibited" in the table is interpreted as being equivalent to "relocate".

<u>Self-Noise</u>. Manufacturing activities that generate considerable self-noise would not be eligible for coverage under the soundproofing/ relocation program envisioned herein. The FAA view, as demonstrated in Table 2.2, is that manufacturing activities, aside from livestock raising and precision manufacture, can tolerate noise levels up to L_{dn} 85 dB. Offices associated with such enterprises must, of course, be soundproofed. This allowable high noise level is based on studies showing that annoyance from a given noise level decreases as the background noise level increases.

Noise tolerant activities are prime candiates for exclusion in airport noise relocation zones. Manufacturers with a high self-noise level are one type of noise tolerant activity.

<u>Redevelopment Effects</u>. Exclusion of commercial/manufacturing activities could forestall redevelopment efforts. Several objectives in undertaking a soundproofing/relocation program, in addition to securing alleviation of the noise problem, involve clearance and redevelopment of the

2-34

تصبحا الأجأب يتقود بالتروك والطبوسين المتار والجاه وتعاوده

have been a first the week the second and and a second and the second and a second and a second a second a second

impacted area, or use of the area for airport purposes. The impact of excluding this type of activity on any redevelopment effort depends on the type of program offered, the noise compatibility of the activities and the fraction of the noise impacted area occupied by the activity.

A number of types of mandatory and voluntary relocation programs are possible. These could be analogous to the residential relocation programs (voluntary or mandatory) discussed previously. However, rather than exploring all these program types, only the voluntary program is consiered at this time. In this program type, the activity could accept or reject voluntarily an offer to relocate. In rejecting the offer the activity does not agree to any conditions, such as surrendering the right to sue for noise damages.

When this type of program is presented to noise tolerant (up to L_{dn} 85 dB) and noise sensitive manufacturing activities the probable reactions are likely to be as shown in Table 2.3. Four combinations are shown of including or excluding activities from the program with noise tolerant or noise sensitive activities. In three of the four combinations, the probable result is that the industry will not move, and thus hinder future redevelopment of the area for other uses.

Excluding activities from the program means the operator was not made a relocation offer. If such excluded activities are not to become a hinderance to the redevelopment program, they can be persuaded to relocate only by providing them some especially attractive incentives provided external to the basic redevelopment program.

À.

ģ

Even including an activity in the program does not allow clearance of the area. As shown in Table 2.3, a noise tolerant industry is not likely to accept an offer to relocate unless it is especially attractive financially.

Finally, a "hold-out" activity may not hinder redevelopment if it occupies only some small fraction of the redevelopment area, or if it is compatible with the proposed type of redevelopment. Obviously, noise tolerant industry is compatible with a program to redevelop a noise impacted

2-35

المراجعة المراجع والمستحية والمراجع ومعتاه المراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع

TABLE 2.3

EFFECT ON REDEVELOPMENT OF INCLUDING OR EXCLUDING NOISE SENSITIVE AND NOISE TOLERANT MANUFACTURING ACTIVITIES

.

Lingen wert will be a stand of the spectrum of states to be seen in

	Noise Sensitive		Noise T	olerant
	Included in Program	Excluded from Program	Included in Program	Excluded from Program
Probable Reaction to Voluntary Program	Move	Stay	Stay	Stay
Does Potential for Noise Damage Suit Exist?	No	Yes	No	No
Is Redevelopment Hindered?	No	Yes	Yes	Yes

and the second second

the state of the s

residential area such as an industrial park containing other noise tolerant industries.

Inclusion of Public Buildings, Such As Schools and Hospitals

Although measurements of aircraft noise on vulnerable populations in schools and hospitals are rare, it has been recognized that such impacts exist and regulations pertaining to the use of these structures were developed by the ANCLUC program. Thus, in principle, public buildings should be included in the programs. However, some economic factors should also be included in the eligibility criteria and some of these factors are discussed below.

Prevailing Federal government perceptions, court decisions and the Uniform Relocation Act emphasize that those who are affected by aircraft noise should be compensated. A fairly recent report to the Congress (Reference 12) recommended that public buildings should be covered by the program. The report estimated that approximately 1,100 schools and 90 hospitals should be soundproofed. These structures could accommodate 700,000 pupils and 31,000 patients, respectively. The "rehabilitation" (soundproofing) costs were estimated to be \$148 million and \$56 million for schools and hospitals, respectively. The benefit of soundproofing schools was said to be \$5.5 million worth of teaching time recovered and energy savings per year. For hospitals the energy savings were estimated to be \$0.25 million per year.

In light of these beliefs, public buildings should not be excluded in principle from the soundproofing/relocation program, and compatibility criteria for these structures can be found in Part 150. Moreover, financial aid could be obtained from Federal grants, provided a multiple objective policy could be defined for such buildings (such as energy conservation). However, other considerations should be included when developing specific eligibility criteria for such buildings, specifically, the economic relationships between these buildings and the rest of the community.

 $\left\{ i \right\}$

Marilan and and

FUNDING

A number of important financial issues will arise when planning for a soundproofing/relocation program. In general, there will be four types of funding issues. One type of issue will concern authority or responsibility. For example, will financing be undertaken by the airport authority, the city, the state or some other groupµ Another set of issues deals with the funding mechanisms to be used, i.e., bond issues, ADAP funds, noise charges, accumulated revenue, etc. This leads immediately to a third set of issues: those dealing with the continuing sources of revenue that can be used to retire any bonds which may be issued. Such souces include landing fees, taxes, airport concession income, etc. Finally, there is a set of issues which relate to the financial arrangements at the airport under consideration to the finances of other airports and to the financing of related programs.

While responses to the issues raise complicated concerns and perceptions, a measure of the financial requirements for a comprehensive soundproofing/relocation program may be gained in the first instance by examining noise fees as a source of revenues. If the fees are extraordinarily high, concerns with shifting demand patterns or, more basically, financial viability arise. If the fees are low, on the other hand, many related concerns lose much of their importance.

Noise Fees

The first for some of the strategies in the state of the second of the manual and a second of the

Noise charges, as they have been suggested, in theory should be set equal to the marginal damage cost incurred at the optimal level of pollution. In turn, the optimal level of pollution is determined by the equivalence of marginal abatement costs and marginal damage costs. It is stressed that market imperfections, including the very existence of detrimental externalities themselves, may be such as to leave no indication as to which direction to take in modifying the price structure for such alleged misallocations. Therefore, it would be a more pragmatic approach to establish environmental quality standards and then use charges to secure those

standards. Simply, a model requires the charge to be set equal to marginal abatement costs for each firm so as to achieve the overall quality standard. This is held to be the least cost approach to achieving the standard, since marginal abatement costs are equalized for each firm.

One procedure for aircraft noise abatement would set a fee for each type or series of aircraft, and for each hour of the day. The fees would be set to balance demand with capacity, and they would be adjusted, as needed, to maintain this balance. Noisy aircraft would pay more than quiet aircraft; at peak hours, large aircraft would pay more than small aircraft; and overall, the fees would be higher in peak hours than in off-peak hours.

Aircraft are already assessed a landing fee at airports; a noise charge could easily be an additional landing fee. The noise charge could be viewed as an approach that would be more cost effective---produce more quiet for less money---than restrictive governmental regulations because it could provide monetary incentives to the airlines to voluntarily adopt less noisy practices in order to reduce their noise charges. These charges would provide funds for local noise abatement programs such as soundproofing of dwellings, schools and hospitals, purchase of land for buffer zones, and relocation of impacted residents. More importantly, these practices may well reduce future noise exposure levels and thereby reduce total program costs.

The Foreign Experience with Noise Fees. The following is a discussion of noise charges which exist in other countries. These are presented merely as examples of systems and to whom the charges are directed. The system applied to the Amsterdam Schiphol Airport (Reference 13) in the Netherlands was to devise an "Aircraft Noise Overall Index" (ANOI) based on the hypothesis that loudness (noise as subjectively perceived) doubles for each 10 dB increment. (Surveys show that every 10 dB increase of noise level produces a twenty-point increase in the percentage of people seriously annoyed.) These factors were combined to develop an indicator:

 $I = 2 (L_{i} - L_{n}) \times 2^{(L_{i} - L_{n})/10}$ where: I = impact indicator L_{i} = noise level L_{n} = annoyance threshold The ANOI index would be: ANOI = F_{i}PD_{i}I_{i}
where: F_i = the area in the noise footprint of an aircraft at noise level i PD_{i} = population density in F_{i}
I_{i} = impact indicator in F_{i}.

The rate of change (a) could be calculated by dividing the cost of local action at this airport by the number of ANOI units produced at the airport. Each aircraft would then pay a charge for each landing or takeoff equal to

a' ANOL .

This system was applied to the case of Amsterdam's Schiphol Airport, and the charge per aircraft would range to approximately \$303 (U.S.) for a noncertified, four engine aircraft (the noisiest). This approach bases the charge on a reliable noise impact indicator and calculates the rate according to the cost of a predetermined program of local noise abatement measures around the airport applying the charge.

In France, a special charge designed to finance noise insulation of buildings around Charles de Gaulle and Orly Airports has been in operation since 1973 (Reference 14). According to this scheme, each passenger is paying a charge of one franc on domestic flights and three francs on international flights. The funds are collected by the airport and allocated by a special

2-40

1997 - Ball Star and Star Strate Strategy and Strategy Strategy and Strategy and Strategy and Strategy and a st

commission for financing as much as two-thirds of the cost of noise insulation for private and public buildings. This charge is not related to the noise level of the aircraft, however. For this reason, implementation of a new system is now under consideration (Reference 14). The basis for the charge would be the noise emission in EPNdB as measured under the ICAO Annex 16 noise certification procedure, called characteristic noise (CN), compared with the maximum noise level authorized under Annex 16, called reference noise (RN). Aircraft would be classified in one of four groups:

- Category I: if CN>RN
- Category II: if CN is lower than RN by a maximum of 9 EPNdB
- Category III: if CN is lower than RN by no less than 9 EPNd8 and no more than 18 EPNd8
- Category IV: If CN is lower than RN by more than 18 EPNdB.

The charge could be calculated by applying the following rates:

- Category I: a
- Category II: 1/2a
- Category III: 1/4a
- Category IV: Oa

and a state of the state of the

where the basic rate is the amount of francs per ton maximum takeoff weight Such a charge could amount to 5 to 10 percent of the landing charges for the category.

In Japan, a special landing charge has been operating since September 1975 (Reference 15). Its major objective is to finance local noise abatement measures. The charge is a function of the aircraft weight and noise level. In 1979, the charges by type of aircraft were as follows:

NOISE CHARGES AT JAPANESE AIRPORTS

	Charge		
Type of Aircraft	Yen	<u>US\$</u>	
Boeing 747 SR	215,420	1,034	
DC8	196,680	944	
L1011	169,100	81.2	
Boeing 727	101,240	487	
009	69,280	333	

The charge is paid by airlines, and part is shared among the passengers by including flat rate amounts in the price of tickets (for domestic flights only).

<u>Miami Airport - An Illustration</u>. The funding required to implement an airport noise soundproofing and relocation effort can be acquired through the use of landing fees or passenger surcharges. If landing fees are used, they will be required to be equitable so noisier aircraft have higher noise fees. The charge was noted by the President's Council in Wage and Price Stability as less disruptive of interstate commerce than imposing curfews or the grounding of noisy planes (Reference 16). To quantify the impacts of a noise charge and the development of program funds for an airport soundpprofing and relocation program, a methodology was developed that enabled an assessment of the manner in which noise charges could be allocated over time to accumulate program funds. Table 2.4 develops a charge for each operation of an aircraft type based on the following assumptions:

2-42

المحاجبة والمرجوع ليتم أروعه ألاري والمستحدث

The second se

		1979		19%0		2000	
Aircraft Type	EPNL	N ₁ (000)	F1/H1	N ₁ (000)	F1/Ni \$	H ₁ (000)	F1/H1
DC-9-32	104	7.45	\$ 57.01	5.14	\$ 65,59		•
DC-9-15	104	4.31	57.62	2.09	65,59	-	*
BAC-111	104	-		÷ •	-	-	-
727-100	104	18.62	\$7,01	-	-	-	-
737W/SAM	104	3, 39	57,62	4,84	65.59	-	-
707-320 B/C	105	2.88	72,33	-	-	-	-
707-1200	105	0.22	72.33			-	-
7208	105	0.07	69.88	-	-	-	•
DC-8-65	105	2,61	71.72	-	-	-	-
DC+0-10	105	0.44	72,33	-	·*		
DC-9H/SAN	105 .	1.53	72,33	2.81	02.76	•	-
7274/5AM	105	15.91	72.33	11.98	82.14	•	•
727ADV W/SAM	105	15.91	72,33	12.03	82,14	-	-
DC-9-80+	102	-		6,53	66,59	6,78	74.79
DC-8-61/63	106	3.14	90.72	- '	· –	-	. •
A-310+	102	•	-	4;48	41.07	4,49	47.20
8-767+	102	÷	-	4,50	25,75	4,49	47.20
8-757*	102	· -	•	3.22	41.07	3,23	47.20
A-300	103	1.13	45,36	3,88	52.11	3,58	59.46
DC-10-10	104	4,09	57.01	1.74	65.59	1,45	74.79
L-1011	104	10,22	57.01	5.55	65.59	5,11	74.79
DC-10-30	104	1,10	57.62	3.10	45.59	3.22	74.79
STRETCH	104	0,47	57.62	3.15 .	65.59 [°]	3,06	74.79
747-200	104	0,11	55,78.	7.02	65.39	30,78	74.79
747-100	105	0,99	71.72	3.06	82.14	-	-
747 STRETCH	105	0.11	72.33	4.04 ***	. 82.14	11.85	94.40
0-747 TYPE	105			<u> </u>		4,70	94.40
TOTAL		94,90	•	90,16		. 82.74	

TABLE 2.4 NOISE CHARGE PER AIRCRAFT OPERATION MIAMI RPORT

.

*New Aircraft Type After 1979,

2-43

.

.

- Total program (airport soundproofing and relocation) costs for compatibility at the Miami International Airport (MIA) in the year 2000 would be \$122,634,000. Program costs would be considerably less if compatibility controls and noise abatement flight tracks were employed to reduce noise exposure levels (see Chapter V).
- Departures (in 000's) are presented by aircraft type and by year (1979 baseline, 1990 and 2000). Note that there are fewer aircraft types in use in year 2000 as compared to 1979 and there are fewer departures, but aircraft capacity is greater in year 2000 as compared to 1979 (see Chapter IV).
- Determining actual charges for specific fleet operations requires a schedule of charges based on the decibel level (EPNL), time-of-day and possibly the runway. As the noise level increases, the total charge, depending upon the environmental damage caused by noise emissions, also increases. The EPNL for the various aircraft types are based upon Federal Aviation Regulation 36 Stage 2 and 3 and different aircraft weights. For those aircraft that were not in service prior to 1979, EPNL levels were based on the lowest of existing measures. Thus, it is assumed that newer models of aircraft will cause less of an noise impact than older models.
- It is further assumed, for reasons of simplicity, that there will be no time value of money. Thus, there will be discounting of program funds to 1979. Therefore, the total program costs of \$122,600,000 is in 1979 dollars. A straight line method of desired funding for the period 1980 to 2000 is also assumed. The funds accumulated will be at the same level each year, or \$6.13 million.

2-44

الالاحسان وجواروان والمتحارين والتجاري والتجاري والمعامية

The total program cost (T) can be acquired in a 20-year period (1980-2000) through the charge F_i/N_i on each aircraft operation. This is given by:

$$F_{i}/N_{i} = T = \frac{10 \text{ EPNL}_{i}/10}{\sum_{i}^{n} N_{i} 10 \text{ EPNL}_{i}/10}$$

where F_{i} = the fee per aircraft type for some period of time based on the aircraft's noise level

i = the given aircraft type

Contraction and

ł

المعاد والمدار والمنافر والمتكرية الملاق

 $N_i = total$ aircraft departures for the same period of time.

Table 2.4 does not take into consideration the possible shift from one aircraft type that may be noisier to another aircraft type that would be quieter, nor does the table consider weighting the costs based on nighttime arrival/departure versus daytime arrival/departure.

The magnitude of these charges per aircraft operation is low, the mean being \$65.24, \$64.54 and \$73.69 for 1979, 1990 and 2000 respectively. While the airlines are shifting to quieter aircraft over time, this charge does not generate a strong incentive for airlines to retrofit noisy aircraft. Further, the per operation charge would be even less were compatibility and noise abatement flight tracks employed.

The 1979 landing charge by Miami is \$21 for a DC9, \$44 for a Boeing 707 and \$118 for a Boeing 747.* These landing fees are average daytime landing values and include pertinent costs for landing, lighting, passenger service charges paid by airlines, parking, security, park zone and terminal navigation fees. Landing fees at different airports fluctuate widely. The fluctuations should be the result of different traffic patterns infrastructure costs and the services provided. Table 2.5 shows the representative charges for seven U.S. airports.

*From Table 2.4, the 1979 noise charge would be \$57 for a DC-9-32, \$72 for a Boeing 707 and \$58 for a Boeing 747-200.

TABLE 2.5					
	Representative Landing Fee	(dollars) (U.S. Air	ports)*		
Airport	<u>DC 9</u>	<u>B 707</u>	<u>B 747</u>		
Kennedy, NY	1,421	1,883	3,616		
Dallas/Fort W	orth 125	225	552		
Detroit	766	1,205	3,039		
Los Angeles	79	165	446		
Miami	21	44	118		
San Francisco	48	100	271		
Washington Na	tional 235	. 380	967		

The noise fee is an item that airlines would pass directly to the customer. The increase in individual ticket prices would not encourage passengers to shift from noisier to quieter aircraft. A "noise surcharge" may be a method to make the public aware of the problem, and of the relocation and soundproofing program. However, a noise surcharge may require frequent adjustments, thus making the implementation of the fee less efficient than was proposed with a straight-fee operation.

The above example of a noise fee is only for illustration purposes, demonstrating a potential methodology that could be incorporated (with modifications) to fund the eventual program costs for soundproofing and relocation of private residences exposed to airport noise levels exceeding L_{dn} 65 dB and 75 dB, respectively. Other features that would require incorporation into such a plan are the time-value of money and discounting of future cash flows.

*On a per passenger basis, the average landing fee for the seven representative airports (assuming a 70 percent load factor) would be \$4.77, \$5.47 and \$4.05 for the DC9, B707 and B747, respectively. The per passenger noise charge (from Table 2.4) would be \$0.70, \$0.69 and \$0.18.

2-46

We be which have been and the second of the second of the second s

REFERENCES

- U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>Airport Noise Compatibility Planning</u>, 14 CFR Part 150, published January 26, 1981.
- U.S. DOT, FAA, Advisory Circular 150/5050-6; <u>Airport-Land Use Com-</u> patibility Planning, December 30, 1977.
- 3. Fleischer, R. L., Letter to Physics Today, September 1981.
- Sharh, B. H., et al, <u>A Study of Soundproofing Requirements for Residences Adjacent to Commercial Airports</u>, Wyle Laboratories Research Report No. WR81-33, prepared for EPA, August 1981.
- Keast, D. N., <u>Acoustic Location of Infiltration Openings in Build-</u> <u>ings</u>, BBN Report No. 3942, prepared for Brookhaven National Laboratories, October 1978.
- Nelson, J. P., "Airports and Property Values, A Survey of Recent Evidence", <u>Journal of Transport Economics and Policy</u>, January 1980.
- Massachusetts Port Authority, <u>Neptune Road Housing Relocation Program</u>, Boston, MA, prepared for U.S. DOT, FAA, 1973.
- 8. U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>Planning for the Airport and Its Environs: The</u> <u>Sea-Tac Success Story</u>, Peat, Marwick, Mitchell and Co., April 1978.
- 9. Perloff, H.S. and L. Wingo, Jr., <u>Issues in Urban Economics</u>, JHU Press, Baltimore, MD., 1968.
- U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>Report to Congress: Study of the Feasibility and</u> <u>Cost of Soundproofing of Schools, Hospitale and Public Health</u> <u>Factilities Located Near Airports</u>, July 1977.
- Alexandre, A. and Barde, J. Phi, "Aircraft Noise Charges", <u>Noise</u> <u>Control Engineering</u>, Volume 101, Number 2, M/A 1978.
- 12. <u>Ibid</u>.

.

r.

AND THE PARTY OF A STREET AND A

- Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development, "Noise Charges: Conference on Noise Abatement Policies", May 7-9, 1980.
- Executive Office of the President, Council on Wage and Price Stability, <u>Council Urges Noise Charges to Reduce Airport Noise</u>, Washington, D.C., April 15, 1977.

......

III. REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT DEVELOPMENT METHODOLOGY

This chapter covers the development of a set of analytical tools which can integrate the sundry parameters which affect airport noise exposure and can then be used to forecast the ramifications of a series of noise abatement planning scenarios. The generation of a comprehensive data base and the determination of a set of representative airports, or Rports, is a necessary first step in the development of such analytical tools. This chapter describes the procedure employed to generate such a data base and set of representative airports.

BACKGROUND

ļ

A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL

There are two alternative methods which can be employed for estimating the national exposure due to aircraft noise. The first method requires a noise exposure calculation for each airport of interest and then summing to determine total exposure. Since this first method would require considerable time and resources to implement and complete, it is generally regarded as an impractical and undesirable approach. The second method involves developing model airports, calculating noise exposure for these model airports, and scaling the results to derive national noise exposure estimates. The model airports, referred to as Rports, permit forecasts and sensitivity analyses to be performed for variables such fleet size, fleet composition, noise levels, flight procedures, and flight tracks by studying only several airports instead of many.

3-1

المستحصية ومعينا المرابي والمعاد والمعاد والمسادقين

The representative airports represent a number of distinct categories of airports, that is, subsets of the total set of airports. The requirement is that the noise exposure around a Rport, specified in terms of area and population exposed (as well as other pertinent socio-economic and demographic considerations), approximates the total noise exposure for all of the subset it represents when multiplied by an appropriate scaling factor. Also, the sum of the noise exposure for each subset should approximate the noise exposure (area, population, etc.) of all sets of airports.

IDENTIFICATION AND GENERATION OF REQUIRED DATA BASES

Since it could not be predicted beforehand just which variables might prove most useful in defining distinct categories of airports, the initial steps in the methodology might charitably be described as casting the net as widely as possible. After the initial exploratory period, however, it was rapidly determined that only a relatively few real fish had been caught in the net. Thus, it was possible to define categories of airports on the basis of rather few variables with considerable confidence that the most important factors were being taken into consideration.

The identification and generation of the data bases required to determine a single Rport that represents a distinct category of airports were divided into two parts: (1) the development of an airport/aircraft data base which could be used to define distinct categories (or sets) of airports and (2) the development of an airport/aircraft data base necessary to run the FAA's Integrated Noise Model (INM) and the National Aeronautics and Space Administration's Aircraft Noise-Levels Annoyance Model (ALAMD)* for selected airports from each airport category.

3-2

والإرادي وتدبعته مستحا متناه

^{*}The ALAMO is an airport community noise impact assessment model currently operational on the NASA Langley Research Center's (LRC) Computer System (Reference 1).
Data Required To Define Distinct Categories of Airports

The airport/aircraft data identified as requirements for developing distinct categories of airports include the following:

- Number of annual commercial jet air carrier operations for each airport considered
- Airport noise produced by the flight operations of commercial jet air carrier aircraft
- Selected socio-economic and demographic variables which describe the surrounding airport community
- Airport/aircraft parameters which are specific to each airport considered.

<u>Number of Annual Commercial Jet Air Carrier Operations</u>. This variable was considered essential because it is one of the determinants of the total noise produced by aircraft operations. The number of annual (calendar year 1979) commercial jet air carrier departures by aircraft type was obtained from Table 7 in Reference 2. A computer file containing these aircraft operations data was coded and installed on the EPA's NCC computer system. The file, henceforth referred to as the Airport Activity Statistics (AAS) file, included aircraft operations data for 304 airports serving certificated route air carriers.

<u>Airport Noise Produced By Commercial Jet Air Carrier Operations</u>. The airport noise produced by commercial jet air carrier operations was represented by two noise measures: (1) Fleet Noise Level (FNL) and (2) Airport Noise Index (ANI). The concept of FNL provides a method for evaluating the noise status of fleets of aircraft. It provides a single figure of merit so that fleets of aircraft can be compared with each other with respect to noise. The concept of FNL is very flexible in that it can be applied to a wide variety of situations. For example, a general FNL could be calculated for all airports or any subset of airports in the U.S. The calculation could be done for any

ą

We have the second

3-3

والمستقرب المراجع والمتوري والمعتر فالمستور بمعاولهم والمتحاف

particular airline or any combination of airlines. For a detailed explication of the concept of FNL, see Reference 3.

Even a cursory examination of the equation for FNL will reveal that it is an average of acoustical energies. Thus, it is possible that two fleets might have the some average noise level, but could produce different levels of total acoustical energy. In other words, two airlines or airports might have the same FNL, but one of them might have a much greater number of operations. A measure that would be sensitive to differences in total energy is the Airport Noise Index (ANI) which approximates day-night sound level calculated without the night weighting. ANI is calculated by the following formula:

> ANI = FNL + 10 log (D/365) + 53 where: ANI = airport noise index in dB FNL = fleet noise level in dB D = number of yearly departures.

1

Delegan internet and the state of a comparison of the comparison of the state of the state of the state of the

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) provides information on noise levels produced by all aircraft in service in the U.S. airline fleet at the three measuring points specified in Federal Air Regulation (FAR) Part 36: sideline, takeoff, and approach. Noise levels are provided for alternative engine installations in the same model of aircraft. Since this information is much more detailed than the aircraft information given in Reference 2, which does not give the engines installed in the aircraft types, it is necessary to use both a maximum and a minimum value for calculating FNLs. These values are the levels for the noisiest and quietest engine installations, so that the total range of variation in noise levels for a particular type of aircraft can be covered. Thus, a maximum and minimum FNL is found for each of the FAR Part 36 measuring points, a total of six FNL values for each airport. Further, it is possible to calculate an ANI value corresponding to each FNL, a total of 12 noise measures. It was felt important to include all 12 measures in the initial data base because it was impossible to predict what intercorrelations might exist among them or how they might contribute to the definition of airport categories.

3-4

and the second s

<u>Selected Socio-Economic and Demographic Variables</u>. In addition to the aircraft operations and noise level data, consideration of certain socioeconomic and demographic variables was necessary in developing distinct categories of airports. That is, airport noise is a problem only if there is an impact on the surrounding population. The representative airport, then selected, should be presented not only in terms of noise levels, but in terms of population exposed and the demographic characteristics of this population as well. Only in this manner can the Rport concept be effectively used to project national and airport-specific data on the benefits of noise control actions.* The variables selected for inclusion into the aircraft/airport data base were obtained from the FAA's Airport Information File (AIF).** These variables included:

- Total population
- Number of households in 1975
- Total number of incomes
- Total number of homes
- Total number of renters
- Average home value

і. П

Solar States and a state and a state of the states of the

- Average monthly rent
- Population change from 1970 to 1975
- Population growth rate.

Values for each of the variables were determined for areas within a five-mile and a ten-mile radius of the airport center and are based on 1970 census data, except where indicated otherwise. The five-mile radius was used because it

*The integration of noise and demographic factors represents a major improvement on prior studies employing the Rport concept. For example, in Reference 4, four Rport classes were developed according to aircraft types using the air carrier airports. Sample airports from each class were then selected based on operational characteristics (e.g., runway length, day/night distribution of operations, etc.) and number of airport operations. The character of the surrounding communities/population was not a factor in final Rport selection.

**A computer tape of the AIF was obtained from the FAA and installed on the EPA's NCC computer system. A description of the elements of the AIF is presented in Reference 5.

3-5

included the areas that would be most severely affected by noise, and the ten-mile radius was used because it is about the limit of noise effects.

Data were extracted from the AIF for only those airports with scheduled commercial jet operations, for the noise effects of propeller aircraft are slight in comparison to jet aircraft. It was found that the AIF contained information for 298 airports which meet this criterion.

<u>Airport/Aircraft Parameters Specific To Each Airport</u>. A number of variables which were considered to be airport-specific were obtained from the AIF and included in the airport/aircraft data base. These parameters were:

- Number of miles from the airport to the nearest city
- Airport area in square miles
- Number of hard surface runways
- Number of IFR runways

While a first in the first in the second second

- Length of longest runway
- Practical daily operations capacity
- Number of hours open per day.
- Number of cargo operations during the time period from 1990 to 2159
- Number of scheduled jet operations during the time period from 1990 to 2159
- •. Number of scheduled jet operations per day (24 hour period)
- Number of 4-engine narrow body operations during the time period from 0700 to 2159
- Number of 4-engine narrow body operations during the time period from 2200 to 0659
- Number of 4-engine wide body operations during the time period from 0700 to 2159
- Number of 4-engine wide body operations during the time period from 2200 to 0659.

المتعا الجيد المحادية المتدهم الحا

These variables comprise almost all of the airport-specific variables in the AIF that appeared to hold at least some promise for contributing to a definition of airport categories. An attempt was made to use a few other variables in the AIF (such as computed daily fuel consumption and noise exposure forecast), but they proved to contain so many missing values that they could not be used.

<u>Combined Airport/Aircraft Data Base</u>. The airport/aircraft data obtained from the AIF and the AAS file were combined to form a single data base. The combination of the two files resulted in a data base representing 277 airports. The number of airports contained in the data base was reduced to 236 by considering only those airports which handled four (4) or more scheduled large jet (greater than 75,000 pounds) operations per day. Less than four flights per day would not constitute a noise problem. These 236 airports accounted for over 10 million air carrier operations performed in calendar year 1979, or about 95 percent of the total jet operations.

Input Data Required to Run the FAA's INM

The FAA's INM is a collection of computer programs which can calculate the aircraft noise environment in the vicinity of an airport given certain information concerning airport location, layout, and the type and movement of its air traffic. The resulting noise environment can be described in either tabular or graphic form (see Table 3.1 and Figure 3.1).

The INM user is required to provide at least five and up to ten types of data describing the airport and its associated activity in order to run the model. Required data include the following:

- Airport altitude and temperature
- Runway configuration (number, length, and orientation)
- Flight track definition
- Approach profiles

Contraction of the second

معصيد معادية والما أرديه ومالك

Traffic mix (distribution of operations by aircraft type).

والمرابعة المعادية ومنافعهم وتوجر مركبون كوكيا تعاملهم

TABLE 3-1 EXAMPLE OF TABULAR PRESENTATION OF INM RESULTS

.

FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION INTEGRATED NOISE MODEL 2. 7 EXAMPLE AIRPORT SCENARIO

_												-		-
7		t		Ţ		7		T	CONTOUR	1		Ť		1
÷	PNT	-	Y	Ť	¥	Ŧ	LON	÷	AREA	Ŧ	FLTS	ī	ITERATIONS	t
Ť		÷	- 1856D	Ť	coógo.	Ŧ	CECTRELS.	Ŧ	S0. MT.	Ŧ	USED	Ŧ		ŕ
1														
7	1.5.1	1	25.5	1	7164.0		75.10	Ť	3.37	Ť	23	Ŧ	7	f
÷	100	Ť	2344 78.7	÷	4 4 1 4 . 9	÷	75.57	Ŧ	3.37	÷	23	÷	7	Ŧ
÷	103	÷	-219.9	Ť	4797.9	÷	74.55	Ť	7,35	÷	23	÷	7	Ŧ
÷	430	÷	-617 0	-		÷	77672	÷	T 19	÷	22	÷	7	÷
+	100	-		÷	2770 C C	÷	74 69	÷	3.32	÷	22	Ŧ	7	÷
+	100	- 1		+	367107	÷	74476	÷	2 9 7	÷	42	Ť	E .	÷
÷	- 14 C	+	-1663 3	+	732247	÷	73911	÷	2 74	Ŧ	25	÷		*
+	190	+	-10/0 C	4 #	11 6 4 6 3 8 1 6 - A	+	74870	÷.	J # 64 7 0 1	÷	41	÷	E	Ť
+	100	-	-2040 7	-	731267	÷	(4072 70 81	÷.	Jagi 7 40	÷	42	÷	-	Ŧ
÷.	103	÷		4	74104/	4		\$	2017	+	42	÷	7	÷
+	171	+		1	7553.47	÷	79472	+	3417	Å.	43	÷	+ 1	1. 7
Ť	111	+	-2146.5	+	97494/ 6880 4	Ť	73498	÷	2+22	+	22	+	1.2	i T
÷.	112	+	-1532.0	ļ	6737.03	÷		÷.	2e20	+	22	+	6	÷
÷.	113	1	-1137+3	+	2523141	+	/4472	1	2434	÷	22	÷		÷
Ţ	114	1	=/21+/	Ť	(378 • 4	Ŧ	75+81	÷.	2037	1	22	÷	(-
T.	115	1	#282+2	1	6928 - 0	1	75+61	1	3.44	÷.	22	4		- -
÷	115	1	157+8	1	5213•7	1	75+00	1	3.49	Ţ.	23	÷.		1 T
I	117	T.	524 .3	1	5543.2	I.	74	ī	3.54	1	23	7	7	
Ī	118	I	1585.1	Ĩ	4869+8	1	74 + 57	1	3.64	1	23	1	7	
Ī	119	I	1611.0	I	4246.9	. I	74+98	I	3.66	I	23	Ţ	7	
Ī	120	Ī	2150.1	Ī	3633+5	Ī	75+65	Ī	3 • 72	I	23	Ī	7	
Ī	121	Ī	2740.9	Ī	3372+4	I	74.58	I	3.78	Ī.	23	Ī	, 7	[
Ī	122	Ï	3263.6	I	2449.7	Ι	74 - 9 9	Ĭ	3.83	Ï	23	I	7	[
Ī	123	I	3836+5	Ī	1871+9	I	74+58	Ī	3.85	Ī	23	Ī	7	ſ.,
I	124	I	4583.7	I	1548+3	I	74 + 9 7	I	3-94	I	23	I	7	[
I	125	I	5197.4	Î	1541+4	I	74 + 9 7	1	3.96	T.	23	1	7	[
I	126	I	6211+4	I	1640.6	I	74 . 5 2	Ī	3-98	T	23	I	Ę 1	
1	127	I	7922-2	I	1926.4	I.	74.58	I,	4 + 01	I	23	I	7	[
I	129	I	7837.1	I	1540.6	I	74.58	I	4 . 13	I.	22	I	7	
Ι.	129	I	9649.4	T.	1699.5	I.	74 • 9 8	Ī	4.05	Ť.	23	1	7 1	
I	130	I	9448 • 7	I	1759#1	Ι	74 . 98	I	4.05	Ι.,	23	I	7 !	
I	131	1	10244.9	I	1947.9	T	74.55	I	4 - 64 '	I	2 3	I	7 1	
I	132	1	11926.1	I	1718+4	1	74 •9 6	1	4+11	I	23	Ī	7 1	
I	133	1	11707-1	I	1274+3	I	74.95	Î	4.22	I	23	I	7 1	
1	134	I	12403.6	I	853.4	I	74_99	I	4.32	Í	23	I	7 I	,
I	135	I	13183.0	I	622.0	I	74。9月	I	4.39		23	I	7 1	•
1	136	I	13984.3	1	447.7	I	74.56	Ī	4.44	T	23	I	5 1	
1	137	1	14770.5	I	227.3	I	74.95	I	4.55	ĩ	· 23	I	7 1	
I	138	I	15468.7	I	0.0	I.	75.02	I	4.56	I	23	I	1 1	

END

and the second second

3-8

~ ~ ~ ~ ~





.

anna 1656, airte Marson

In addition to the required data, the user must also provide information related to runway utilization and the distribution of aircraft operations by operation type (takeoff or landing), time of day, and, for takeoff operations, the trip length. Details concerning the INM input data coding format and other data requirements are discussed in Reference 6.

Most of the required INM data was obtained from the AIF and the AAS computer files. Data base management programs were used to extract information from both the AIF and the AAS and to generate data base files. Information presented in Reference 7 and 8 were also used to supplement or to verify data obtained from the AIF.

Data Obtained From the AIF. The data extracted from the AIF included:

- Runway altitude
- Airport latitude and longitude
- Variation between magnetic north and true north
- Distribution of aircraft departures by aircraft type, by trip length and by time of day
- Runway configuration.

and the second second

An example of the presentation format used to display the INM data obtained from the AIF is shown on Table 3.2. As can be seen from Table 3.2, the distribution of aircraft departures is given only in terms of generic aircraft types, e.g., 2ENBDA means a 2-engine narrow body operation performed during the day. Also, the airport runway end-points are defined in terms of latitude and longitude. In preparing INM input data, the latitude and longitude values were converted to X-Y coordinate points with the airport latitude and longitude as the coordinate system center.

Data Obtained From the AAS File. The AAS file presents operations data for general classes of aircraft and does not provide a distribution of operations by aircraft/engine configuration. Therefore, in order to utilize the data contained in the AAS file, the AAS aircraft classes were matched with the aircraft types considered in INM. The aircraft types included in the AAS file and their corresponding INM aircraft types, AIF generic types, and INM

3-10

أيريهم المحمد المترج والمراج والمرجو والمحافظ فالعادة

		Τi	ABLE 3-	-2	
EXAMPLE	OF	THE	ALAMO	REPORT	OUTPUT

•••••••• DENDGRAPHIC, NOISE, EXPOSURE REPORT ALAND ... AIRPORT: WASHINGTON NATIONAL AIRPORT Cormunity: Washington, DC DETARTS ALL DETARTS

1 T. DERCERARNIC, MARTANIES	1	NDISE	0 U E	TO AI	RPDRT	. LD.	1
I 1970 OF AS MOTED	1 30 - 35	1 95 - 40	1 60 - 45	1 43 - 70	1 70 - 75	1 75 - 80	OVER BO
I SELF-HOISE, LDHCLICZI	1 1 N	1 53	i 1 92	1 20 1	1 51	47	41
INPACTED POPILI	1 0	478133	1 100823	I 44994	1 1 26560	I 1 0273	I I 735
AREA, SQ PN		237.74	107.70	37.14	17.68	11.21	
TAT POP / SA KN	c	2011	1751	1062	1902	999	I I Baŭ
AVG GROWTH RATES APR	٥		9		-1.5		-2.9
PET FAMILY POPULATION	и	84.0	- 79.1	66.1	60.7		24.1
AVG AGE, ADULTS > 17 -	T	41	40	40	34	38	21
PCT 448 45+	a		* • 7.8	9.6	10.2	7+5	- 1.4
PCT 10+ TRS ED(3)	u	21.4	24.7	34-1	33.4	23.4	28.8
FCT AGR/PROF	*	31.5	37.5	44.3	43.5	27.5	49.0
AVG FAMILT INCOME		14400	15773	17143 1	19893	12048	19585
I PCT SINGLE FAM DAL		44.8	40.0	34-1	30.1	36.7	9.4
PCT HOME OWNERS	• i	71.4	74.4	. 64.Z	98.1	52.1	0_0
ANE MONE ATTNE	- u 🛔	30546 1	. 33+00 İ	- 33702 I	34065	29913	a
РСТ НИ ИЛТИ АРС '	-н і	47.6	· • • • • •	49.2 1	55.4	Z8.4 1	96.5
РСТ ИН WITH ТУ Т	1 9	49.4 I	89.7	44.4 I I	47.0 I I	83.4	40.4

-

(1) AASED ON 1977 POPULATION DATA (2) BASED ON POPULATION, AFTER GALLOWAT (3) ADULTS 25 TEARS OLD OR GLOSE

we are the first when the set of the second
3-11

and the second s

.

1 .

A CONTRACT CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACT OF

aircraft IDs are shown on Table 3.3. Based on a format similar to that shown in Table 3.3, aircraft operations data were generated from the AAS file.

<u>INM Input Data Preparation</u>. Using the data obtained from the AIF and the AAS file, aircraft operations data were computed for each airport considered. The determination of the number of operations for a given aircraft type at each airport was based on the operations data obtained from the AAS file, and the distributions (on a percentage basis) of operations obtained from the AIF. It should be noted that the AIF provided operations data related to trip length and time of day for each aircraft type but did not provide information related to runway utilization. In preparing the INM data bases, aircraft operations were uniformly distributed over all runways which were commensurate with the aircraft's performance characteristics.

The flight tracks used for baseline INM runs were assumed to be straight-in and straight-out (i.e., no turns were performed during the take-off or landing operations). Also, the take-off flight procedure and noise technology were those internal to the INM.

A standard 3 degree glide slope was assumed for landing operations. The operational procedures used during landing operations consisted of the following:

- Descent at approach flaps from 5000 feet above the airport to 1000 feet above the airport.
- At 1000 feet above the airport, landing flaps are selected and held until the end of the touchdown roll.
- At touchdown, reversal thrust is applied and the aircraft is decelerated to 32 knots (KTAS).

The thrust and velocity parameters used with the standard 3 degree glide slope landing procedure are part of the INM's internal data. Details concerning the INM's internal data bases are described in Reference 6.

3-12

- المحمد ويورونون والروا بيواليه للمحمر مراجع الم

With the state of the

Aircraft Types (Per AAS)	Aircraft Type <u>(Per_INM)</u>	AIF Aircraft Types	INM Aircraft ID
A-300B	A300	2EWB	20
B-707-100 B-707-300	707-120/320	4ENB	. 13
8-707-1008	707-120B	4ENB	8
B-707-300B B-707-300C	707-320B/C	4ENB	7
B-720B	7208	4ENB	9
B-727-100 B-727-100C	727-100	3ENB	6
8-727-200	727 W/SAM	2CNR	30
8-727-200	727 ADV.W/S	JEND	33
8-737-200 8-737-200C	737 W/SAM	2ENB	29
8-747	747-100	4 EWB	26
B-747C B-747F	747 STR -	4 EWB	27
B-747 SP	747-200	4 EWB	25
BAC-111-200	BAC-111	2ENB	3
DC-8-10/20/30	DC-8-30	4ENB	15
DC-8-50 DC-8-50F	DC-8-55	4ENB	10
DC-8-61 DC-8-62 DC-8-63F	DC-8-61/63	4ENB	11
DC-9-10	DC-9-15	2ENB	2
DC-9-30	DC-9-32	ZENB	1
00-9-30	UC-9 W/SAM	2ENB	28
00-10-10	00-10-20	3508	
00-10-40	STRETCH	3FWB	24
1011	1.1011	3EWB	22

TABLE 3-3 AIRCRAFT CLASSIFICATION FOR INM RUNS

A COMPANY AND A 199

and the second
2

م معد معامل معلم المعالي في عالم المحال المراجع . 21 م م م موال المحال المراجع المحال المحا

Input Data Required to Run The ALAMO

The ALAMO is an automated mathematical model which assesses the noise impact of airport operations on a given airport community. It conducts an analysis of descriptive information relative to the airport configuration, location and flight operations; noise contour data which reflects the airport community as a whole and for each of the octants defined by super-imposing a circle divided radially into eight equal parts on the community, centered at the airport.

A major task performed by the ALAMD is the generation of noise contour data. These contour data are developed using the FAA's INM. Therefore, a complete INM input data base is one requirement to run the ALAMD.

Other required input data include the latitude and longitude of the airport center (obtained from the AIF), the state in which the airport is located and two adjacent states. Using these data, ALAMO utilizes a demographic retrieval system called SITE II* to obtain a variety of information concerning the airport community extracted from the 1970 Census of Population and Housing.

PRIORITY RUNWAY AND FLIGHT TRACK STRATEGY

Generalized studies of aircraft noise impact on areas near airports when made in an effort to predict areas and population within specified contours, normally assume approach and departure flight paths on extended runway centerlines and aircraft operations distributed equally on all runways appropriate for those operations. The reason for these generalizations is that the selection of optimum distribution of operations on runways and of optimum ground tracks to fly over the minimum number of people is a timeconsuming and therefore expensive task when a large number of airports are involved. In this study, calculations were made for 10 airports to determine

*SITE II is a proprietary demographic data base developed by CACI, Inc.

3-14

and the second of the second
and an and a second
the percent reduction of the number of people within specified contours when preferential runways and flight tracks were used. These data were then extrapolated to obtain a percent reduction in the number of people exposed to specified aircraft noise levels in the whole system of airports.

Priority Runways

ģ

In developing a runway priority system for an airport, the population distribution around the airport was studied with an estimated L_{dn} 65 dB contour for all of the airport operations in mind. This study was made using U.S. Geological Survey maps with a scale of 1:24,000. These maps are kept current by overprinting the latest changes indicated by aerial photographs. Urban areas are shown in pink and updating revisions are shown in purple with individual buildings identified. The selection of the first priority runway is obvious if the extended centerline of one runway is over water, swamps/desert or underdeveloped farmland while the others are over urban or developed areas. However, if the urbanization is equal in all directions, there is little to be gained in reducing total population noise exposure by using one runway more than another. The total area within a given contour for a fixed set of operations is roughly the same regardless of the distribution of these operations on the several runways at an airport.

Points to remember in selecting priority runways and ground tracks are, first, that even though the contour may extend over residential areas in all directions, perhaps the tips or a significant part of the contour may extend beyond the residential area in one or more directions. Second, the flight track can be curved away from residential areas after the initial take-off and climb.

Runways in this study are identified as first priority, second priority, third priority, etc., on the basis of minimizing the number of people within the L_{dn} 65 dB contour. Most of the operations are on the first priority runway or on the first and second priority runways. The operations on the third and forth priority runways are small.

The distribution of operations on these runways is based on wind velocity and direction. The FAA has determined that aircraft may use a

3-15

15 knots (Reference 11). Information on wind velocity and direction has been obtained from the Department of Commerce's Airport Climatological Summaries for each airport (Reference 12). The data used in this study are from the "annual" Table 11A for each airport. Since Instrument Flight Rules (IFR) weather conditions, which might require the use of a different runway, exist for a small portion of the time it is assumed that the same runways would be used under IFR as under all weather conditions.

The first priority runway is used under all conditions except when the tail wind is more than 5 knots or the crosswind is more than 15 knots. The weather data indicate the percent of time that the wind is at each of sixteen points of the compass and is in one of nine wind velocity ranges. When the angle between wind direction and take-off heading (a) is less than 90° conditions are acceptable, except when the crosswind component (wind velocity times sin (a) is more than 15 knots. When the wind is more than 90° from the take-off heading, an additional limitation is that the tailwind component (wind velocity times cos (a) may not be more than 5 knots. On this basis, all time intervals in the annual Table 11A for the airport are assigned to the first priority runway if the mid-wind velocity for the band meets the above acceptable criterion. The total of these time intervals indicates the percent of the time when the first priority runway can be in use. It is assumed that operations on that runway are the same percent of the total operations as the percent time that the runway is in use.

The next step is to consider the percent time when the second priority runway can be used, looking only at the time intervals which have not already been assigned to the first priority runway. This usually results in a much smaller percent of time for second priority runway use. Continuing the process, still smaller times or zero times are assigned to the third and fourth priority runways.

It should also be noted that if the first or other priority runway cannot take all of the aircraft using the airport, the priority assignments must be limited to those aircraft which can use the priority runway. However, the problem of reassignment from the priority runway was rarely encountered in this study.

3-16

والمحاور والأعلى وأرغب والمراجع والمحاور والمحاور والمحاور والمحاور والمحاور

. Na balan da kana mananda ka ka ka ka ka ka na na na na na manana na manana na manana na manana na manana manana

Curved Flight Tracks

In many cases, it is possible for the aircraft to turn away from densely populated areas and thereby significantly reduce the total number of people impacted by aircraft noise at a given level. Curved ground tracks have been used in conjunction with priority runways developed on the basis of visual inspection of the Geological Survey Maps mentioned above. Turns are made only at altitudes and airspeeds greater than 500 feet and v_2 10 and at bank angles no greater than 15⁰ as recommended by the FAA in their Advisory Circular 91-50 (Reference 13). The radius of the turn is calculated using the formula:

 $R = v^2/g \tan \theta$

where: v = aircraft flight speed

g = acceleration of gravity

= angle of bank.

As an example, an aircraft with an altitude of 500 feet or more and at a V_2 + 10 speed of 145 knots could make a turn with a radius as small as 7000 feet.

AIRPORT DATA BASE ANALYSIS

And a start of a second and a second

In addition to the AIF variables identified previously, 16 additional variables were calculated for the data base by transforming the original variables. The new variables thus created are given in the following list:

Log of the total population at 5 miles and 10 miles

Log of the number of households at 5 miles and 10 miles

Log of the total number of incomes at 5 miles and 10 miles

Log of the total number of homes at 5 miles and 10 miles

3-17

- Log of the total number of renters at 5 miles and 10 miles
- Log of the total number of departures per year
- Log of the number of scheduled jet operations per 24-hour period (from AAS)
- Log of the number of 4-engine narrow body operations during the time period from 0700 to 2159
- Log of the number of 4-engine wide body operations during the time period from 0700 to 2159
- Square root of the airport area
- Number of scheduled jet operations per 24-hour period divided by practical daily operations capacity (airport utilization).

These variables were added because some transformation of a variable will frequently bear a closer relation to a criterion than the original variable.

At this point the data base contained 236 airports with measurements on 56 variables for each airport. An obvious first question concerning the data base is: What are the interrelationships among these variables? The data base contained 56 variables, but undoubtedly some of them were so highly correlated with each other that only relatively few sources of variation are represented by them.

The procedure chosen to approach this problem was "factor analysis". Factor analysis basically takes a matrix of the correlations of each variable with every other variable and resolves it into independent factors that comprise the variables in the matrix. A number of +1.0 through -1.0 is calculated for each variable with respect to each factor. This number is referred to as the loading of the variable on the factor.

In this study, factor analysis was used as an aid to making more informed choices concerning which variables to use in deciding how many

للاقتدادي والمودات

The state of the second state and the second state and the second second second second second second second sec

3-18

categories the airports should be segregated into and in deciding which airports should go into which categories. Used in this fashion, factor analysis provided a rough guide for winnowing the variables down to a reasonable number to work with and for choosing variables that showed the most promise for making useful discriminations among airports.

The number of factors was increased from one through ten in one-factor steps to explore how the variables grouped with each successive increase in the number of factors An excerpt from a typical result is shown in Table 3.4 to provide an idea of how the variables grouped themselves.

The results shown in Table 3.4 may be interpreted in the following way. Factor 1 could be described as related to the total acoustic energy produced by airport operations. Factor 2 appears to be related to demographic features (number of people) of the area surrounding the airport. Factor 3 appears to be related to economic aspects (amount of money) of the area surrounding the airport. Factor 4 appears to be related to the activity of the airport. Factor 5 appears to be related to the average acoustic energy emitted by airport operations, and Factor 6 is evidently related to the growth of the area.

A relatively small number of variables was picked from the original set for use in determining airport categories. The reduced set of variables included the following:

- Jet operations day-night
- Log jet operations day-night
- De part un es

the statistic and an owner

- Log departures
- Number of IFR runways
- Total population at five miles
- Total population at ten miles
- Households in 1975 at five miles
- Households in 1975 at ten miles
- Average income at five miles
- Average home value at five miles

3-19

TABLE 3-4

EXAMPLE GROUPS OF VARIABLES RESULTING FROM FACTOR ANALYSIS

FACTOR Variable	1	2	3	4	5	6
tee doorantumo	0.00	•	•	*	• •	
Log departure	0.08					
.Mean ANI	0.88					
Log jetops day night	0.82		*	*	*	
Total rents ten mi	*	0.96	*	*	*	*
Total incoms five mi	*	0.96	*	*	*	*
Households 75 five mi	. *	0.96	+	•	*	*
Total pop five mi	*	0.96	*	*	*	*
Households 75 ten mi	• •	0.93	*	*	*	*
Total pop ten mi	•	0.922	*	*	*	*
Pop change ten mi	*	0.88	*	*	*	*
Average income five mi	*	* , *	0.89	*	*	*
Average home val five mi	*	*	0.86	*	*	*
Average home val ten mi	*	*	0.83	*	#	*
Log total pop five mi	*	*	0.83	*	*	*
Average rent five mi	*	*	0.83	• *	*	*
Log households 75 five mi	*	*	0.82	*	*	*

* r < 0,50

and the low first the basis of the second second

3-20

معرهيمة والانتهامي بشرك بمرادق

وراريه والمرود والمسترجع

TABLE 3-4 (Cont.)

Factor Variable	1	2	3	4	5	6
Average rent ten mi	*	*	0.82	*	*	*
Jet ops day night	*	*	*	0.73	*	*
Departures	*	+	+	0.70	*	*
Mean FNL	*	*	*	*	0.82	#
Growth at five miles	*	*	*	*	*	0.81
Growth at ten miles	*	+	•	*	*	0.72

3-21

ماديد المربعة ومربه والأم أحد الم

ومعمدتين

9 2 265/1404

- Growth at five miles
- Mean ANI
- Mean FNL.

These variables appeared to represent a reasonable sample of the characteristics of airports and the areas surrounding them because the important aspects of the process of noise generation by the airport and the important aspects of the residential area surrounding the airport were represented in the data. Jet operations, day-night departures, and number of IFR runways are related to one aspect of noise generation (airport activity). Mean FNL is related to the noise characteristics of the fleet using the airport, and mean ANI, log departures, and log jet operations represent a mixture of airport activity and fleet characteristics. Total population at five and ten miles, and number of households in 1975 at five and ten miles are related to noise exposure, and average income at five miles and average home values at five miles are related to the wealth of the exposed population. Growth at five miles is probably related to both impacted population and its wealth.

REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT CATEGORY SELECTION

With the number of variables reduced to a manageable number, the approach taken to segregate airports into categories was to use different combinations of variables and number of categories until something approaching an optimal combination of categories and variables appeared to be achieved.

The technique used for determining the number of categories and assigning airports to them was the "K-means algorithm" (Reference 9). The optimal combination was the use of six categories with the airports assigned by seven variables. The variables were:

- Total population at five miles
- Households in 1975 at ten miles
- Average income value at five miles

Construction of the second second second

- Departures
- Mean FNL
- Mean ANI

والمستعمل والمعادية والمعارية المعادية والمعارية والمعارك والمعاركين والمراجع والمعاركين والمعارية والمتحافظ

Log jet operations day-night.

3-22

فللمطلق ويربي المراجع والمراكب والمركب والمراجع المراجع والمركب المؤلف والمركب المطلب والمحافظ

Many different combinations of variables and categories were tested and compared, and several criteria were used in evaluating them. Discussion of the process of arriving at the final categorization follows.

Internal Consistency

Internal consistency was the primary criterion of evaluating the results of a particular combination of variables and categories. This was approached in two ways. First, plots of the location of airports with respect to the categories were examined. The plot of the final categorization is shown in Figure 3.2. The figure shows the multivariate distance* of each airport from the means of its own category with respect to every other category projected on a plane that passes through the centers of three categories. Combinations that result in plots showing lesser amounts of overlap among categories were considered to be more internally consistent. In other words, relatively simple lines could be drawn in Figure 3.2 that would separate each category from all others.

Another measure of internal consistency involved ranking the categories with respect to the variables. Each category of airport has a mean value of all of the variables used in the analysis. The categories were ranked with respect to each variable, and a sum and mean of ranks was found. This information is shown for the final categorization in Table 3.5, and, again, it shows a consistent relationship among the categories.

Qualitative Considerations

1420

1971 - N. H.

÷.

Sector and a sector

Another criterion, which was less quantitatively defined but of no less importance in evaluating the variables that went into the categorization process, was relevance to the aim of the project to produce noise exposure estimates. Thus, when the list of variables in Table 3.5 is examined, a rough

^{*}This distance is the positive square root of the sum of the squared distances from the centers of the category (the means of all seven variables for that category) to the airport (the observed values on all seven variables for that airport).





*Category 1 contained only one airport and is not shown here.

3-24

CATEGORY						
VARIABLE	1	2	3	4	5	6
Total population at five miles	2	1	3	4	6	• 5
Number of house- holds in 1975 at ten miles	2	1	3	4	5	6
Average home value at five miles	2	1	4	3	6	5
Number of departures	1	2	3	4	5	6
Mean FNL	1	6	2	4	3	5
Mean ANI	1	2	3	4	5	6
Log jet oper- ators, day-night	1	2	3	4	5	6
Sum of ranks	10	15	21	27	36	38

.

TABLE 3-5 RANK OF AIRPORT CATEGORIES ON THE SIX VARIABLES USED IN THE FINAL CLASSIFICATION

3-25

فالمحاوية والمحاوري بالربي والموافرين ووالالمقاد عا

.

sort of weighting can be seen in the number of each type of variable included in the final set. Two variables (population and households) represent the number of people around the airports, and another two variables (airport noise index and log of the jet operations) represent generated noise weighted by the activity of the airport. Four of the seven variables, then, represent the most important aspects of noise exposure. The inclusion of departures gives some weighting to airport activity alone, and FNL gives some weighting to an average noise level alone. Finally, the inclusion of average home value gives some weighting to the value of the property in the exposed area.

Sensitivity to Changes

Although this was not of major importance, some consideration was given to the effects changing the variables and the number of categories.

<u>Variables</u>. Minor changes in the variables produced little or no change in the categories. For example, it made no difference whether population at five or ten miles were included; either one gave the same results. Growth was not included in the final set of variables because it appeared to have no effect on the categorization.

<u>Number of Categories</u>. If more than six categories were used, no change was seen in the categories whose members included the larger airports. The only effect seen was to divide the categories containing the smaller airports into smaller and smaller categories as the number of categories was increased. There seemed to be little value in making fine discriminations between airports that constitute a relatively insignificant part of the airport noise problem.

RPORT DETERMINATION

The superior of the second sec

The preceding discussion, although important in its own right in some respects, is merely prologue to the actual determination of Rports to represent categories of airports.

A total of 71 airports were selected from the 236 airports and six (6) airport categories for ALAMD computer runs. The airports selected from

معتقر وبيري المراد الأربان الروار ويراعبون المتواد فعقف

each category were those airports identified as being closest to the category cluster mean*, except for categories A and B, in which all of the airports were analyzed. The percentage of airports selected from each Rports category (for ALAMO runs) was based on the relative percentage of total annual (1979) aircraft operations and the average surrounding airport population associated with each Rports category. That is, a larger percentage of the airports in airport categories A and C were selected for ALAMO runs as compared with the percentage of airports selected from categories D, E, and F.** This selection criterion appeared reasonable since it was expected that the major proportion of the national noise exposure would be due to aircraft operations at those airports included in categories A to C.

The distribution of the 71 airports by Rport category is presented in the following table.

Distribution by Rport Category										
Rport	Number of Airports .	Number of Airports								
<u>Category</u>	in the Category	Selected for ALAMO Runs								
A	13	13								
В С D E	44 71 15	21 20 6								
F	<u>92</u>	<u>10</u>								
TOTAL	2 36	71								

Methodology Used to Select Rports

1月1日(開展の日本時間にいたが今年時2月1日また。

44.5

And the South Andreases

Airport community noise impact reports were generated for most of the 71 airports. However, for five (5) of the airports in airport category E, no

* Airport category B contained only one airport, La Guardia.

**To be more precise, the airports ranked by the multivariate sum of squared deviations from all of the category means. The airports with the lowest multivariate sums of squares were selected.

3-27

والمستعمل والمستعمل والمستعمل والمراجع المتعار والمراجع والمحاج والمحاج المتعار والمحاج والمحاجر والمحاج

demographic data were reported. For many of the other 66 airports, no demographics were reported for entire octants or some of the $\rm L_{dn}$ contour bands.

The ALAMO noise impact reports for each of the 66 airports were used to determine the contour areas and the population enclosed within equal noise level bands of L_{dn} 65 dB to 75 dB and L_{dn} 75 and greater. The mean and the corresponding standard deviation of the areas and the population for these two noise contour bands were determined for each of the Rport categories using data for the individual airports in that Rport category.

The Rport selected to represent each airport was determined by comparing contour band values for area and population for each airport in the category with the Rport category limits, defined as the contour band mean plus or minus a fixed percentage of the standard deviation. The fixed percentage of the standard deviation was adjusted until all of the contour band values for one airport fell within the band limits. This airport was designated the Rport for the category considered. As an example of the Rport selection procedure, Table 3.6 presents a listing of the data used to determine the Rport representing Rport category A. The fixed percentage of the contour band standard deviation used in the Rport category A analysis was 50 percent.

Since many of the airports in Rport categories D, E, and F had no population within the 65 dB to 75 dB and 75 dB and greater contour bands, the selection of the Rports for these categories could not be made in accordance with the above procedures. After examining the noise impact data for the airports included in these airport categories, it was decided to omit categories E and F. The Rport representing category D was selected using a similar, but somewhat modified, procedure as that used to select Rport for categories A and C. The following table identifies the Rport representing each of the four (4) Rport categories:

3-28

the construction of the co

فحالك المربوع المربوع والمربوع والمربوع ويترون ويترون المستحا فالمتعادي

APT ID		ALAMO OUT	PUT			
	A SQ	REA . MI.	POPUL (PEO	ATION PLE)		
	65 to 75 dB	75 + dB	65 to 75 dB	75 + dB		
MIA	30.91	8.15	134011	7568		
BOS	26.57	6.07	203359	9341		
DEN	29.34	7.58	88029	6988		
STL	25.62	5.45	93346	11664		
LAX	40.66	11.34	204978	28859		
PHL	22.63	4.86	71556	2734		
SFO	33,10	7,65	58022	13802		
DFW	49.22	11.19	18250	0		
DCA	22.68	4,93	202464	3817		
EWR	19.62	4.54	120782	5277		
ORD	58.44	14.29	277801	10941		
ATL	65.98	16.15	44902	32389		
JFK	27.98	6.85	219940	6709		
MEAN	34.83	8.39	133649	10776		
σ (N-1)	14.56	3.75	80389	9604		
MEAN +0.500	42.11	10.27	173844	15578		
MEAN -0.500	27.55	6.52	93454	5974		

14.4

そうちゃうでもあい、ここでおいたかであってきるま

----- ma

Fight to be the second and

TABLE 3-6 RPORT DETERMINATION ANALYSIS: AIRPORT CATEGORY A

.

3-29

محمد بالألم الالمتهار هوم بالتواول والماقية

Rport	Selected
Category	<u>_Rport</u>
A	Miami, FL (MIA)
В	La Guardia, NY (LGA)
С	San Antonio, TX (SAT)

D

Walk

A complete listing of the 236 airports contained in the combined airport/aircraft data base is presented by Rport category in Table 3.7. The 71 airports selected for ALAMO runs are denoted by a single *; Rports are denoted by a double *.

Sioux Falls, SD (FSD)

was analysis and a classical series

	TABLE	3.7		
DISTRIBUTION OF	AIRPORTS	BY	RPORT	CATEGORY

Rport Category	APT ED.	Location	Rport Category	APT ID.	Location	Rport Category	APT 10.	Location	Rport Category	АРТ 10,	Location
A	ATL DFW LAX ORD DEN JFK SFO EYA BOS OCA MIA STL PIIL LGA	Atlanta, GF* Dallas, TA* Los Anglas, CA* Chicago, Ii* Deover, CA* Hew York, FY* San Francisco, CA* Hewark, H3* Boston, MA* Hestington, GC* Miami, Ft** St. Louis, MO* Philauelphia, FA*	c	JAX LAS MCI MCO MEM MKE MSP MSY OAK OKC QMA PDX PIIX PIT	Jacksonville, FL Lat Vegat, NV Kansas City, NO Ortanda, FL ^a Hemphis, TM ^a Hinnespolis, MM Han Orisans, LA ^a Oatland, CA Oktanoma City, OK ^a Onata, NB Vest Palm Beach, FL ^a Phoeniz, AZ Pittsburgh, PA		ALB BUR CAK CAK CAL FAL GRR GSO JAN JAN LEX	Albany, NY Bulrington, VT Aurgank, CA Akron, Oli Champa ign/URB, fL Dallas, TX Fairbanks, AK Grand Rapids, MI Graensboro, NC White Plains, NY Hild, HI Jackson, MS ⁴⁴ Juneau, AK Katchikan, AF Lexington, KY ⁴⁴	D	LAN DIL CRW DIS BOT FAR GRD COS SRQ CAE ICT SHY TOL FMY GEG	Lansing, M]* Gillings, MI* Charleston, SC Bismark, ND Bolss, JD* Fargo, ND Green Bay, W1 Colorado Springs, CO* Sarasota, FL* Columbia, SC Wichita, KS Shreveport, LA Toledo, DI* Ft. Neyers, FL Spokano, MA
C	DDL BNA BUF CLE CLT CVG DTH ELP FLL IAD IAD	Mindsor Lock, CT* Mindsor Lock, CT* Mashville, TM* Baftimore, MD* Claveland, OH Charlotte, MD Ciarlotte, MC Cincinnati, KY* Dayban, GH* Detroit, MJ El Paso, TF Ft. Laudertale, FL* Homolulu, YE Mashington, DC Houston, TR Indianapolis, 11*		TAN SAT SDF SEA SLC SNF SYR TPA TUS ABQ ANC	San Piego, CA San Aitonio, TX** Louisville, KY Seattie, HA* Sat Jose, CA Salt Lake City Sacramento, CA Syracuse, NY* Tampa, FL* Tuise, OK* Tuise, OK* Tuise, M* Albuquerque, IM* Anchorage, AK	0.	LGE LIII MDW NSN OGQ PSP SBA SBA SBA AUS MDB PYD DSM IIOU	Long Meech, CA Lihue, III Chičao, IL Madison, Mi* Kahului, III Palm Springs, CA Santa Barbara, CA Santa Ana, CA Austin, IX Moline, IL* Mobile, AL Providence, AI Des Noines, IA* Houston, TX		LIT RIC HRS TAJ ATR CID EUG RDA RDA RDA ADE	Little Rock, AR Richmond, VA Saginaw, HID Distol, JN* Datao, JN* Datao, AN* Cedar Rapids, IA* Eugena, DR* Raleigh-Durham, NC Roanoke, VA Knoxville, TN Allentown, PA

*Denotes airports selected for ALAHO computer runs

**Denotes Aport

Part film which we

	TABLE 3.7 (Cont.)	
DISTRIBUTION	OF AIRPORTS BY RPORT CATEGOR	ł

Rport Category	APT ID.	Location	Rport Category	APT ID,	Location	Rport Category	APT ID.	Location	Rport 'Category	APT ID.	Location
D	CHA DAU FSD ONT FSD ONT FSD GTF AVL FNT AVL FNT TLH GTF AVL FNT TLH CRF GSF GFK GLH KOA MSQ OME OTZ PIH STT STX SAV. SJU	Chattanooqa, TH Daytona Beach, FL Sioux, Falls, SD ^a Onterio, CA Portland, HE ^a Birminghar, AL Fayetteville, HC ^a Great Falls, NT Ashville, HC Flint, NI Peoria, IL Tallahassao, FL Hurtolk, VA Rochaster, HY Kodfak, AF Alexandria, LA Grand Forks, HD Greenville, HS ^a Kona Ke Atole Kallua-Kora, HI Missoula, MT ^a Home, AK Kottebue, AK ^a Pocatello, ID ^a Katiebue, AK ^a Focatello, SD ^a San Angele, TX ^a Cherlotte Amalie, VI Christiansted, VI Cavannah, GA San Juan, PR	F	ISO JLH LAH LAH LFT LHT LHT LHE LUD LWS HAF MGH MFR MGH MKG MKG MKG MKG MKG MKG MKG MKG MKG MKG	Kinston, NC Joplin, MO Lavton, OK Lake Cherles, LA Lafayetta, LA Klamath Falls, OR Lincoln, HE La Crosse, WI Lewiston, ID Hidland, TX Hacon, GA ^a McAilen, TX Medford, OR Montgomery, AL Montgomery, AL Montgo, LA Hinot, ND Harquette, MI Oshkosh, WI ^a Panama City, FL Pierre, SD ^a Parkersburg, WV Pensatola, FL Pasco, MA ^a Pueblo, CO Redding, CA Rockford, IL Rhinelander, WI	F	RST SDN SCK SLN SPT ABY ACS ALO AVP DGM GGR GGR GGR GGR GGR GGR CSG COU CPR CSG COU CPR CSG COU CPR CSG COU CPR FIN FOE FSIN GJT GJT GJT	Rochester, MN South flend, IN Stockton, CA Salina, KS Sapfingfield, LL Albany, GA ^A Arcata-Fureka, CA Agusta, GA Wilkes-Darrea, PA Wilkes-Darrea, PA Wilkes-Darrea, PA Wilkes-Darrea, PA Wilkes-Darrea, PA Wilkes-Darrea, PA Wilkes-Darrea, PA Wilkes-Darrea, PA Binghampton, NY Danggor, MY Columbus, GA Dacatur, IL ⁴ Duluth, MM Elmfra, NY Eria, PA Escanaba, MI Evanswille, IM Florence City, SC Topeka, KS Ft. Smith, AR Ft. Wayne, IM Grand Junction, CO Gainsville, FL	F	GPT HID HLM HTS TDA ILM SUX TCL VLD VLD VLD VLD VLD VLD VLD SGF SIT DHN CRP GTR LDD SGF SIT DHN CRP GTR LSP ITH	Guifort, MS* Hibbing, HM Hatan, MT Harisngen, TX Huntsville, AL Huntsville, AL Huntsville, AL Huntsville, AL Huntsville, AL Iraverse, Gity, HI Valdosta, GA Valparaiso, FL Yakima, WA* Abilene, TX Charlottasville, VA Newport News, VA Lubbock, TX Springfield, MO Heridian, AS Sitka, AK Dothan, AL Youngstown, OH Corpus Christi, TX Columbus, MS Amarillo, TX Isilp Ithaca, NY

.....

.

.

· -----

REFERENCES

小学的 化力力化分子 化分子输送分子输送分子 计分子分子 网络人名英格兰斯 计计算机转送机

- DeLoach R., <u>An Airport Community Noise-Impact Assessment Model</u>, NASA TM-80198, July 1980.
- U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>Airport Activity Statistics of Certificated Route Air</u> <u>Carriers, Calendar Year 1979 (AA)</u>, FAA/CAB Report December 1979, (Installed on IBM 370 at NCC).
- Benson, W. <u>User's Manual for Automated Calculation of Fleet Noise</u> <u>Level and Airport Noise Index</u>, ORI TR No. 1932, September 1981.
- Bartel, C. and L. Sutherland, <u>Noise Exposure of Civil Aircarrier</u> <u>Airplanes Through The Year 2000, Volume I: Methods, Procedures</u>, <u>Results</u>, prepared under EPA Contract No. EPA 550/9-79-313-1, February 1979.
- 5. Winer, D. E. and C. Wine, <u>Airport Information File for Analysis and</u> <u>Modeling</u>, paper presented at the International Conference on Air Quality and Aviation, October 16-18, 1978.
- Connor, T., R. Hinckly, et al, <u>INM, Integrated Noise Model, Version 2</u> <u>- User's Guide</u>, FAA Report FAA-EE-79-09, September 1979.
- U.S. DOC, <u>Airport/Facility Directory</u>, U.S. Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmosphere Administration, Washington, D.C., September/November 1978.
- 8. <u>ACPA's Airports U.S.A. 1979</u>, published by the Aircraft Owners and Pilots Association, Washington, D.C., 1979.
- 9. Hartigan, John A., <u>Clustering Algorithms</u>, Wiley Laboratories, 1975.
- NASA/LRC, <u>Airport Noise-Levels and Annoyance Model Execution</u>. <u>Procedures and Discussion</u>, report provided by NASA LRC, 1980.

3-33

A second se

IV. PROGRAM SCENARIO DEVELOPMENT

The benefits and costs associated with implementation of an airport noise soundproofing and relocation effort will vary depending on the assumptions employed regarding program content, eligibility, timing and funding. Practical implications of these assumptions are discussed in Chapter II. To quantify these benefits and costs on both an airport-specific and national basis, a methodology was developed which enabled an assessment of how noise impacts might change as program assumptions change. The culmination of the methodology was the development of a series of program scenarios which was used to assess:

- Changes in noise impacts associated with advances in aircraft source noise reduction
- Impacts of airport-environs land use controls as a means to minimize program costs and noise exposure impacts

50

State State State State

- Trade-offs available from soundproofing residences which might otherwise be candidates for relocation
- Implications of additional airport noise reduction alternatives involving preferential runway use, flight tracks and flight procedures.

4-1

This chapter presents an overview of the scenario development methodology. Chapter V describes the program scenarios and provides program cost summaries.

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS

Ronald services been a services a second second to a second second

The keystone of this analysis was the assumption that aviation noise is a serious problem at many of the Nation's commercial airports and that a concerted program of soundproofing and relocating private residences exposed to excessive airport noise levels is needed to address residual impacts. Residual impacts are defined as those remaining after reasonable noise control alternatives (such as alternate flight procedures, preferential runway use, etc.) are implemented.

Other general assumptions guiding scenario development were:

- All private residences within within specified noise contours (i.e., L_{dn} 65 to 75 dB and, as an option, L_{dn} 65 to 80 dB) will be candidates for soundproofing assistance.
- All private residences within other higher specified noise contours (i.e., L_{dn} 75+ or 80+ dB) will be candidates for relocation assistance.
- The program should apply to residences exposed to specified noise contours projected for the year 2000.
- The concept of representative airports, or "Rports", will be used to assess program issues and costs which might be faced by real airports.

The concept and derivation of a representative airport, instead of a pseudo-airport as used in some earlier studies, was explained in more detail in Chapter III. The use of representative airports enabled generation of fleet composition, program costing and other variables representative of the characteristics of real air carrier operations and the actual composition of communities affected by aircraft noise. However, it bears emphasis here that the analysis of a representative airport is not a substitute for noise

compatibility planning which must be undertaken by an actual airport. The reason is that it was not possible in the study methodology to incorporate the unique features of demographic and aircraft operational patterns extant at the airport. Rather, general patterns were employed to in essence bound the problems which may arise in planning for a comprehensive relocation and sound-proofing program.

FLEET FORECASTS

.:

Contraction of the

A

- -----

Concern over fuel efficiency and noise levels, coupled with advances in aeronautical technology, have lead to a changing mix of the Nation's air carrier fleet. Through the 1970's, the less fuel-efficient and noisier aircraft were gradually being replaced by new aircraft types which placed a premium on fuel economy and quieted engines. This pattern will continue into the future as older aircraft are retired from service and as new aircraft types are introduced into the market. The projected mix and number of aircraft operations in selected forecast years will have a direct bearing on the level of airport community noise exposure. Accordingly, the fleet mix was forecast for the years 1990, 2000 and 2030* in the aggregate and then for the four designated Rports. Baseline 1979 data were also developed for comparison purposes.

National Air Carrier Fleet Composition

The national air carrier fleet in 1979 consisted of 2,384 aircraft covering some 30 aircraft types (Reference 1). Aircraft types are grouped in Table 4.1 according to seven engine/body designations as follows:

- 2-engine, low by-pass ratio engine, narrow body (2LN)
- 3-engine, low by-pass ratio engine, narrow body (3LN)
- 4-engine, low by-pass ratio engine, narrow body (4LN)

*The forecast for the year 2030 is essentially a forecast for some date in the future when all aircraft in the air carrier fleet will meet FAR Part 36, Stage 3 noise limits.

4-3

ENGINE/ BODY DESIGNATION	AIRCRAFT NAME	DEPART- URES (1,000's)	NO. OF AIRCRAFT (by type)	APF ^{b)}	NO. OF AIRCRAFT (BY SERIES)
	737 W/SAM	515.3	206	2501	206
2LN	DC-9-15 DC-9-32 DC-9 W/SAM	250.1 750.1 166.5	381	3062	82 245 54
	BAC-111 DC-9-80a)	104.2	28	3721	28
<u>`</u>				2320	
3LN	727-100 727 W/SAM 727 ADV W/SAM	697.6 711.2 711.2	1029	2060	339 345 345
	707-120/320 707-1208 707-320 B/C	2.4 100.9 98.6	175	1154	2 [.] 87 86
4LN	720 B	7.7	7	1100	7
	DC-8-55 DC-8-61/63	40.6 89.1	188	709	57 126
	A-300	12.0	12	1000	12
280	A-310 a) B-767 a)	-	*	1825 1825	-
3HW	DC-10-10 DC-10-30 STRETCH	95.4 3.1 27.4	140	899	106 3 31
	L-1011	122.4	87	1407	87
4HW	747-100 747 STR 747-200	83.1 7.9 5.2	131	734	113 11 7
	B-747 TYPE a)	-	-	730	•
2HN	B-737-300 a) B-757 a)	•	-	2920 1825	-
TOTAL		4,605.6	2,384	1932	2,384

i

.....

TABLE 4.1 BASELINE 1979 AIRCRAFT FLEET

^a DENOTES new aircraft type after 1979. ^{b)}Aircraft Productivity Factor (APF) = Departures ÷ Number of Aircraft.

Bally of Contract we will also an article and an article and

- 2-engine, high by-pass ratio engine, wide body (2HW)
- 3-engine, high by-pass ratio engine, wide body (3HW)
- 4-engine, high by-pass ratio engine, wide body (4HW)
- 2-engine, high by-pass ratio engine, narrow body (2HN).

Available data on fleet composition was limited to general aircraft types and did not identify multiple series for any given type. A finer distinction was necessary, however, to convert the data to a form acceptable as input to the Integrated Noise Model. That is, the aircraft series within a given type exhibit different noise curves which in turn affect noise level predictions.

The number of aircraft by type and series was determined by comparing departure data for each series with the total for all series. For example, the Boeing 727 has three distinct series as shown in Table 4.1. Departures for each series in 1979 (Reference 2) were 697,600 for the 727-100, 711,200 for the 727 W/SAM* and 711,200 for 727 ADV W/SAM. Total 727 departures were 2,120,000. An Aircraft Productivity Factor, or APF, was calculated by dividing total 727 departures by the total number of aircraft of this type. The APF for the 727 is thus 2,060. It was assumed that the APF for a given aircraft type was constant for all aircraft represented in the series. Accordingly, the number of aircraft by series was determined by dividing departures for each series by the composite Aircraft Productivity Factor (see Table 4.1).

Aircraft fleet projections for the selected forecast years of 1990 and 2000 were based on a 1.7 percent annual growth in total aircraft from 1979 (Reference 3). These projections, however, understate the expected growth of commercial aviation. As mentioned, the less fuel-efficient aircraft are being replaced by advanced series. In addition, the average number of seats per aircraft is increasing, resulting in fewer departures and fewer total aircraft required to meet any given demand level. This factor is depicted in Tables 4.2 and 4.3 which group the air carrier fleet according to nominal seat capacity. Table 4.2 shows that in 1979 aircraft with nominal seat capacities of 140 or less comprised almost 80 percent of the total airc

2010/01/02

にいたという語言が、ことの言語がある。

والمعتمد ومعر مسترجع كمالي المراجع والمعتقي

*Denotes advanced design incorporating sound absorbent material, or "SAM". 4-5
Seat	No. of	l l		Number of	Aircraft
Category	(Avg) Seats	Aircraft Name	1979	1990	2000
100	115 90 97 94 115	DC-9-32 DC-9-15 BAC-111 727-100 737 W/SAM Sub-Total	245 82 28 339 <u>206</u> 900	112 38 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	
140	148 125 167 153 149 146 139 145 145 145 167 124	707-320 B/C 707-120 B 720-B 0C-8-55 707-120/320 0C-8-30 0C-9 W/SAM 727 W/SAM 727 W/SAM 727 ADV W/SAM 0C-9-80 ³ B-737-300 ² Sub-Total	86 87 7 57 2 5 54 345 345 345 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- - - 41 260 261 100 84 746	240 100 340
200	224 235 233 187	DC-8-61/63 A-310 ^d B-767 ^d B-757 ^d Sub-Total	126 - - - -	232 233 167 632	300 300 215 815
280	275 315 280 315 315 315	A-300 DC-10-10 L-1011 DC-10-30 STRETCH Subtotal	12 106 87 3 <u>31</u> 239	188 94 191 189 170 832	200 100 203 200 180
380	452 452	747-200 747-100 Subtotal	7 <u>113</u> 120	200 <u>87</u> 287	883
550	496	747 STRETCH	11	115	340
750	743	8-747 Type ^a	-	~	136
	TOTAL		2384	2870	3397

TABLE 4.2 AIR CARRIER FLEET COMPOSITION BY SEAT CAPACITY

^aDenotes new aircraft type after 1979.

والمستعمل مستعمر وماليك المستار ولأال محمد والمستعد والمستعد والمستعد والمستعد والمستعد والمعالية

4-6

والمتحمية والمحمور والمراجع
المتحقيق ويورد المردون ومعتقاته

	No	. of Airc	raft	Total Seat Capacity (1,000's)			
Seat Category	1979	1990	2000	1979	1990	2000	
100	900	258	-	90.0	258.8	-	
140	988	745	340	138.3	104.4	47.6	
200	126	632	815	25.2	126.4	163.0	
280	239	832	883	66.9	233.0	247.2	
380	120	287	883	45.6	109.1	335.5	
550	11	115	340	6,0	63.2	187.0	
750	-	-	136	-	-	102.0	
TOTAL	2384	2870	3397	372.0	661,9	1082.3	
Average Seats/ Aircraft	-	-	-	156	231	319	

 TABLE 4.3

 AIR CARRIER FLEET CAPACITY BY SEAT CAPACITY

ويعاشرون والمحدث

and the line of the state of the second

carrier fleet. By 1990, however, the percent composition drops to 35 percent as all of the 707's and many of the existing 727, 737 and DC-9 aircraft are retired and replaced by higher capacity aircraft. Conversely, the market share of aircraft with seat capacities of 380 or greater grows from 6 percent in 1979 to 14 and 40 percent in years 1990 and 2000, respectively. Total seat capacity increases from 372,000 in 1979 to 1,082,000 in year 2000 as the average number of seats per aircraft increases from 156 to 319 during the period (see Table 4.3).

While the total seat capacity increases dramatically during the forecast period, total departures show a modest growth and, in fact, decrease from year 1990 to year 2000 (see Table 4.4). As the fleet mix changes over time to emphasize aircraft with higher capacities, departures per aircraft (defined by the APF) decline. For example, the composite Aircraft Productivity Factor of 1,932 in 1979 decreases to 1,664 and 1,293 in the two forecast years, respectively.

Representative Airport Fleet Projections

The next step in the projection methodology involved projecting air carrier activity by each of the four Rport categories and then by specific Rport. Total fleet departures were determined based on the number of aircraft times the applicable APF. Next, departures for each Rport category were determined by summing the departures for each airport contained within the Rport category (Reference 2). Airports contained in the four Rport categories comprised 62 percent of national air carrier departures in baseline year 1979. This same percentage was then applied to total departures for each of the three forecast years to derive total Rport departures.

Total departures next had to be allocated to each of the Rport categories. This was done by a subjective adjustment of the baseline 1979 departure data. Allocation of Rport category departures to the seven seat category groupings (see Tabler 42) was similarly performed on a judgemental basis. Consideration here was given to the general nature of airport operations (e.g., hub versus terminal) and the type and mix of aircraft which might be handled by each airport given certain operational constraints (e.g., adequate runway length to accommodate wide-bodied jets).

4-8

and the share with the set of the set of the set of the set of the second set of the

Since each Rport is representative of all airports within the respective category, departures for each Rport were then determined by dividing category departures (by seat classification) by the total number of airports in that category.

The results of this procedure are summarized in Table 4.4. A final step involved allocating total departures for each representative airport by seat category and then by specific aircraft type or series. Details on the procedures are provided in Reference 4.

Noise Source Regulation

.

10日 いうのれ 数部は10日の 10日に移行の場合が20日の10日、10日を1日を1日を1日の10日の

Life Burgering

As a general rule, control of noise at the source (the aircraft) is more cost-effective than trying to protect people from an excessively noisy source at each location where it operates. In 1969, the Federal Aviation Administration took a major step in this direction by issuing a new Federal Aviation Regulation Part 36 (FAR 36) requiring that new design aircraft be certificated to meet specific noise levels. These 1969 noise standards came to be known as Stage 2 levels. The unregulated aircraft in operation prior to 1969 were designated Stage 1 (Reference 5).

Although FAR 36 was an excellent first step in aircraft noise regulation, it was understood by both the FAA and the industry that there remained many other problems to be resolved. The 1969 rule applied only to new design aircraft; that is, those whose application for initial certification was submitted earlier than the 1969 date which was specified in the rule. This left the manufacturer of older design aircraft unregulated, as well as the operation of the older design aircraft. Thus, it was not surprising that, in 1973, the U.S. jet-powered carrier fleet of approximately 2,000 aircraft consisted of more than 90 percent older design aircraft which did not meet, and were not required to meet, the Stage 2 noise levels. Furthermore, due to the long structural and economic life of these aircraft, they would probably remain in the fleet for 10 to 20 years or more as a significant factor in the airport noise problem.

Since 1973 the FAA has taken steps to fill these gaps. The FAA has issued a rule which requires that new production of older design aircraft

Pront/Pront Category	BASELINE	FORECAST YEAR
	1979	1990 2000
<u>Mfami, Fl.</u> Category Departures Percent ^a Rport Departures	1234 43.2 94.9	1249 1112 42.0 41.0 96.0 85.6
<u>NYC (La Guardia)</u> Category Departures Percent ^a Rport Departures	111 3.9 111.0	118 109 4.0 4.0 118.0 109.0
San Antonio, Tx. Category Departures Percent ^a Rport Departures	1156 40.5 26.3	1224 1139 41.2 42.0 27.8 25.9
Sioux Falls, SD Category Departures Percent ^a Rport Departures	355 12.4 5.0	380 353 12.8 13.0 5.4 5.0
Total Category Departures	2856	2971 2713
Total National Departures	4606	4777 4394

TABLE 4.4 ANNUAL DEPARTURES BY RPORT CATEGORY (Thousands)

^apercent of total category departures.

1111

10010

the stand of the stand and the stand of the

4-10

والمراجعهم ومحمورها ومرواحيا ووالمستور والتراري والمروح والرجا ويعارب والتراري والمحرور ومتعافهم فعم مرار

comply with the Stage 2 noise levels (Reference 6). In addition, in December 1976 the FAA set forth a phased compliance schedule by which all aircraft in the U.S. fleet, not engaged in foreign commerce, are to be brought into compliance with Stage 2 noise levels no matter when they were designed or manufactured (Reference 7). Finally because the Stage 2 noise levels were no longer sufficiently stringent for new-design aircraft, the FAA has further reduced the permissible noise levels for them (Stage 3).

The FAA rule for new production of older design aircraft (Reference 7) was effective on December 31, 1974. It brought under the Stage 2 limits the manufacturing of all turbojet subsonic aircraft which were of designs certificated before 1969. This represented the bulk of the aircraft being manufactured at that time, and therefore significantly increased the number of aircraft subject to the FAR 36 noise requirements.

The pace of compliance with FAR 36, Stage 2 has accelerated over the past years, and will continue into the future. For example, 21 percent of the air carrier fleet was in compliance at the beginning of 1977, and 42 percent was expected to be in compliance by mid-1980. About 86 percent of the U.S. fleet is expected to be in compliance by 1985 (Reference 8).

While the compliance statistics are impressive, the benefits of the advanced technologies embodied in the Stage 3 requirements will not accrue for some time. There tends to be a 7 to 10 year delay between the demonstration of a new technology and its introduction into new designs for fleet use. Then an additional 10 or more years go by before these quieter aircraft make up a substantial portion of the fleet so that they make a noticeable impact on airport-community noise exposure. Thus, the second generation of quieted aircraft (e.g., B-757 and B-767) using the Stage 3 technology developed in the 1970's is being produced for service in the 1980's and will begin to impact exposed communities in the 1990's. Noise levels associated with stages 2 aNd 3 are presented in Table 4.5.

195

100000

î,

「おい」にの時期に人口などの事成というというで、「「「「」」

Same Same Ball

		(TAKE-OFF	LEVELS (EPNdB)	(APPROACH L	EVELS (EPNdB)
Seat Category	No. Engines	Stage 2	Stage 3	Stage 2	Stage 3
100	2 3 4	97.9	90,9 39,9 95,9	103.9	100.2
Ĩ40	2 3 4	100.3	92.8 95.8 97.8	104.9	101.3
200	2 3 4	102.8	94.8 97.8 99.8	105.9	102.5
280	2 3 4	105.3	96.8 99.8 101.8	106.9	103.6
380	2 3 4	107,5	98.6 101.6 103.6	107,8	104.7
550	· 2 3 4	108.0	100.7 103.7 105.7	108.0	105.0
750	2 3 4	108.0	101.0 104.0 106.0	108.0	105.0

TABLE 4.5 FAR-36 NOISE LEVELS BY STAGE^{a)}

.

فسيعجز معرض سقوه ويعاقر ولاعتهان ورعلانات والمدرور والرور والأرار والمرور ويتعاده والمراجع

^{a)}Source: Reference 9.

ł

and the second
DEMOGRAPHIC FORECASTS

Four general exposure parameters are defined to compare scenario results. These are population, residences, area and program costs for the soundproofing and for the relocation aspects of the total program. The parameters are quantified primarily using selected output from NASA's Airport Noise-Levels and Annoyance Model, or ALAMO (Reference 10).

ALAMO contains a large demographic data base management program developed by CACI, Inc., and called SITE II. Using the SITE II data base, airport-specific Demographic Profile Reports are generated by the ALAMO program for each noise level contour band (L_{dn} as follows: 55-60, 60-65, 65-70, 75-80, 80-85, 85+, 65-75 and 75+. A sample profile report is shown on Figure 4.1.

While the profile reports contain a wealth of valuable information, the data is primarily based on the 1970 census.* Changing economic and demographic conditions over the past 10 years, particularly with respect to items such as population, households, housing units and structures and housing and rental values may seriously erode the validity of using the direct ALAMO output to estimate relocation and soundproofing costs for 1979 and for selected forecast years. Accordingly, the procedure used to update selected demographic variables is described below.

Updating Procedure Framework

ŝ

「たいい」になった。たけかした。これになっていたという

 $\frac{1}{10}$

مرور بالمرور المرور
An important advantage of using the ALAMO data base for program costing and impact evaluation was that it presents discrete data for a given airport based on specific noise level contour bands based on specific assumptions regarding aircraft fleet mixes, total departures, flight procedures, runway use, etc. The SITE II data base mentioned previously contains demographic information by Census Tracts and each tract in turn is

*More current data (generally 1977) is available for selected variables, namely total population, number of households and per capita income.

	FIGORE 4.1	
	SAMPLE DEMOGRAPHIC PROFILE REPORT	- <u>cc</u> + t c(+
PIAMI INTERNATIONAL	SVULFFINGUAUULUIA LUALIER UNIAUL	
	·· •	
SIATIF PLUKIDA .		
		* * * * * *
1	+ LATEST	ÉHANGE +
OFG MIN SEC		ERON 70 4
LATITUDE 25 47 40	 1977 PCFULATION 134011 	-9037 1
LONGITUDE 80 17 17	+ 1977 HOUSEHOLDS 54257	5696 1
	+ 1977 PER CAP INCOME \$ 5181	1 2261 1
1.04 45-78 09		
FN4 83-13 NG	₽	
	ANNUAL COMPOUND GROWTH	8 1
WEIGHTING PCT 100		*.* * * * 1
•		
	1970 CENSUS DATA	
•		
POPULATION	AGE AND SEY	
		T 0 T 4 1
101AL 142048 100.0	FALE FEMALE	IUIAL
- WHITE 124205 87+4	0+5 5232 7⋅8 5273 7⋅0	7.4
NEGRO 17017 12-0	6-13 8509 12.7 8074 10.8	11.7
OTHER 934 -4	10-17 4005 6-Z 3000 E.Z	6.e
	18-20 2703 4.0 3414 4.6	4.3
SPAN 77893 54.8	21-29 7689 11.5 8831 11.8	11.6
•	30-30 8520 10-7 D114 10-0	12 4
	JU-J7 OJEC LEBY JIJB LEBE	<u>+</u>
	40-49 9359 14.0 10574 14.2	14+1
FAMILY INCOME (000)	50-64 12697 18.9 14582 19.4	19.2
53-6 19469 29.1	46 A 9116 TO.1 11000 14.7	11.6
		= =
	LUIAL 67632 74994	
\$7-10 7863 21.8	MEDIAN(AGE) 36.1 38.7	37 • 4
\$10-15 7533 20.9		-
615-05 7300 B /		
313-23 3373 764	HUME VALUE (COU) OCCUPATION	
\$25-50 737 2.0	10-10 1739 11.4 MGR/PROF 8	874 15.1
\$50 + 102 .3	\$10-15 4379 28.7 SALES 3	936 6.7
TOTAL 36050	418-30 BASA 33 0 CLEATON 111	147 19 3
IDINE JOUJE	10-20 BOOM BOAZ CHEMICAH II.	1 1 1 1 1
	_\$20+25 [2319 I5+2 CRAFT 8]	167 13.9
AVERAGE \$ 8706	\$25-35 1325 8.7 OPERTIVS 133	382 22.7
MEDIAN S 7614	\$35-60 290 1.9 LABORER 30	148 8.9
•	- 350 + 122. •8 FARM 1	.53 .3
	TOTAL 15232 - SERVICE 89	958 15.2
RENT	PRIVATE	47 1.6
50-100 13990 47 0	AVERAGE STICIS	
	HITTLE ALIGIC	
aluu-150 9936 33.5	MEDIAN \$15481	
\$150-200 4334 14.6	OWNER 34.0 EDUCATION ADU	LTS > 25
\$200-250 819 2.9		44 42 Q
-cuu - 551 1.9	7-11 138	14 4 V
TOTAL 29620	AUTOMOBILES 12 235	94 25.4
	HONE 11477 23-6 13-15 83	28 9-0
AVERAGE \$ 107		05 7 0
	- UMC 20011 0160 16 + (2	
HEWIAN S 184	TWO 9977 20+5	
MENTER 66.3	THREE+ 2088 4.3	
	HOUSEHOLD BARA	METERS
	RUUJERULU PARA	
	FAM POP 1208	61 85.1
UNITS IN STRUCTURE	HOUSEHOLDS WITH: INDIVIDS 170	33 12.0
1 23612 48.4	TV 43017 46.3 GPD 0700 44	54 2.9
2 8155 45 6	••• ••••••• ••••• ••••• •••• ••••••••••	JT 617
	WALNER 18004 14.3 FOT POP 1420	48
3170 6.5	DR YER 4825 5.2	
2-9 3950 R.1	DISHVSH 2731 2.9 NO OF HHES A	8561
10-49 9430 10 0	ATDANN SIGLA AA A HA AA HAA T	
	FIRLUNU ZIZOH ZZEK NU CH FAM*S 3	1944
	THEEZER 2706 2.9 AVG HH SIZE	2.9
TURILE 628 1.1		
	2 HOMES 542 .6 AVG FAM ST7F	3.4
	2 HOMES 542 .6 AVG FAM SIZE	3.4

FIGURE 4.1

and the second state in the second state of th

1

مرجوع والمرجوع والمرجوع

المتحصيصها والأكافي والمرابع وأرور ومعود موارحا المراجع والمرا

designated by a centroid. To synchronize census data with the aircraft noise information, ALAMO provides demographic data as if it occurred in the centroid of a census tract. Thus, changing demographic configurations around an airport are reflected in the ALAMO output as a given band expands or contracts (thereby varying the number of centroids affected) or as there is movement between specified noise level bands.

This factor was of added importance considering the fact that a relatively large number of ALAMO runs were employed as part of the soundproofing/relocation scenario development. Accordingly, the basic framework of the updating procedure was a need to provide for automatic updating of the ALAMO output without resort to time-consuming inclusion of externally derived site-specific updating parameters. This objective was achieved by a procedure based almost exclusively on the relationship between the rate of change of two demographic variables -- total population and number of households -- and the remaining variables of interest in program costing.* Further, the rate of change for these variables can be determined directly from the ALAMO output since it contains two data points (i.e., 1970 and 1977).

Updating Procedure

「日本には、「日本など」というでは、「日本の日本の日本

Bart State State State

The updating was accomplished in two parts. First, selected variables were updated to 1979 values to establish a suitable baseline. Second, the 1979 values were updated to any desired forecast year. The procedure has been computerized in ORI's ALAMO Report Generator Program (DEMCON) whereby the user merely specifies the scenario name and forecast year desired (Reference 11).

The 1970 values for population (P) and households (H) were updated to 1979 baseline values based on their respective annual compound growth rate as follows:

*The derivation and rationale of the range of variables needed to determine program costing are described in Chapter VI below.

$$X_{1979} = X_{1970} (1+r_{\chi})^9$$

 $1 + r_{\chi} = (\chi_{y})^{1/(y-1970)}$

where: X = variable of interest, either population (P) or

- households (H)
- r = compound growth rate
- y = year for which updated ALAMO data is available (normally 1977).

<u>Population</u>. Total population in 1979 was estimated by Equations (1) and (2). The distribution of population by race was determined by applying the same percentage distribution for 1970 population in the ALAMO demographic profile report. Similarly, age distribution and median age were held constant at their 1970 values. The male/female distinction in the 1970 census data was dropped for the updates and a composite age distribution presented instead.

<u>Households</u>. Total households in 1979 was similarly calculated by Equations (1) and (2). Average household size was determined by dividing total population by total households. Note that it is possible for a given airport to experience a decline in total population with an increase in renters, homeowners and housing units. This occurs when the compound growth rate for population is less than that for households. This occurs because the size of the "average" family unit is generally declining due to a greater incidence of single-parent families (an out-growth of the increasing divorce rate), fewer children per family and reduced and/or deferred marriages leading to increased single-person families. These factors are reflective of the changing demogra- phic characteristics/of the family unit experienced in the past decade. The reduction in average household size means that a greater housing stock would be needed to accommodate any given population level.

4-16

(1)

(2)

<u>Number of Renters</u>. The total number of renters for 1979 was determined by:

$$R_{1979} = R_{1970} (1+r_{\rm H})^9$$
 (3)

where: R = number of renters $r_{\mu} = compound growth rate for households.$

Note that total renters plus total homeowners does not equal total households. This is because more than one household may reside in a single rental or home unit. Equation (3) maintains the number of multiple household units at their 1970 levels.

Percent Renters. This variable was held constant at its 1970 value.

(4)

<u>Average/Median Rent</u>. In the absence of airport-specific information on changes in rental values, it was assumed that rents rise in accordance with national trends. While this assumption may have resulted in an over or under estimate of 1979 rental values for a given airport, application of national trends remains appropriate for costing at a national level. Table 4.6 presents consumer price indexes for residential rent and home purchase using 1970 as the index year. Rental values (RV) for 1979 are:

 $RV_{1979} = 1.60 \ RV_{1970}$

where: RV = monthly rental value.

A start of the sta

Note that examination of a number of ALAMO profile reports and DEMCON updates showed rental values for 1970 generally in the range of \$150 to \$300. This range may appear low, especially in reference to the perception of rental values in a large metropolitan area such as Washington, D.C. However, a number of factors would tend to depress rental values around major commercial airports. Such factors are: (1) rent control extant in urban areas; (2) blighted neighborhoods in the vicinity of airports; and (3) the reduced desirability of housing in a high-noise impacted area.

	R	ENT*	HOME PURCHASE**		
YEAR	1970 = 1.0	1979 = 1.0	1970 = 1.0	1979 = 1.0	
1965	0.88	0.55	0.82	0.43	
1966	0.89	0,56	0.83	0.44	
1967	0.91	0.57	0,85	0.45	
1968	0.93	0.58	0.87	0.46	
1969	0.96	0.60	0.93	0.49	
1970	1.00	0.63	1.00	0.53	
1971	1.05	0.66	1.05	0.56	
1972	1.08	0.68	1,10	0.58	
1973	1.13	0.71	1.12	0.59	
1974 .	1.19	0.74	1.21	0.64	
1975	1.25	0.78	1.36	0.72	
1976	1.31	0.82	1.42	0.75	
1977	1.39	0.87	1.52	0.80	
1978	1.49	0.93	1.66	0.88	
1979	1.60	1.00	1.89	1.00	

TABLE 4.6 CONSUMER PRICE INDEXES FOR RESIDENTIAL RENT AND HOME PURCHASE, 1965-1979

- -

*Source: Economic Report of the President, Transmitted to the Congress January 1980, Table 8-49, page 259. Converted from 1968=100.0

and the second secon

**Source: Ibid, Table B-50, page 260. Converted from 1968=100.0

4-18

المراجعة الربيو للمدالية متراك بالمستعاد

Warmers and the second se

<u>Number of Homeowners</u>. The same procedure used to update number of renters was used as follows:

$$HO_{1979} = HO_{1970} (1+r_{\rm H})^9$$
 (5)

where: H0 = number of homeowners $r_{\rm H}$ = compound growth rate for households.

Percent Homeowners. This variable was held constant at its 1970 value.

<u>Average/Medium Home Value</u>. The national trend for home purchase values (Table 4.6) was used as follows:

$$HV_{1979} = 1.89 HV_{1970}$$
 (6)
where: $HV = home value.$

As in the case with rental values, close proximity to a major airport tends to depress home values.

<u>Number of Units/Structures</u>. The 1970 ALAMO output presents the number of housing units according to seven structure types, including mobile homes. The total number of units was updated to 1979 values by:

 $U_{1979} = U_{1970} (1+r_{\rm H})^9$ (7)

where: U = total housing units $r_{\rm H}$ = compound growth rate for households.

小学学家 化亚基化学学学生 化消化合成 网络哈普利格普利 医外部中的复数分子 化化合物

L'and a character and

The total, updated units were then allocated by structure type according to the same percentage distribution extant in 1970. That is, if the housing stock in 1970 consisted of 80 percent single family dwellings, 80 percent of 1979 units would similarly be single family dwellings. Building patterns over the past decade may in fact have caused a shift in the composition of housing structures, as occurred in the vicinity of Washington National Airport with the recent construction of a number of large, multi-unit structures.

Deliniation of such shifts, however, was not possible within the procedural framework for the update presented earlier.

The update for housing structures necessitated a two-step process since total number of structures were not directly delineated in the 1970 ALAMO output. Accordingly, DEMCON first converted units to structures by assuming that a prototype structure consists of the mid-point of the range of units within each structure type as follows:

UNITS PER STRUCTURE

RANGE	AVERAGE
1	1
2	2
3-4	3.5
5-9	7.0
10-49	29.5
50+	75

The number of structures was calculated by dividing the number of units by the average number of units per structure type. The 1970 percentage distribution per structure type was then applied to 1979 values.

Note that mobile homes are excluded from the updating procedure. This was based on the assumption that soundproofing would not be a viable option for mobile homes. Furthermore, the relocation costing procedure developed in Reference 12 (and summarized in Chapter VI) does not apply to mobile homes since the homes would be physically transferred and set in a new development.

The omission of mobile homes would of course tend to underestimate total relocation/soundproofing program costs, but not by a significant amount given to relative scarcity of such homes in the relevant airport noise contour areas.

4-20

فالأراب المحصر الرابي ويستبيه المتاهدية

A PARTY A AND A PARTY AND A

Update to Post-1979 Values. A different procedure was required to update to post-1979 values. Since program costs were based on constant 1979 dollars, all variables containing a dollar value are held at their 1979 levels (e.g., per capita income, average/median rent and average/median home values). Furthermore, the basic demographic shifts which led to smaller household and family sizes in the past decade were noted earlier. There is, however, a practical limit to the decline in these parameters as, for example, the average household or family size cannot fall below 1.0. The decline in these parameters is expected to level off at current values. Accordingly, the variables also were held constant at their 1979 values.

All of the variables which do change in the post-1979 period do so at the same annual compound growth rate, represented by the growth rate for households, as follows:

$$Z_{T} = Z_{1979} (1+r_{H})^{T-1979}$$

计算机的 人名法利克利 机合

Start Such as a second second second second

(8)

where: T = the post-1979 year for which an update is desired

Z = variable of interest, namely total population, total households, number of renters, number of homeowners and number of units and structures (totals and by structure type).

Unlike the case for updating to 1979 values, the post-1979 values will not have situations where a declining population may give rise to a larger housing stock. Rather, there is a direct correlation between the rate of change of households and all the other demographic factors represented by the variable "Z".

Under this procedure, a given airport may experience declining population in the period 1970 to 1979 and then increasing population in the post-1979 era. This remains a reasonable inference since, while the size of an average household may decline, the nuclear household will nevertheless continue to produce progeny, leading to a population increase in future years as household size is kept constant. An alternative approach would be use of a coherent survival methodology (Reference 13). However, this approach did not

fit within the framework for the updating procedure because: (1) historical airport-specific data was not readily available; and (2) site-specific input of these data (if available) would be required.

REPRESENTATIVE AIRPORT PROGRAM COSTING PROCEDURE

Estimates of the four primary exposure parameters -- total population, number of residences, area and program costs -- were developed for each scenario using selected output and data from the following programs and reports:

- ORI's ALAMO Demographic Report Generator Program or "DEMCOM" (Reference 11).
- FAA's Integrated Noise Model, or "INM" (Reference 15).
- ORI report entitled "Procedures to Estimate Airport Residential Costs" (Reference 12).
- Wyle Laboratories report entitled "A Study of Soundproofing Requirements for Residences Adjacent to Commercial Airports" (Reference 14).

The derivation of the exposure parameters and selected other variables is described below.

Rport Population

Total population for each of the selected Rports was obtained from the ALAMO Demographic Profile Report, as updated by ORI'S DEMCOM program (Reference 11). Population is summarized for the soundproofing and relocation phases of the program respectively.

Number of Residences

The second se

The number of affected residences was similarly obtained from the direct output of Reference 11. For purposes of this study, the concern was

4-22

مستعلاقهما الرحرين المراجع المتعاد والمتعالم ومناد والمراجع والمعالية والمعالية والمعادية المتعاد ومنافعا

with each residential unit as opposed to the total number of structures which may be exposed to adverse airport noise levels.

<u>Area</u>

11

Area in square miles for the soundproofing and relocation zones was obtained also from Reference 11.

Program Cost-Soundproofing

The cost of soundproofing was predicated on the stated goal of achieving an interior sound level of L_{dn} 45 dB. Costs per residential dwellings unit to achieve the stated criteria were developed using the following approach (Reference 14). First, the noise reduction of existing units was calculated and combined with the exterior sound levels from airport operations to determine the existing interior levels. The difference between these levels and the stated criteria represents the additional noise reduction to be provided by soundproofing. The modifications necessary to achieve this additional noise reduction were then identified and costed.

The wide range of dwelling types and construction found in the U.S. made it necessary to develop a series of categories. Single-family dwellings were classified into four main types -- one-story, two-story, bi-level and split-level. Multi-family dwellings were classified in terms of the number of units contained, the categories being 2, 3 to 4, 5 to 9, 10 to 49, and greater than 50 units per structure. For each dwelling category, interior configurations were defined describing the number and size of rooms, and the type of construction elements, i.e., wall, roof, floor, etc., present in each room. This data formed the basis for the calculation of noise reduction provided by existing dwellings.

To calculate the noise reduction, the sound transmission characteristics of each construction element were specified in terms of a single number, called the exterior wall rating (EWR) rating. The EWR ratings of typical dwelling elements were defined using a classification scheme covering all constructions common to the U.S. The scheme used the exterior wall and roof construction as the basis for classification, treating other elements as

subcategories or potential options that may or may not be present in any dwelling type. The Nation was divided into eleven regions, each one incorporating areas of similar dwelling construction. In this way, it was possible to specify the noise reduction of dwellings on a regional basis, taking local features into account.

To determine the distribution of dwelling types in each region, and. to obtain detailed information on local dwelling characteristics that affect noise reduction, field surveys were conducted at one airport in each region. The airports surveyed were selected on the basis that the local dwelling characteristics were representative of the respective region. The information obtained was used to identify the types of modifications most suitable for soundproofing dwellings in each region.

The selection of soundproofing modifications required for construction elements in each dwelling category in each region was made using a cost optimization technique to achieve the interior noise criteria at the least cost. The costs for adding a ventilation system, required to replace the natural ventilation that occurs through leaks in the dwelling structure, were then added to the costs for structural modifications to provide an overall cost for soundproofing. Costs were originally developed in terms of 1981 dollars. However, these estimates were deflated to 1979 dollars for compatibility with the baseline scenario, which is defined as 1979 operations and 1979 demographics.

Total soundproofing costs per Rport were determined by multiplying the cost per residential dwelling unit by the number of units in the respective representative airport.

Regional Soundproofing Costs

and the second
As mentioned previously, the cost of soundproofing a residential dwelling unit is strongly influenced by the construction characteristics of the dwelling. The characteristics, in turn, vary considerably in different

4-24

محمد بالمراجع المصمور وتجاوره الرامان

regions of the country but are fairly consistent within a region. To capture regional variations, the Nation was divided into 11 regions in which construction patterns are fairly homogeneous (see Figure 4.2). A brief description of each region is given below (Reference 14).

<u>Region A: The Pacific Coastline</u>. The climate is relatively mild as far inland as the Sierra Nevada foothills. Additionally, this region contains three major metropolitan sections: San Francisco - Oakland - San Jose complex, Los Angeles - Orange - Riverside - San Bernardino Counties complex, and the San Diego County area. The population concentration is relatively high, bringing with it the influx of skilled trades. Lumber is plentiful as are aggregates for concrete, and most all other standard building materials, explaining the proliferation of stud-and-stucco construction, modified by the higher modified by the higher cost systems such as brick veneers. The higher economic level of a metropolitan and industralized area permits use of more expensive methods and materials for aesthetic purposes. Seismicity for this region is high and is an important consideration.

Region 8: Inland Southern California, Southern Nevada, and Southwestern Arizona. Climate is a prime factor; hot, dry summers and relatively mild winters. Closely spaced metropolitan areas do not exist. Lumber is imported, but sand and aggregates for concrete block are plentiful. Therefore, in this region, buildings will have a greater percentage of concrete masonry. As a further incentive, concrete block structures are cool in the long summers. The common stud-and-stucco combination is also popular, as in this region it is again the most economical and durable. Additionally, maintenance is low for stucco in relation to wood, which needs paint more frequently.

Region C: The Gulf Coast and Atlantic Coastline. This region enjoys a relatively mild climate with high humidity, and is subject to violent tropical storms. Clay for brick is relatively abundant, as is local lumber. Therefore, less stud-and-stucco construction is used as it is more susceptible to moisture, and the brick and concrete block construction is more popular. When wood framing is used, it is often protected by brick veneer. Because of the high humidity and generous rainfall, concrete block is often protected by exterior plaster.

Line Calibration and and and





Region D: Eastern Seaboard and Inland to Central Illinois. Both climate and concentration of population comprise the prime influence here. The climate is quite cold for half the year and insulation properties are important. Both brick clay and local lumber are available, and the labor availability in all trades is generally good.

<u>Region E: New York City</u>. Single-family dewellings are similar to those found in Region D, but the central urban area consists largely of row houses and high-rise buildings.

Regions F and G: Central South and Great Lakes (Western) States. Although these regions have considerably different climates, the average construction is similar due to economics. Lumber is local and plentiful, as is clay for brick. Away from metropolitan areas, union influences are not so strong, and carpenters are frequently jack-of-all-trades, laying brick and block, installing gypsumboard or plastering.

Regions H, J, and K: Central States. These regions of different climatic conditions are governed more by economics than by climate. Most parts of this region experience below-freezing winters and hot, moderately humid summers. More important, however, is the commonality that, with the exception of very localized spots such as the Seattle-Tacoma area, there is no concentration of urbanization and industrialization. Consequently, the economy of the region is the prime factor, and materials and construction combinations giving best insulation at least cost are predominant. In this region, the carpenter is frequently the general builder. Material influences are again balanced between the easy transportability of lumber and the general local availability of clay for bricks. Thus, the construction norms for different parts of the region are similar for different reasons.

5

101

Lite with the same

<u>Region L: Hawaii</u>. Generally lightweight construction for walls and roofs, with heavy use of wood products. The climate is mild throughout the year so that insultation is not required.

Average residential soundproofing costs by region and by structure type and L_{dn} are presented in Tables 4.7 to 4.9. Note that the costs vary considerably among the regions. For example, Miami International Airport (which is the Rport representing the 13 airports in Rport category A) is located in Region C. The cost of soundproofing a single unit dwelling in the L_{dn} 65-75 dB contour at Miami is thus \$1,975. This amount is considerably higher than the costs for an airport in Region H (\$945) and lower for an airport in Region E (\$4,125).

Average soundproofing costs for the Rport categories was developed according to the following procedure.

first, the 129 airports contained in the four Rport categories were allocated to their respective regions (see Table 4.10). A weighted average soundproofing cost per residential unit was then determined for each Rport category by multiplying the number of airports within each region by the applicable unit cost. Average costs per structure type and L_{dn} contour are presented in Table 4.11. The average unit cost (by L_{dn} contour and structure type) for each Rport category is then multiplied by the number of residential units for the respective Rport.

Program Cost-Relocation

The second of the second se

The cost of relocation of residential properties was based on the purchase of all such properties contained within the applicable relocation zone, defined as either the L_{dn} 75+ dB noise contour or, alternatively, the L_{dn} 80+ dB noise contour. The approach used is as follows (and described in more detail in Chapter VI).

First, the provisions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 were examined for their potential applicability to the program. While it is not certain that the Act would in fact apply to relocation efforts implemented by an airport proprietor, the Act nonetheless provides a consistent, uniform basis from which costs may be estimated. Cost elements covered by the Act are:

Advisory service costs incurred by a relocation agency

TABLE 4	4.	7
---------	----	---

AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL SOUNDPROOFING COSTS: SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS (1979 Dollars)

L _{dn} Contour Region	65-70 dB	70-75 dB	75-80 dB
A	2,235	4,980	. 10,995
В	1,200	2,665	7,045
с	1,975	4,640	9.450
D	2,150	6,355	12,970
E	4,125	. 8,160	15,465
F	1,545	3,265	8,590
G	2,150	7,300	13,830
н	945	4,295	11,685
з	2,320	6,615	12,800
κ·	1,805	5,155	10,050
L	3,265	8,935	15,635

^aSource: Reference 14.

A TOLES AND

「日本語語」はなどのには、語語に見ていた。「日本語語語語」はなどのです。

^bConversion to 1979 dollars based on U.S. Department of Commerce Composite Construction Cost Indexes of 232.3 and 199.6 for 1979 and April 1981, respectively (Reference 18).

TABLE 4.8 AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL SOUNDPROOFING COSTS: MULTIPLE ~ FAMILY DWELLINGS⁴ (1979 Dollars)^D

L _{dn} Contour	TWO UNITS		THREE TO FOUR UNITS			
Region	65-70 dB	70-75 dB	75-80 dB	65-70 dB	70-75 dB	75-80 dB
A	585	2,490	6,015	685	1,890	4,555
в	770	1,630	4,295	770	1,460	3,610
c	685	1,720	2,665	685	1,460	3,610
D ·	600	1,030	2,575	600	860	2,150
E	600	1,030	2,575	600	860	2,150
F	685	2,920	5,585	600	2,320	4,380
G	685	2,920	5,585	600	2,320	4,380
н	600	1,030	2,575	600	860	1,975
J	685	2,235	4,180	685	1,890	3,865
к .	685	2,235	4,895	685	1.890	4,125
L	685	2,150	4,465	685	1,890	4,125

^aSource: Reference 14.

Weinstand and the state of the second of the second s

^bConversion to 1979 dollars based on U.S. Department of Commerce Composite Construction Cost Indexes of 232.3 and 199.6 for 1979 and April 1981, respectively, (Reference 18).

.

- . .

الأصحار المحمور سيان المراديين الأراد المساري والربية وأرزيت الجروانية والبروا الهيممممسي المحاريان

TABLE 4.9

AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL SOUNDPROOFING COSTS: MULTI - FAMILY UNITS (>5 UNITS PER STRUCTURE) FOR ALL REGIONS^a (1979 Dollars)^D

7000		Number of Units				
dn ^{zone}	5-9	10-49	50+			
65-70	600	600	600			
70-75	770	685	685			
75-80	1375	1030	860			

^aSource: Reference 14.

^bConversion to 1979 dollars based on U.S. Department of Commerce Composite Construction Cost Indexes of 232.3 and 199.6 for 1979 and April 1981, respectively (Reference 18).

فحج والمعاد أتدكير والأصحا

and the second sec

7

PEGTON		RPOR	T CATEGOR	RY	
REGION	A	B	С	D	Total Airports
A	2	*	4	7	13
В	-	-	3	-	3
с	-	-	3	2	5
D	1	-	6	. 8	15
E	2	-	5	11	18
F	6	-	10	17	33
G	-	2	-	-	1
. H	-	-	3	9	12
Э	2	-	6	13	21
ĸ	-	-	3	1	4
L		-	1	3	4
Total Alrports	13	1	44	71	129

TABLE 4.10 DISTRIBUTION OF AIRPORTS BY SOUNDPROOFING REGION

.

4-32

The state of the second second second

	TABLE 4.11							
AVERAGE	RESIDENTIAL SO RPORT CA (1979 Do	UNDPROOFING \TEGORY llars)	COSTS	BY				

	STRUCTURE TYPE					
L _{dn} Contour	Single Family	1+2 Units	3-4 Units	5-9 Units	10-49 Units	50+ Units
<u>Rport_Category A</u>						
65-70 dB	2,210	670	630	600	600	600
70-75 dB	5,030	2,310	1,850	770	685	685
75-80 dB	11,000	4,840	381	1,375	1,030	860
Rport Category B						
65-70 dB	2,150	685	600	600	600	600
70-75 dB	7,300	2,920	2,320	770	685	685
75-80 dB	13,830	5,585	4,380	1,375	1,030	860
Rport Category C						
65-70 dB	2,110	660	640	600	600	600
70-75- dB	5,240	1,950	1,600	770	685	685
75-80 dB	11,190	4,200	3,480	1,375	1,030	860
RPort Category D						
65-70 dB	2,240	650	630	600	600	600
70-75 dB	5,590	1,930	1,570	770	685	685
75-80 d8	11,890	4,160	3,370	1,375	1,030	860

A CARLES AND A CARL

ŝ

A standard

Moving costs

Billing the state of the state

- Purchase price of rental property
- Purchase price of owner-occupied units
- Replacement costs for tenants and homeowners
- Increased mortgage interest costs
- Closing costs on replacement housing
- Downpayments on replacement housing
- Income foregone for landlords suffering business disruption.

Not all of the cost elements listed above would apply to every person displaced as a result of a relocation effort. Accordingly, four distinct relocation cases were defined to categorize cost elements:

- Case A -- renters who remain renters
- Case B -- renters who become homeowners
- Case C -- rental property to be purchased
- Case D -- owner-occupied units to be purchased.

Costs per element were derived from a combination of national costs (e.g., for mortgage interest rate trends) and cost values specific to the representative airport under study. Examples of the latter are average home values and average monthly rental values within a specified relocation contour.

A summation of the appropriate cost elements lead to derivation of the total cost per relocation case. The final step in the methodology involved multiplying the cost per case by its frequency of occurrence to estimate total Rport relocation costs. Frequencies were similarly determined from a combination of national trends and airport-specific data. The airportspecific data was obtained directly from the ORI DEMCON program output. Such data includes number of renters, number of owner-occupied units and number of rental properties. The mix of renters who upon relocation are likely to remain renters (Case A) or to become homeowners (Case B) was based on national survey data compiled from the Federal Highway Administration's experience under the Relocation Act (Reference 16).

As was the case for soundproofing costs, all relocation costs were estimated in terms of constant 1979 dollars.

NATIONAL NOISE EXPOSURE ESTIMATION PROCEDURE

A STATE AND A STATE

 $= \{ x_1, x_2 \}$

States and the states of the states and

The concept of the representative airport enables a fairly smooth transition from estimating exposed area and population for the four Rports to estimating the likely magnitude of noise exposure on a national scale. From the Rport development methodology presented in Chapter III, it was noted that the representative airports represent a number of distinct categories of airports. Accordingly, the magnitude of exposure parameters for each Rport should, on average, be fairly representative of the magnitude of all airports within the relevant category. National exposure estimates can thus be estimated by a two-step process as follows. First, parameter values for each Rport are multiplied by the number of airports represented by the Rport. A summation of the resultant category values then provides an estimate for national values.

It bears emphasis here that the results of a national noise exposure estimation procedure are more complex. They are the end result of a considerable amount of preparatory analysis which, as discussed elsewhere in this report, involved manipulation of extremely large data bases, use of a combination of airport-specific and national information and of necessity required the establishment of certain simplifying assumptions. Nevertheless, the approach was intended to improve upon earlier techniques used to determine representative airports and to generate national soundproofing/relocation exposure estimates. The primary ways in which this study differs from previous studies (Reference 17) are that demographic data contributed to the determination of representative airports, real rather than psuedo-airports are used and program exposite estimates were developed from a "bottom-up" approach. When considering any given airport within a Rport category, the extent of its potential noise problem (and, conversely, potential cost of program (mplementation) may be quite different than that of the representative airport. Unique local features such as terrain, airport layout and nature of air carrier operations are just some of the factors which cause the differences.

NOISE ABATEMENT FLIGHT PROCEDURES

Aircraft are capable of utilizing a variety of safe departure procedures, each of which generates different noise levels and different airport-environs noise exposure patterns. These differences are assessed in the scenarios by examining three takeoff flight procedures.

Takeoff Procedures Description

In general, aircraft initiate takeoff roll with high thrust and small-to-moderate flap settings (takeoff thrust and flaps). Shortly after lift-off, they retract landing gear and by 400 ft. height above the airport (HAA) reach a stabilized all-engine climb speed which permits them to climb at a safe but relatively steep gradient. At specified values of HAA, depending upon the takeoff procedure, the aircraft will retract flaps (cleanup) and reduce or cut back the thrust to a specified setting. At some point in space below 10,000 ft. HAA, the aircraft will climb in a clean configuration, at climb thrust, and at an airspeed not exceeding 250 knots (Keas) equivalent airspeed).

A noise abatement takeoff procedure is an aircraft departure schedule consisting of three flight path segments which can be identified by their principal operational activities:

- Ground roll and initial climb.
- Thrust reduction
- Normal climb.

Martin Contraction and the second
Within each segment may be several sections in which the airplane conducts additional activities such as gear and flap retractions, accelerations to specified speeds, and thrust changes. The locations at which the activities are initiated and their magnitude and duration are the factors that determine the takeoff procedures' effectiveness for noise abatement.

4-36

مسؤدية ويعور الروب بالرواب والمراجع والم

The principal differences in takeoff procedures that influence the noise exposure patterns on the ground are cleanup before initiation of thrust cutback (C/B), or vice versa; extent of cutback thrust (CBT); HAA for cleanup and initiation of CBT; and HAA for reapplication of thrust when CBT is less than maximum climb thrust (MCT). Following are brief descriptions of three takeoff procedures that are examined in this report from the standpoint of noise abatement:

<u>AC 91-39.</u> The Federal Aviation Administration has recommended a departure procedure in Advisory Circular 91-39 which until recently was supported by the Air Transport Association (ATA) as beneficial for the reduction of community noise and pilot work load (Reference 19). The procedure would reduce takeoff thrust (TOT) to maximum climb thrust (MCT) before cleanup.

<u>ALPA/NWA Max.</u> The Airline Pilots Association (ALPA) recommends a procedure which, except for minor details, is similar to the one routinely used by Northwest Airlines (NWA) (Reference 20). Both organizations claim benefits for community noise impact, fuel consumption, wear and tear on engines and safety. The procedure would reduce TOT to a CBT equal to the one-engine-out certification requirement for thrust but only after acceleration and cleanup.

<u>ALPA/NWA Min.</u> This procedure is similar to ALPA/NWA Max except that TOT would be reduced to a CBT equal to MCT after acceleration and cleanup.

Schematics of the three takeoff flight procedures are presented in Figure 4.3.

Each of the aircraft takeoff procedures has both advantages and disadvantages for noise control, depending upon the location of noisesensitive communities. A procedure that reduces thrust before cleanup has the advantage of abating noise sooner than a procedure that reduces thrust after cleanup. However, the noise abatement resulting from the former may be less than the latter and may occur too close to the airport to benefit many people. A procedure that employs a large thrust reduction has the advantage of maximum noise abatement, but would be of no value if noise-sensitive communities were not located where that advantage would be realized.



a. AC 91-39 Flight Procedures

b. ALPA/NWA Min Flight Procedures

1





A procedure that reduces power below climb thrust in order to minimize the noise exposure for one community must ultimately reapply power to climb thrust, which may increase the exposure for another community. When comparing two procedures, one with larger thrust cutback than the other, there will be a crossover point at which both procedures will produce the same noise level on the flight track. Inside the crossover point (toward the airport), the larger cutback procedure will produce less noise, but outside the crossover point, the reverse is true (Reference 21).

Procedures to Assess Noise Abatement Impacts

 $\mathbf{1}_{2}$

The noise abatement implications of the three flight procedures were quantified in terms of the four general exposure parameters by means of the ALAMO program output. Recall from Chapter III that a complete INM run is required as input to ALAMO. The INM, in turn, requires as input detailed aircraft flight path and performance schedule data. Separate schedules had to be developed for the AC 91-39, ALPA/NWA MAX and ALPA/NWA Min flight procedures.*

Modified analytical algorithms for constructing aircraft flight path and performance schedules for the specified operational procedures were developed from References 22 and 23. These algorithms were derived from fundamental aircraft and performance relationships or from operational characteristics applicable to specific aircraft types. Based on these algorithms, a computer model was developed with which the requisite INM input data were generated.

*Schedules for the AC 91-39 procedures had to be independently developed to ensure consistency with the other two procedures.

REFERENCES

- U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>FAA Statistical Handbook of Aviation</u>, 1979, December 1979.
- 2. U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>Airport Activity Statistics of Certified Route Air</u> <u>Carriers, Calendar Year 1979</u>, (AAS File Intalled on IBM 370 at EPA NCC), December 1979.
- U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>System Analysis to Develop Future Civil Aircraft Noise</u> <u>Reduction Alternatives</u>, <u>Volume I</u>, prepared by Wyle Laboratories, Inc., March 1980.
- U.S. EPA, <u>Aviation Forecasts Through Year 2030</u>, Information Brief prepared by William C. Sperry, June 23, 1981.
- 5. U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>Noise Standards: Aircraft Airworthiness Certification</u>, Federal Aviation Regulations, Part 36, published November 18, 1969.
- U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>Noise Standards: Aircraft Airworthiness Certification</u>, <u>Amendment 36-2</u> (Noise Standards for Newly Produced Airplanes of Older Type Resyns), Federal Aviation Regulations, Part 36, published October 26, 1973.
- 7. U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>General Operating and Flight Rules Amendment 91-136</u>, (Phased Compliance with Part 36 Noise Limits by Turbojets with Maximum Weights Greater than 75,000 pounds), Federal Aviation Regulations, Part 91, published December 23, 1976.
- 8. U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>FAA Reports on Compliance With Noise Standards by U.S.</u> <u>Domestic Aircraft Operators</u>, 46 Fed. Reg. 40124, August 6, 1981.
- 9. U.S. EPA, <u>INM Noise Curve Levels</u>, Information Brief prepared by William C. Sperry, June 23, 1981.
- DeLoach, R., <u>An Airport Community Noise-Impact Assessment Model</u>, NASA TM-80198, July 1980.
- 11. ORI, Inc., <u>User's Manual for the ALAMO Demographic Report Generator</u> <u>Program</u>, September 1981.
- 12. Felder, J., <u>Procedures to Estimate Airport Residential Relocation</u> <u>Costs</u>, ORI Technical Report No. 1856, April 1981.
- Rogers, A., <u>Matrix Analysis of Integrated Population Growth and</u> Distribution, University of California (Berkeley) Press, 1968.
- 14. Sharp, B., <u>A Study of Soundproofing Requirements for Residences</u> <u>Adjacent to Commercial Airports</u>, Wyle Research Report No. 81-39 (prepared under subcontract to ORI, Inc.), August 1981.

فتعمره والالبراد والالتبار كولان والعري والأراب المراد المراجع والمتحاف

Statement for and that the second deviation of the second s

- 15. Connor, T., <u>INM, Integrated Noise Model, Version 2-User's Guide</u>, FAA Report FAA-EE-7909, September 1970.
- 16. U.S. DOT, Office of Right-of-Way, Federal Highway Administration, personal correspondence to ORI, January 23, 1981.
- 17. Bartel, C., <u>Noise Exposure of Civil Aircarrier Airplanes Through the</u> Year 2000, <u>Volume I: Methods</u>, <u>Procedures</u>, <u>Results</u>, prepared by Wyle Laboratories for EPA, February 1979.
- 18. U.S. DOT, Bureau of Economic Analysis, <u>Survey of Current Business</u>, <u>Volume 61, Number 6</u>, June 1981.
- 19. U.S. DOT, FAA, <u>Recommended Noise Abatement Takeoff</u> and <u>Departure</u> <u>Procedures for Civil Turbojet Powered Airplanes</u>, FAA Advisory Circular AC 91-39, January 18, 1974.
- Airline Pilots Association, <u>ALPA Noise Abatement Takeoff Procedures</u>, ALPA Executive Board Committee recommendation, 25th Executive Board Meeting, May 10-12, 1977.
- 21. Sperry, W., <u>Effectiveness of Aircraft Procedures for Noise Abatement</u>, Noise Control Engineering, Volume 12 - Number 3, May-June 1979.
- 22. Ronk, L., et al., <u>Aircraft Flight Procedures Program:</u> Data Base <u>Development</u>, ORI Technical Report No. 1799, March 1981.

and the second state of the second
100

Contraction -----

 Ronk, L., <u>Aircraft Flight Procedures Program: Modified Computer</u> Program Model - Users' Guide, ORI Draft Technical Report, August 1981.

water and the second #### V. SCENARIO DESCRIPTION AND PROGRAM IMPACT

The stage has been set in the prior chapters for the presentation of scenarios which capture the impacts of selected airport noise control measures. Impact quantification is achieved by examining the four exposure parameters in both absolute and relative terms. Scenarios in turn are developed by varying four major factors which strongly influence the extent of airport-community noise exposure, namely:

- Air carrier fleet year -- incorporates the mix of aircraft types and series in either the baseline 1979 or selected forecast year
- Demographic year -- reflects growth, if any, in population and demographic variables
- Flight procedures -- reflects one of three takeoff flight procedures
- Airport procedures -- reflects use of priority runways and flight tracks.

A fifth factor, extent of soundproofing assistance zone, does not directly impact noise exposure. Rather, it relates to program cost by examining the benefits of offering soundproofing in lieu of relocation assistance to residences within the L_{dn} 75 to 80 dB contour zone.

SCENARIO DESCRIPTION

When the term "scenario" is used, it applies to a discrete set of assumptions for each of the four factors. For example, scenario 2.3 refers to: (1) year 2000 fleet mix; (2) demographic data held constant at values projected to year 1990; (3) use of takeoff flight procedure AC 91-39; and (4) even distribution of operation on appropriate runways and straight in and out flight tracks.

The term "scenario group" refers to a combination of scenarios according to noise abatement alternative. The five scenario groups are described below and summarized in Table 5.1 in reference to national population, area and residences exposure estimates. Selected exposure parameters for the four Rports are provided in Appendix A.

BASELINE AIR CARRIER FLEET

and the first start in the second start of a second start start and the second start starts and the second start starts and the second sta

This scenario group reflects a situation whereby the fleet mix and level of air carrier operations change over time from 1979 base values through forecast year 2000. Land use patterns are assumed to continue to evolve much as they had in the pre-1979 era. This is represented by updating the demographic variables to the corresponding fleet mix year.

Note that as the fleet mix changes over time, a greater number of existing, relatively noisy aircraft are replaced by newer, quieter aircraft types and series (see Chapter IV). The result is a dramatic reduction over time in the number of people exposed to adverse airport noise levels, even in the face of population growth in affected airport communities and increases in aircraft departures.

National exposure parameters for years 1979, 1990 and 2000 are presented in Table 5.2. Total population exposed to noise levels in excess of L_{dn} 65 dB drops from 7.6 million in 1979 to 3.6 million in 2000, a decrease of 53 percent. The decrease in population exposure is even greater in the greater than L_{dn} 75 dB noise contour (65 percent) than in the L_{dn} 65 to 75 dB contour (51 percent). This is because areas of highest noise impact tend to be closer to the airport boundary and conversely areas with lesser impact

					EXI	ERS	
Scenario Fleet Number Year	Demographic Year	Flight Procedures	Flight Track	Population ^{b/}	Area	Residences ^b	
Baseline Al	rcarrier Flee	<u>nt</u> :			1		
1.1 1.2 1.3	1979 1990 2000	1979 1990 2000	AC 91-39 AC 91-39 AC 91-39	Straight Straight Straight	7,553 5,250 3,628	2,707 1,756 1,073	2,940 2,049 1,369
Land Use Co.	ntrol Implica	tions:					·
2.1 2.2 2.3	1990 2000 2000	1979 1979 1990	AC 91-39 AC 91-39 AC 91-39	Straight Straight Straight	4,376 2,287 2,885	1,756 1,073 1,073	1,713 873 1,014
Alternative	Flight Proce	dures:					
3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4	1979 2000 1979 2000	1979 2000 1979 2000	ALPA/NHA MIN ALPA/NHA MIN ALPA/INHA MAX ALPA/NHA MAX	Straight Straight Straight Straight	6,583 4,290 5,117 4,898	1,660 1,294 2,123 1,370	2,555 1,631 1,922 1,845
Alternative	Flight Track	<u>is</u> :					
4.1 4.2 4.3	1979 1990 2000	1979 1979 1979	AC 91-39 AC 91-39 AC 91-39	Curved Curved Curved	3,014 1,756 834	2,548 1,654 1,001	1,186 687 320
Noise Abater	ent Combinat	tons#/:					
5.1 5.2 5.3 5.4	2000 2000 2000 2000	1990 1979 1990 1979	ALPA/INA MIN ALPA/INA MIN ALPA/INA MAX ALPA/INA MAX	1-3 1-3 1-3 1-3	3,472 2,830 3,980 3,231	1,294 1,294 1,370 1,370	1,328 1,089 1,506 1,243

TABLE 5.1 NATIONAL NOISE EXPOSURE SCENARIO SUMMARY

.

 $\frac{d}{d}$ Reflects implications of land use control for alternative flight procedures and noise source control. $\frac{d}{d}$ Population and area in thousands.

1

TABLE 5.2 NATIONAL NOISE EXPOSURE ASSOCIATED WITH CHANGES IN AIRCRAFT FLEET MIX AND OPERATIONS

	<u> </u>	<u>DISE LEVEL (L</u>	.DN)
EXPOSURE PARAMETER	65 to 75	75+	TOTAL
<u>1979 Fleet</u>			
Population (1,000*s)	7,160	394	7,553
Area (Sq. Miles)	2,286	420	2,707
Residences (1,000's)	2,805	135 ·	2,940
1990 Fleet			
Population (1,000's)	4,962	288	5,250
Area (Sq. Miles)	1,453	303	1,756
Residences (1,000's)	1,954	95	2,049
2000 .Fleet			
Population (1,000's)	3,489	139	3,628
Area (Sq. Miles)	894	178	1,073
Residences (1,000's)	1,328	41	1,369

5-4

مستعمقه مليه مسئل تجريبها فياكوك والأكرك فالهاد كالالكو وسنت الما الكمكية سيمه والمسود فالما

Л

A CARLES AND A CARLS AND A

tend to be further removed. High impact areas are also concentrated at runway ends. As aircraft source levels are reduced, the noise contours tend to shrink in towards the airport boundary. Once inside the boundary, there is no community impact due to the lack of residential properties.

The relationship between area and population in the context of shrinking noise contours is presented in Tables 5.3 and 5.4 for the Miami and San Antonio Rports. In 1979, both Rports show a population impact for all contour bands except L_{dn} 85 + dB. Both area and population impact are less in 1990, but more significantly the shrinking contours result in the partial subsuming of the $L_{\rm dn}$ 80 + dB contours either within the airport boundaries or within areas with no residential development. The inward migration of all contours also causes residences in the outer contour bands no longer to be impacted by adverse airport noise levels. For example, as Miami's L_{dn} 65 to 70 dB contour shrinks from 46.3 to 13.4 square miles between 1979 and 2000, respectively, the noise problem is in essence eliminated for residences in a 32.9 square mile area. A similar situation is extant in San Antonio. Note. however, that this Rport shows a reduction in impacted area between 1990 and 2000 but that population actually increases during the 10 year period. This is caused by a population growth rate high enough to more than offset the substantial reduction in noise impacted area.

LAND USE CONTROL IMPLICATIONS

;

and the second stands and the second

A major problem faced by many air carrier airports is the encroachment of non-compatible residential construction into areas adversely impacted by airport noise. Airport proprietors find that the benefits which might otherwise accrue from noise abatement actions are more than offset by this encroachment (see, for example, Table 5.4). Thus, while the area exposed to say L_{dn} 75+ dB contracts over time, more people and residences are affected due to demographic growth.

Agressive noise compatibility planning and implementation would help assure that noise control benefits are actually achieved, as measured by an absolute decrease in population exposed. The analytical tools available for this study did not permit site-specific examination of local land use

Contour Band	1979		1990		20	2000		30
(L _{dn} d B)	Area	Population	Area	Population	Area	Population	Area	Population
55-60	229.6	179.0	139.1	173,3	87.4	119,9	109.0	125.5
60-65	100.6	136,7	70.1	148,3	37.0	127.1	47.5	124.5
65-70	46.3	142.1	28.3	108.2	13.4	65.6	17.0	77.7
70-75	14.4	73.8	9,2	57.9	6,5	30,4	7.9	40.7
75-80	6.5	11,8	4.8	5,8	2.5	0.8	3.1	3,8
80-85	2.8	1.3	1.9	1.4	1.0	1.7	1.3	1.7
85+	1.8		1.4	-	0.8	•	1.0	ب
65~75	60 .7 -	216.0	37.5	166.1	19.1	95.9	24.9	118.5
75+	11.1	13,1	8.1	7.2	4,4	2.5	5.3	5.4

.

TABLE 5-3 RELATIONSHIP OF IMPACTS AREA TO POPULATION^A/ (Miami Rport)

÷

 $\Delta /$ Area in square miles; population in thousands.

and a standard and a standard and a standard and a start

.

Contour Band	19	79	19	90	20(2000
(L _{dn} dB)	Area	Population	Area	Population	Area	Population
55-60	106.6	153.8	58.5	123.4	34.3	79,6
60-65	51,1	88.8	24.6	70.6	14.5	78.8
65-70	17.3	48.0	9.0	21.5	6,5	15.0
70-75	6,6	16.3	4.2	18.8	3.2	26.6
75-80	2.7	1.6	1.7	1.6	1.3	-
80-85	1.0	-	0.6	-	0.4	-
85+	0.7	-	0.4	-	0.3	-
65-70	23,9	64.2	13.2	40.4	9.7	41,6
75+	4.4	1.6	2.8	1.6	2.0	-

- -----

المحدف والمتاريق الأحديب وغابته فالافار فالمتعا المتعاد المتع

TABLE 5-4 RELATIONSHIP OF IMPACTED AREA TO POPULATION^a/ (San Antonio Rport)

 \underline{a} /Area in square miles; population in thousands.

patterns. As a proxy for land use control, normal demographic growth for each Rport was held constant at selected years. There is a certain amount of lead time associated with implementaton of any major new program. A comprehensive soundproofing/relocation program certainly would not be an exception to this general proposition. A lead time of 10 years is thus assumed. That is, for fleet mix year 2000, demographic values are held constant at their 1990 levels. Holding these values constant at 1979 levels also is presented to quantify the "opportunity" loss caused by program lead time.

Two points are useful in clarifying land use implications. First, the area impacted for any given fleet mix remains the same with or without land use controls. What land use controls do is to vary the affected population and residences for a constant area. Second, all program costs are in terms of 1979 dollars. Thus variables which are monetized (such as average home value) do not change over time. Only non-monetized variables change, such as number of homeowners. The table immediately below summarizes the benefits of land use control which restricts growth in areas of high airport noise.

	Year 2000 thousands)	Populati by L _{do}	on (in Contour
Land Use Control Implications	<u>65 to 75</u>	<u>75+</u>	<u>Total</u>
Unrestricted Population Growth	3,489	139	3,628
No Growth After 1990	2,766	119	2,885
No Growth After 1979	2,185	101	2,287

A measure of the opportunity loss is that population growth between years 1979 and 2000 would expose an additional 1.4 million people to adverse noise levels. Another way to look at land use control is to consider that over the 21 year period, there would be a major turn-over in population. Many people currently living in a high noise area would move out, to be replaced by new

When the second
4

residents migrating into the area. If population attrition was not replaced, the opportunity loss would be even greater.

ALTERNATIVE FLIGHT PROCEDURES

and the second sec

The general characteristics of the three takeoff flight procedures examined in this study were described in Chapter IV. Unlike the abatement measures discussed above, use of alternative flight procedures does not offer the opportunity for generally uniform improvements in airport-environs noise levels. All three takeoff flight procedures are comprised of three flight path segments which are identified by their principal operational activities.* However, the procedures differ with respect to the location at which these activities are initiated and the sequence of their occurrence. Thus, a procedure which specifies thrust reduction early in the takeoff operation would tend to reduce noise levels close-in to the airport boundary. However, thrust must later be reapplied thereby increasing noise exposure to areas further removed. The net result is that the procedures tend to shift the locus and intensity of impacts between areas.

A "cross-over" point is represented in Table 5.5 which compares the impact of the three flight procedures for the La Guardia Rport for fleet year 1979. The AC 91-39 procedure has the advantage of reducing noise exposure to areas most severely affected by airport noise, namely the greater than L_{dn} 75 dB contours. However, these areas are relatively small and generally have lower population densities. This is to be expected since the areas contain the airport proper, safety considerations limit the height and location of residential structures and the high noise levels tend to make the area unattractive for residential development.

The cross-over point is reached near the end of the L_{dn} 70 to 75 dB contour band. Here, area impacted is greater both relative to the other flight procedures and to the area closer in to the airport. As a general rule, the greater the area impacted, the greater the population impacted.

*The aircraft performs various operational activities such as landing gear retraction, flap retraction, acceleration and thrust adjustments.

TABLE 5-5 AREA IMPACT OF ALTERNATIVE FLIGHT PROCEDURES LA GUARDIA RPORT (Square Miles)

Noice Costeur	FLIGHT PROCEDURE					
(L _{dn} dB)	AC 91-39	ALPA/NWA MIN	ALPA/NWA MAX			
60-65	106.1	94.1	95.2			
65-70	45.2	37.4	19.4			
70+75*	15.2	13.0	10.3			
75-80	5.9	7.2	6.9			
80-85	2.4	3.4	3.3			
85+	1.4	1.5	1.5			

*Denotes "cross-over" point where AC 91-39 flight procedures results in relatively greater noise exposure.

.

.

.

and a second
The effects of the ALPA/NWA Min flight procedures are basically the converse of those for the AC 91-39 procedure. Impacts increase closer to the airport boundary and decrease further away. The ALPA/NWA Max procedures generally produces the same results, except that noise abatement is significantly greater in the $L_{\rm dn}$ 65 to 75 dB contour area.

Total population exposed to adverse noise levels for fleet year 1979 (from Table 5.1) for the three flight procedures is estimated as follows:

- AC 91-39 -- 7.6 million
- ALPA/NWA Min -- 6.6 million
- ALPA/NWA Max -- 5.1 million

Population impacts by L_{dn} dB contour for the four Rports and on a national basis are summarized in Table 5.6. Note that the ALPA/NWA Max procedure more than doubles the population exposed to L_{dn} 75 + dB as compared to the AC 91-39 procedure. The question thus arises who should be offered relief? The choice becomes one of the greatest good for the greatest number versus concentrating first on those most severely impacted.

An interesting phenomena occurs in the post-1979 period. For fleet year 2000, total population exposed is:

- AC 92-39 -- 3.6 million
- ALPA/NWA Min -- 4.3 million
- ALPA/NWA Max -- 4.9 million

And the state of the second second second

Here not only does the AC 91-39 procedure result in the lowest population impact, but program costs are lowest as well. The AC 91-39 procedure results in lower impact for both the L_{dn} 65 to 70 dB and the L_{dn} 75 + dB contour areas (see Table 5.6). The primary reason is that the air carrier fleet mix has changed to generally replace aircraft powered by low by-pass ratio engines

	1979 Fleet Year		2	000 Fleet Yea	ır	
RPORT	65-70	70-75	75+	65-70	70-75	75+
<u>La Guardia, NY</u>						
AC 91-39	983.5	353.9	83.6	34.2	136,9	15.2
ALPAZNWA MIN	824.1	295.2	121.9	172.8	63,0	19.1 -
ALPA/NWA MAX	526.8	209.7	112.5	274.9	92.8	19,6
<u>Mtamt, FL</u>						
AC 91-39	142.1	73.9	13.1	30.4	65.6	2.5
ALPA/NWA MIN	120.5	61.7	24.3	64.4	40.7	5.5
ALPA/NWA MAX	79.0	46.6	22.2	47.1	62.1	5,5
<u>San Antonio, TX</u>						
AC 91-39	48.0	16.3	1.6	15.0	26,6	-
ALPA/NWA MIN	38.4	10,7	3.9	25.3	26,6	-
ALPA/NWA MAX	24.8	17.2	3.7	34.5	26.6	
Sloux Falls, SD					• 1	
AC 91-39	2.0	. 0,7	1.0	3,4	-	1.3
ALPA/NWA MIN	1.8	2.0	0.9	3.2	-	1.3
ΑΙΡΑΖΝΗΛ ΜΑΧ	1.8	2.0	0.9	3.4	-	1.3
National						
AC 91-39	5085.0	2081.0	394.0	1,331.0	2,160.0	139.0
ALPA/NWA MIN	4208.0	1710,0	670.0	2,350.0	1,762.0	182.0
ALPA/NHA MAX	2773.0	1714.3	891.0	2,647.0	2,070.0	183.0
		وي المراد ال المحد مراد وي				

أسرارته ويشتب محمدهم ومع

TABLE 5-6 POPULATION IMPACT OF ALTERNATIVE FLIGHT PROCEDURES (thousands)

with aircraft powered by high by-pass ratio engines. Reduced thrust levels achievable with the high by-pass ratio engines does not result in as much noise reduction. Thus the AC 91-39 procedure (which achieves more altitude) is much more attractive from a noise abatement viewpoint.

An airport proprietor might well consider employing the ALPA/NWA Min or Max procedures in the near-term, and then shift to the AC 91-39 procedure in the mid-term as changes in fleet composition warrant. The noise prediction methods discussed elsewhere in this report and in the FAA's Part 150 rule offer the opportunity to select the most appropriate flight procedures consistent with an airport's overall noise abatement policy.

EXPANDED SOUNDPROOFING ZONE

This scenario group explores the advantages of expanding the soundproofing assistance area from L_{dn} 65 to 75 dB to L_{dn} 65 to 80 dB. As mentioned previously, this option would not affect the number of people affected by adverse airport-environs noise levels, but instead provides a procedure which can be adapted to the type of housing and housing patterns at an airport. It also provides a mechanism to better accommodate the desires of residents for whom soundproofing or relocation is proposed.

Soundproofing Zone Selection

and the second second second second

The primary soundproofing zone was selected based on a number of factors. First was the feasibility of soundproofing residential units to achieve the desired goal of an interior noise not to exceed L_{dn} 45 dB. There was the recognition that while soundproofing might not be wholly satisfactory to impacted people because their enjoyment of the outdoors would still be limited, they could at least escape to the privacy of their homes and enjoy a good night's sleep, family conversation and relaxation around the television or stereo without the nerve-racking disruption of over-flying aircraft. But there nevertheless are limits to the level of outdoor noise that people should be forced to endue on a long-term, sustaining basis. If the outdoor sound level is too excessive, the escape to the indoors might be tantamount to confinement. The pleasure of outdoor sports, picnics or just

relaxing in the sun would largely be removed. Another factor concerned the cost of soundproofing: the greater the attentuation required to achieve an interior level of L_{dn} 45 dB, the greater the associated costs. The general soundproofing modifications are:

- L_{dn} 65 to 70 dB -- sealing leaks and improving weatherstripping
- L_{dn} 70-75 -- as above, plus installation of storm windows, storm doors and roof insulation, as necessary
- L_{dn} 75-80 -- as above, plus modification of walls to include addition of insulation, as necessary.

As would be expected, the greater the sound attenuation needed to achieve an interior level of L_{dn} 45 dB, the more extensive the modifications must be and costs are increased accordingly.

Consideration of the expanded soundproofing zone was similarly based on technological, cost and compatibility with living conditions. Soundproofing apartments where people normally do not spend an appreciable amount of time on the grounds outside the building should impose a minimum impact on the life style of the residents. This is particularly relevent when soundproofing provides a program alternative to relocation. Recent studies on soundproofing practices have demonstrated that adequate attenuation can be provided for residences in areas exposed to an L_{dn} 75 to 80 dB noise level. The associated costs, although higher compared to the primary soundproofing zone, are not excessive. Taking average costs for Rport category C as an example (see Table 4.11), soundproofing a single unit structure is estimated to cost \$5,240 in the $\rm L_{dn}$ 70 to 75 dB contour and \$11,190 in the $\rm L_{dn}$ 75 to 80 dB contour, an increase of 113 percent. However, as the number of units per structure increases, the structural modifications are less and the cost multiple is significantly reduced. For example, the cost differential for structures of greater than 50 units is much more attractive in both an absolute and relative sense (i.e., \$685 versus \$860, a 26 percent increase). An analysis of 10 airports, which included the four study Rports, compared total soundproofing/relocation costs with the relocation threshold at L_{dn} 75

5-14

موجوم ومعطوهما والمراجع المراجع والمروح والمتعادية المعاد والمعاد والمراجع والمحافظ والمتعاد والمحافظ

dB versus L_{dn} 80 dB. Total program costs for the 10 airports was 65 percent for the expanded soundproofing zone.

The policy implications of an expanded soundproofing zone involve important trade-offs. Enjoyment of the outdoors would of course be more severely impaired given the higher outdoor noise levels. But soundproofing does offer the possibility of minimizing the social, economic and political disruption which might otherwise be associated with a broad relocation effort. This point is the crucial factor: soundproofing becomes an option for relocation. And this option need not apply across the board for all residences within an L_{dn} 75 to 80 dB contour.*

The Chapter II issue analysis noted that the contour lines are not precise, but are subject to a margin of error. Also, a relocation area in all likelihood would not be inflexibly defined. It would tend to follow natural boundaries such as roads or streams and would tend to avoid bifurcating small neighborhood enclaves. Furthermore, local residents, although desiring to be afforded relief from excess noise levels, might vehemently oppose a relocation effort. Opposition is likely to be more pronounced if relocation resulted in the split-up of ethnic and other neighborhoods where a strong sense of community ties exists.

Program Exposure Implication

An expansion of the soundproofing zone means that residences which would otherwise be candidates for relocation would become candidates for soundproofing. Since per unit costs are significantly less for soundproofing, the shift would reduce total implementation costs. This relationship is presented in Table 5.7 for the Miami Rport and for fleet year 1979. Combined costs per residential unit are estimated at \$3,691, comprised of an average unit cost of \$2,054 for soundproofing and \$34,480 for relocation. The expanded zone lowers combined unit costs to \$2,530, a 31 percent reduction.

and the second and the second

^{*}The study impact estimation procedure did not allow for a split of soundproofing and relocation within a given contour area. However, comparison of impacts associated with a primary versus an expanding soundproofing zone does provide insights into the implication of a mixed relocation and soundproofing effort.

TABLE 5-7COMPARISON OF PRIMARY AND EXPANDED SOUNDPROOFING ZONESMiami Rport

Exposure Parameter	Soundproofing	Relocation	Total
Primary Zone ^{a)}			
Population (thousands)	216.0	13.1	229.1
Area (square miles)	60.7	11.1	71.5
Residences (thousands)	94.0	5.0	99.0
Program Costs (\$ millions)	193.1	172.4	365,4
Cost per Residence	2,054	34,480	3,691
Expanded_Zone ^{b)}			
Population (thousands)	227.8	1.3	229.1
Area (square miles)	67.1	4.6	71.8
Residences (thousands)	98.8	0.5	99.3
Program Costs (\$ millions)	233.5	17.7	251.2
Cost per Residence	2,363	35,400	2,530

a) Defined as L_{dp} 65 to 75 dB for soundproofing eligibility; L_{dn} 75 + for relocation eligibility.

^{b)} Defined as L_{dp} 65 to 80 dB for soundproofing eligibility; L_{dn} 80 + for relocation eligibility.

C) Variation in total residences due to application of different grow rates for demographic updates.

فللمعو والإسرامين والمراجر المراجع والمراجع والمنافع المعاد والمعاد والمنافع والمعادي والمحافظ

The second state of the state of the second st

Soundproofing unit costs are higher under this option, since costs are uniformly greater the more attentuation is required. The example for the Miami Rport also shows a slight increase in relocation costs (3 percent). However, such an increase would not occur in all situations. Rather, unit relocation costs are strongly dependent on housing values. At many commercial air carrier airports experiencing adverse noise levels, the quality of the housing stock is less the closer the residence is to the airport boundary (where noise levels are generally the highest). The result is the expanding soundproofing zone may actually decrease relocation unit costs. On a total program cost basis, the option would offer a reduction from \$365 million to \$251 million.

As the fleet mix changes over time, however, the program cost savings of an expanded soundproofing zone are not as pronounced. This is primarily attributable to the use of quieted aircraft which achieve the greatest reduction in noise exposure for areas closest to the airport. By the year 2000, there are proportionally fewer residences in the L_{dn} 75 to 80 dB contour area, with less attendant cost savings of an expanded soundproofing zone.

AIRPORT PROCEDURES

A The second sec

Calculation of the percent reduction in the number of people impacted by aircraft noise at a given level as a result of going from straight in and out flight tracks with even runway distribution of take-off operations to the use of preferrential runways and curved flight tracks involves several approximations. Not having complete information on localized situations in this study, some opportunities for improvement are missed and some assumed opportunities would not work out as expected. It is also recognized that some airports currently are using preferential runways to lower the noise impact on people.

Other airports are using runways which point toward aircraft destinations which happen to increase the number of people impacted by a given aircraft noise level. Thus, both the base calculation of the aircraft noise exposure used in this study as representing current and future operations and

the percent reduction in noise predicted to result from the use of preferential runways and curved flight tracks are approximations. Only by making studies at individual airports can the noise exposure reduction be accurately determined.

A comparison of the potential benefits of using alternative airport procedures is presented below:

	Population	(1,000's)
<u>Fleet Year</u>	Straight	Curved
1979	7,553	3,014
1990	4,376	1,756
2000	2,287	834

The exposure estimates, summarized from Table 5.1, are based on restricting demographic change to 1979 values. Reducations in population exposed to noise levels in excess of L_{dn} 65 dB range within a narrow band of 36 to 40 percent for the three years considered. It is interesting to note, however, that impact area is reduced by less than 7 percent. This result is to be expected when it is noted that alternative airport procedures have minimal impact on noise reduction; rather, the procedures redirect the impact to areas with relatively less population density.

The majority of this study focused on the four Rports. For alternative flight procedures, six additional airports were considered to better capture the widely varying demographic patterns around the Nation's airports. Population exposure related to these ten airports is presented in Table 5.8. For these airports as a group, alternative airport procedures reduce population exposure by 50 percent as compared to the 36 to 40 percent reduction noted above. However, the reduction varies considerably among the airports. For example, La Guardia is virtually surrounded by fairly dense housing patterns thus making it difficult to re-direct aircraft operations to minimize population exposure. The reverse is the case for airports such as Los Angeles, where a significant number of daily operations can (and are) directed over the Pacific Ocean thereby virtually avoiding developed areas. Where water barriers exist, the benefits of alternative airport procedures can be expected to continue into the future. Such may not be case for land-locked

5-18

Water of the second water of and an and an and the second strength

TABLE 5.8

POPULATION COMPARISON OF STRAIGHT VERSUS CURVED FLIGHT TRACKS AND PRIORITY RUNWAYS (1979)

AIRPORT	STRAIGHT	CURVED	PERCENT REDUCTION
Dayton (DAY)	9,745	2,270	77
Sioux Falls (FSD)	3,630	982	73
Indiannapolis (IND)	17,915	7,798	56
Los Angeles (LAX)	399,276	102,957	74
Memphis (MEM)	106,045	40,529	62
Chicago (ORD)	657,495	174,882	73
New York Kennedy (JFK)	380,306	224,938	41
San Antonio (SAT)	65,828	23,833	64
Miami (MIA)	229,177	76,688	67
New York La Guardia (LGA)	1,420,954	1,001,241	<u>30</u>
TOTAL	3,290,371	1,656,108	50

فليناجب والانبهان بجهاد كينها الرضواة بايتباطه

airports surrounded by land suitable for development but not as yet appreciably occupied. Absent land use compatibility controls, options with respect to alternative airport procedures may well be limited over time.

SUMMARY

It is evident from the preceding discussion that an airport proprietor has available an number of options and perspectives from which to address the airport-community noise exposure problem. But for all Rports addressed in the study (which are in turn representative of 129 actual airports), the noise control options would not eliminate adverse noise impact by the year 2000. They merely provide mechanisms by which the residual noise problem might be minimized.

Five general perspectives may be used in selected options. These are:

- Minimize total soundproofing/relocation program costs
- Minimize the highest adverse noise exposure
- Minimize total adverse noise exposure
- Minimize residential relocation.
- Prevent additional incompatibilities.

Implementation of effective noise compatibility land use controls would promote all policy options by preventing encroachment into noise sensitive areas. Consideration of an expanded soundproofing zone would reduce total program costs and minimize residential relocation by limiting eligibility for this type of assistance. Consideration of alternative flight procedures offers a mixed bag of benefits. For fleet year 1979, the ALPA/NWA procedures reduce the noise exposure for residents furthest from the airport but increase exposure for areas closer in. The net effect is that total adverse noise exposure is reduced but total program costs are greater due to the greater incidence of relocation eligibility (i.e., exposure to $L_{\rm dn}$ 75 +

5-20

والعسم العائية المقدم فتتم أبيدته متشام كمعايات

the second second second and a second s

dB increases). The converse holds for the AC 91-39 procedures. For fleet year 2000, the AC 91-39 procedures would have a beneficial impact on all policy options.

The magnitude of the policy option impacts varies among Rports and, by definition, AVport categories. Table 5.9 summarizes the population exposure and program costs for fleet year 2000 and the AC 91-39 flight procedures. The baseline case refers to year 2000 demographics and land use control is assumed to limit population change to 1990 levels. The 1990 demographic year applies to the expanded soundproofing zone.

The projected statistics show that LaGuardia actually increases population levels between years 1990 and 2000. This results from the projection methodology which applied the pre-1979 growth rate to future years. For LaGuardia, the rate was negative. This does not, however, mean that land use control offers a disbenefit. As noted previously, the methodology could not capture the impact of population and residential construction turn-over. The cost benefit of an expanded soundproofing zone is substantial due to the relatively large population residing the $L_{\rm dn}$ 75 to 80 dB contour.

The Miami Rport was projected to experience moderate population growth, leading to a moderate benefit of land use control. The expanded soundproofing zone option would change the mix of relocation versus soundproofing assistance for some 700 people. Total program costs would be reduced accordingly.

1

Ş

A CALENDARY AND A COMPANY

And the state of the second se

For San Antonio, the projected demographic growth rates are quite high, leading to a significant reduction in population exposure resulting from land use controls. Note that the lack of people in relocation zone. This results from a combination of the use of quieted aircraft and the general lack of residences close to the airport boundary.

The converse is true for the Sioux Falls Rport. Here, there is a pocket of people extremely close to the airport boundary who even in year 2000 would be exposed to noise levels in excess of L_{dn} 75 dB.

_	Population	Population Exposed (Thousands)			
RPORTS	Soundproofing	Relocation	Total	(\$ Millions)	
LaGuardia, NY					
Baseline	171.1	15.2	186.3	191.1	
Land Use Control	173.9	15.2	189.1	192.0	
Expanded Soundproofing Zone	186.4	2.7	189.1	125.8	
Miami, FL					
Baseline	95.9	2.5	98.4	122.6	
Land Use Control	81.8	2.1	83.9	100.6	
Expanded Soundproofing Zone	82.4	1.4	83.9	97.1	
<u>San Antonfo, TX</u>					
Baseline	41.7	-	41.7	41.5	
Land Use Control	29.9	•	30.0	27.7	
Expanded Soundproofing Zone	30.0	-	30.0	27.6	
<u>Sioux Falls, SD</u>	•				
Baseline	3.4	1.3	4.6	9.2	
Land Use Control	3.0	1.1	4.0	7.9	
Expanded Soundproofing Zone	3.0	1.1	4.0	7.9	

ì

TABLE 5.9 COMPARISON OF ABATEMENT ALTERNATIVES^{2/} (Fleet Year 2000)

.

The state of the factor and a set of the the second and the second as a second

 $\underline{a}/\mathrm{Baseline}$ refers to year 2000 demographics; land use control and expanded soundproofing refer to year 1990 demographics.

5-22

محققه سيتحملوا والمطور وووق والوجوا الرابع المرور والرواحين والويجران الرواحجري التهيبية هرائه بعدهما الالا فاسترارا

VI. RELOCATION COSTING PROCEDURE

This chapter describes the framework from which the relocation costs described in Chapter IV were developed. The type of assistance which may be offered in a given relocation program is modeled after the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 42 U.S.C. 4601. Although there would be instances in which the Act must be applied due to Federal participation in the project, it is anticipated that there will be many cases in which the Federal Government would not be involved and in these instances the Act may be used as a helpful guide in program planning.

The framework begins with an overview of the applicability and requirements of this Act. Next a set of relocation cases is defined and a procedure to estimate the frequency of each case is set forth. Finally, costs associated with each program element covered by the cases are presented.

UNIFORM RELOCATION ACT REQUIREMENTS

į

2

معمد المعلمة المعلمة وتحاجيه والمعاد

Enacted in 1971, the Relocation Act was a Congressional response to problems caused by differing and conflicting provisions for relocating displaced persons inherent in a wide range of federally-assisted programs. These programs ranged from providing no assistance at all in some cases to providing liberal benefits and protection in others. The Act was directed at resolving these inequities by establishing a uniform policy for the fair and

equitable treatment of persons displaced as a result of Federal and federallyassisted programs.

Whether the Relocation Act would actually apply for an airport soundproofing/relocation program remains an open question. Applicability centers around the meaning of Section 101(6) of the Act which defines "displaced person". It is this definition that governs eligibility for the several types of assistance availabe under the Act. Section 101(6) provides, as pertinent, that:

> The term "displaced person" means any person who... moves from real property, or moves his personal property from real property, as a result of acquisition of such real property, in whole or in part,... for a program or project undertaken by a Federal agency, or with Federal financial assistance;....

Section 108 of the Act extends relocation coverage to state agencies whenever such agency acquires real property "...at the request of a Federal agency for a Federal program or project..." In such instances, the acquisition for the purpose of the Act shall be deemed an acquisition by the cognizant Federal agency. A state agency is defined in Section 101(3) as:

...any department, agency, or instrumentality of a State or of a political subdivision of a State, or any department, agency, instrumentality of two or more States or two or more political subdivisions of a State or States.

Coverage of a displaced person thus requires that there be extant a clear Federal involvement (in the form of financial assistance or a program or project) and that the acquisition be undertaken directly by a Federal agency or through a political instrumentality of a state.

The Federal Government may be involved in the program under three broad mechanisms. The first is direct grants and loan guarantees to individual airports, such as those under the Federal Aviation Administration's Airport Development Aid Program (ADAP) or Federal-aid to Airport Program (FAAP). Even partial funding would bring the program under the first test of applicability of the Act as long as such funds are used specifically for the acquisition of residences and relocation of profile.

6-2

». مصفور بالمربوبينية المراجع التي المربوبية المربوبينية بكر في المربوب المربوب في تعقيم هذه

.

Weiter with the Barrier and the State of the

The second mechanism arises if the overall program would come under some degree of direct Federal Government direction or control. An example scenario would have noise charges collected by individual airports transferred to the Federal Government and then allocated to airport programs depending on their need. This hypothetical process is similar to the Highway Trust Fund which allocates funds to various State highway departments. As long as funds finance identified airport programs, the first test would be met.*

The final mechanism would occur where the Federal Government would possibly suggest standards and time limitations for program implementation, but would not be involved in allocating funds collected by individual airports as discussed in the case above. While a Federal "presence" would be extant, persons would not displaced as a result of a program or project <u>undertaken</u> by a Federal agency nor would Federal financial assistance be involved.

From the above discussion, it is evident that, while it is certainly possible that the Relocation Act could apply to airport-specific relocation/ soundproofing programs, conclusions regarding the extent of its coverage are not possible at this time. The Act nevertheless provides a useful basis from which relocation costs can be developed. This is done by first defining a set of discrete relocation cases and then determining costs for each case.

ALLOWABLE COSTS

Contraction of the

£

日本の記録であるため

Ç

and the second s

Persons displaced under the Relocation Act are entitled to assistance and cost reimbursement in three categories as follows:

*A possible exception would be if the fund transfers were characterized as "block grants" with virtually no strings attached. This situation could be analogous to general revenue sharing funds allocated pursuant to the State and Local Fiscal Assistance Act of 1972, 31 U.S.C. 1221 <u>et seq</u>. These funds transfer have been held to be exempt from the Relocation Act because of the Act's requirements and the "no strings attached" intent of general revenue sharing.

والمتعادية فالمنافع والمتعادي والمتعاد والمتعاد المتعا

Contract and the second second second

 Relocation assistance advisory services -- a program element funded by the relocation agency to provide general assistance to displaced persons

 Direct payments not subject to statutory limitations - homeowners and tenants are entitled to reimbursement for actual reasonable moving expenses and homeowners are entitled to the fair market value for acquired property.

 Direct reimbursements subject to statutory limitations reasonsable costs associated with securing replacement housing subject to a maximum of \$15,000 for homeowners and 4,000 for tenants.

The basic cost elements of the three categories are summarized in Table 6.1 and are discussed in more detail below.

DEFINITION OF RELOCATION CASES

Four relocation cases are defined as follows:

- Case A -- Renters who remain renters
- Case B -- Renters who become homeowners
- Case C -- Rental property to be purchased
- Case D -- Owner-occupied units to be purchased.

Relocation cost elements applicable to each case are summarized in Table 6.2 lhe cases are discussed below.

Kenters Who Remain Renters

The stand the state the state of the state o

The first case is comprised of existing renters who elect to remain renters. Section 204 of the Act provides for payments to tenants in displaced dwellings who were tenants for at least 90 days prior to the initiation of negotiations for acquisition of such dwellings. These persons are entitled to a rent supplement for up to four years in the event that the rent in a

6-4

المستحدة والمرور والأربيان الراجي والمتورية والمستحم

DESCRIPTION	ACT REFERENCE	COMMENTS
ADVISORY SERVICES	Sec. 205	 Available to displaced persons and adjacent property owners Covers property appraisal, locating replacement housing, agency administra- tive expenses, etc.
DIRECT PAYMENTS WITH NO LIMITATIONS		
 Moving expenses 	Sec. 202	 Actual, reasonable expenses
		 Moving (\$300) and dislocation (\$200) expenses allowance in lieu of,actual expenses
 Purchase Price 	Sec. 203	 Fair Market Value (FMV) of dwelling acquired
		 I.Imited to homeowners.
DIRECT PAYMENTS WITH LIMITATIONS		
<pre> Replacement Costs (Homeowners) </pre>	Sec. 203	 Difference between purchase price of replacement dwelling and FNV of dwelling acquired

 TABLE 6-1

 ASSISTANCE AND COST REIMBURSEMENT ITEMS UNDER THE RELOCATION ACT

.

TABLE 6-1 (Cont.)

.

DESCRIPTION	ACT REFERENCE	COMITENTS		
• Increased Interest Cost	Sec. 203	 Interest differential between acquired and replacement dwelling (homeowners with bona fide mortgage). 		
 Closing Cost 	Sec. 203	 Reasonable expenses for evidence of title, recording fees, and closing costs related to replacement dwelling (homeowners only). 		
Downpayment	Sec. 204	 Tenants purchasing replacement housing (not to exceed \$4,000, with displaced person matching payments in excess of \$2,000). 		
 Replacement Costs (Tenants) 	Sec. 204	 Lease or rental differential between acquired and replacement rental dwelling. 		
• Income Foregone	Sec. 202	 Compensation to owners of rental prop- erty, subject to \$10,000 maximum. 		

Contraction and the second
COST ELEMENT	RELOCATION CASE*						
	A	B	с	D			
Advisory Service Cost	· X	X	x	X.			
Moving Cost	X	X		x			
Purchase Price			X	x			
Replacement Cost	x			x			
Increased Interest Cost				x			
Closing Cost	1			x			
Downpayment		X					
Foregone Earnings			X				
*Relocation Cases							
A. Renters Who Remain Renters							
B. Renters Who Become Homeowners							
C. Rental Property to be Purchased							
D. Owner-Occupied Units to be Purchased							

TABLE 6-2 COST ELEMENTS AND RELOCATION COSTS

,不不可以有可以有可以有可以有可以不可以不可以有可能有可以不可能有可能的可能的有可能的。 化间离化剂用用间面和合合物和合合物和合合物的分子

And The company of a second

replacement unit exceeds the rent the displaced person is paying at the time of relocation. Such payments may not exceed \$4,000. Renters are also entitled to the advisory services of the local relocation agency (Section 205) and to re-imbursement for moving expenses.

Renters Who Become Homeowners

The Relocation Act recognizes that renters who are dislocated may want to purchase their own homes as an option to moving to another rental property. These people are entitled to the advisory services of the relocation agency and re-imbursement for moving expenses. In addition, there is a special provision in Section 205 of the Relocation Act making money available for downpayments (including incidential expenses) on replacement homes. Such payments shall not exceed \$4,000, except that the renter must match any amount paid in excess of \$2,000.

Rental Property To Be Purchased

The third relocation case is made up of rental property to be purchased. Owners of these properties are entitled to the fair market value of their rental units. Because landlords typically suffer a disruption of their business operations and lose their existing tenants in the course of the relocation, they may elect to accept a compensatory payment to cover the cost of their foregone earnings from the rental units. Such payments are distinct from payments to dislocated renters addressed under the prior two cases.

Owner-Occupied Units To Be Purchased

Berne March & Barry Sugar Strate & State and State and State and State State State State State State State State

The fourth and most complex relocation case is made up of owneroccupied units to be purchased. It is assumed that the owners of these units will remain homeowners even though some will, in fact, choose to become renters. This simplifying assumption may result in a slight overestimate of the relocation cost of homeowners.

Relocated homeowners are entitled to the services of the relocation agency and re-imbursement for moving costs. The homeowners are also entitled

6-8

حجسها ويهيه والانتهادية البقات البالية وأراحا ووكاتو يتعينه مصعفه متامه

to the purchase price (at fair market value) of their homes and a supplemental payment over and above the fair market value in the event that the purchase price of the comparable replacement home exceeds the fair market value of their homes in the area exposed to excessive airport noise. They are also entitled to compensation for any increased interest costs resulting from liquidating the original mortgage and taking out a new mortgage on the replacement dwelling at the current mortgage interest rate, and any closing costs involved in the purchase of the replacement home.

CASE FREQUENCIES

The procedures described here for estimating relocation case frequencies rely almost exclusively on the output of the ALAMO program (Reference 1) as modififed by the updating procedures in ORI'S DEMCOM program (see Reference 2 and prior discussion in Chapter IV). A sample output from DEMCOM is provided in Figure 6.1 for reference purposes (in particular, note the frequency data on the numbers of households, renters, homeowners and housing units).

Renters Who Remain Renters

- ----

第二十五日の日本の時間のためのために、ここの

のなるなないで、「日本のない」では、

Carlo Andre and

The total number of renters residing within the L_{dn} 75+ dB contour in year 1979 for the Rport represented by Miami International Airport is 2,837 (see Figure 6.1). Should these renters avail themselves of the relocation option, they may choose under the Relocation Act to either remain renters (Case A) or become homeowners (Case B). The mix between Case A and Case B was based on a survey of the U.S. Department of Transportation's Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) experience under the Relocation Act (Reference 3). A survey 2,473 tenants relocated during Fiscal Year 1979 resulted in 2,086 claims which did not involve downpayment assistance. Thus, 84 percent of affected tenants chose to remain renters. This percentage is used as a constant for all relocation frequencies examined in this report. For Miami, the frequency of Case A is 2,383 (or 2,837 x .84).

Renters Who Become Homeowners

The FHWA survey mentioned immediately above resulted in 16 percent of affected tenants filing claims under the Relocation Act for downpayment assistance. This percentage is similarly applied to relocation frequencies. For Miami, the frequency of Case B is thus 454 (or 2,837 x .16).

Rental Property to be Purchased

Noting again Figure 6.1, there were 3,582 residential housing structures located in the potential relocation zone. These structures range from a single building of more than 50 units to some 3,144 single-unit dwellings. It is assumed for purposes of this study that rental properties consist of all structures minus those occupied by homeowners, who are further assumed to all reside in single-unit dwellings. The number of rental properties subject to purchase (Case C) under the Relocation Act is thus 1,399 (or 3,582 - 2,183).

Owner-Occupied Units to be Purchased

The final classification (Case D) consists of owner-occupied units which would be eligible for purchase under the Relocation Act. This is assumed to be comprised of the total number of homeowners from Figure 6.1 or 2,183.

RELOCATION ELEMENT COSTS

ŝ

1999年の1998年のために、1999年の1999年1999年の1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年1999年199

And the second se

Estimates are presented in this section for cost elements comprising each relocation case in 1979 dollars. Certain costs (such as those for advisory services, moving costs and closing costs) are constants which apply to all Rports and all scenarios. Others are dependent upon localized demographic conditions and therefore vary across Rports and scenarios. Examples include purchase price and replacement costs for properties relocated. Much of the data needed to calculate airport-specific element costs are provided as direct output of ORI's DEMCON program. A sample output page is provided in Figure 6.1 for the Rport represented by Miami International

Airport, updated for 1979 values and 1979 baseline air carrier operations and for the L_{dn} 75+ dB contour. References to costs associated with this Rport are provided for added clarity to the description of cost element derivation provided below.

Advisory Service Costs

Advisory service costs are costs incurred by the relocation agency. They cover such activities as appraisal, negotiations, relocation assistance and administration. They may also include the cost of locating and appraising three or more comparable replacement housing units for each unit to be vacated. This activity is recommended by the Relocation Act and is used to determine the reasonable cost of replacement housing and to provide the dislocated households with alternatives. The households may reject the alternatives and find their own replacement housing but they will be subject to the "reasonable cost" estimates of the relocation agency. In 1979, the service costs of relocation incurred by the Federal Highway Administration (Reference 3) averaged \$1,200. This constant is used for all cases.

Moving Costs

Moving costs are incurred by all relocated households. Under the Relocation Act, households may be compensated for actual costs or may elect to receive a fixed allowance. Under the Act, all moves are local or treated as if they were local. In 1979, eighty-four percent of all households relocated by the Department of Transportation chose to receive the moving allowance plus dislocation allowance totaling \$500 per household or less. The remainder were compensated for actual costs which averaged \$1,200 a household. The average moving cost per household in 1979 was approximately \$500. This value is also constant for all cases.

Closing Costs

A State Barrier and a state of the second second second second

Closing costs are incurred by all persons making a home purchase. In 1979 the Department of Transportation reported that closing costs associated with relocation averaged \$400 per unit. Closing costs are low because the

6-12

and the spectrum of the

relocation agency provides guarantees to lending institutions and acts, to some extent, as legal representative for the relocated households. Also, all households participating in the relocation program are typically exempt from all taxes associated with the sale of their original units and the purchase of the replacement units. A constant \$400 is used for all cases.

Downpayment

The Federal Relocation Act has a special provision designed to assist tenants in becoming homeowners. Specifically, \$2000 is available outright to tenants for use as a downpayment and an additional \$2000 is available on a matching basis. It is assumed that each tenant electing this option has at least \$2000 to put toward a downpayment and, therefore, is eligible for the full \$4000 downpayment allowance.

Replacement Cost

.

- 1991年の第二日の一番新聞

and the second s

Relocated tenants and homeowners receive a payment to cover the increased rental or purchase price required to obtain comparable replacement housing in a quieter neighborhood. Airports exert two distinct effects on residential land values: a depreciation effect due to aircraft noise and an appreciation effect due to accessibility to the airport (Reference 4). The Relocation Act requires that replacement housing be equally accessible to places of employment. Since the airport is an employment center, replacement housing is assumed to be equally accessible to the airport so that the appreciation in residential property values due to access cancels out, leaving only the depreciation effect due to noise.

Regarding the decrement in rents and property values due to noise exposure, residential rents and property values are assumed to decline by one half of one percent per decibel of noise exposure, holding distance to the airport constant (Reference 5).

The community of the second
It is further assumed that a typical relocation within the greater than L_{dn} 75 dB contour would move from an area of average noise exposure of L_{dn} 77.5 dB to an area with an average exposure of L_{dn} 62.5 dB.* This relocation involves an increase in residential rents and property values of 7.5 percent (0.5 x 15).**

While the decrement percent is constant for all Rports, the actual value for replacement housing varies by Rport based on average rent and home values. Under the Relocation Act tenants are eligible to a lump sum payment equal to four times the increase in their annual rent. For the Rport represented by Miami International, the average rent in 1979 is \$198 per month or \$2,376 per year. The relocation involves an increase in rents of 7.5 percent or \$178.20 per year. Four times this is \$713, the average replacement cost for tenants.

The average home value for the Miami Rport is \$31,658. The relocation involves moving to a comparable house in a quieter neighborhood where homes cost 7.5 percent more, or an incremental replacement cost of \$2,374.***

Purchase Price of Owner-Occupied Units

The homeowners displaced as a result of an airport relocation effort are entitled to the fair market value for purchased properties. The average home value in 1979 dollars for the Miami Rport is \$31,658.

*The latter area was chosen to reflect property in the general vicinity of an airport but exposed to noise levels below L_{dn} 65 dB which would make the property a candidate for soundproofing assistance. Stated somewhat differently, a reasonable goal of a program would be to offer positive relief to affected residents and not to merely transfer a family between areas affected by adverse airport noise levels.

and a second
المحاد فيستعيد المروحة والاعترارين

***The Relocation Act's \$15,000 limit on replacement dwelling has not been raised in 10 years, even in the face of rapidly escallating housing values during this period. However, Federal agency experience under the Act is that payments generally do not exceed this limit. This situation may have changed in the last few years due to the extremely high interest rates. 6-14

^{**}The increase could be 10.0 percent for relocations from a Ldn 80+ dB
contour.

Purchase Price of Rental Property

Under the Relocation Act all owners who must vacate their dwellings are entitled to receive fair market value for their residential property. From information on the monthly rental, an estimate of the fair market value of the typical rental property is derived. The formula used is:

$$C = \frac{12(RU)}{i}$$
(1)

where:

"又將行為其其情况的自己的是否可以在自己的情報的意义。"在我的思想也能

and the second s

 C = fair market value of a typical rental property in a given year
 R = monthly rental income from a typical rental

- unit in that same year
- U = average number of units per rental property
- i = estimated mortgage interest rate in that year.

Equation (1) is a simplification of a complex relationship in that it ignores capital gains, depreciation, maintenance costs, taxes and anticipated changes in rents and interest rates.* It is assumed that these complicating factors tend to offset one-another so that Equation (1) provides an estimate of the present value of rental property which is adequate for the purpose of making cost estimates.

The average rent (R) in 1979 for the Miami Rport is \$198 per month or \$2,376 per year. The average number of units per rental property (U) within the L_{dn} 75+ dB contour is estimated by subtracting the number of homeowners (who are assumed to occpy single-unit structures) from total airport units and then dividing by the total number of structures, less the number of homeowners. The equation is:

*See Appendix D of Reference 6 for the procedure used in Equation (1) in mathematical notation.
$$U = \frac{x - y}{z - y}$$

where x = total number of residential units
 y = total number of homeowners
 z = total number of residential structures.

Derivation of the mortgage interest rate (i) for the relocation year presents special problems due to year-to-year fluctuations in the rate. Because the costing procedure is intended to be representative of all relocation cases in all scenario years, the actual mortgage interest rates prevailing in the year of sale are not used. Instead, rates are used from which unwanted year-to-year fluctuations have been removed. These "smoothed out" rates better represent the linear trend in interest rates over the 25 year period 1955-1979. The time series data for this period are listed in Table 6.3 and plotted in Figure 6.2. Also shown in Figure 6.2 is the least square line fitting the data. This line is used to estimate the trend-line mortgage interest rates for the historical period and for the forecast years. Thus,

$$i = 0.048 + 0.00196Y$$

where:

i = mortgage interest rate in year Y

Y = year analyzed with 1955=0 (e.g., if relocation occurs in year 1979, then Y = 24).

Applying Equations (1) to (3) to the Miami Rport results in an average rental property purchase price of \$55,472.

Increased Interest Cost

and a second second and a second second second second second second and a second second second second second s

The increased interest cost occurs when the interest rate on the replacement mortgage exceeds the interest rate on the original mortgage. To insure that the relocation does not impose a financial burden on the relocated homowner, special compensation is made to offset the increase in interest rates. No compensation is required if there is no increase in interest rates or if the acquired property is not encumbered by a bona fide mortgage.

(2)

(3)

المستنف ويحصرون والمتحد والمتحد والمراجع والمراجع والمتحم والمتحم والم

For convenience, the provisions of the Relocation Act dealing with increased interest costs are provided below:

The amount, if any, which will compensate such displaced person for any increased interest costs which such person is required to pay for financing the acquisition of any such comparable replacement dwelling. Such amount shall be paid only if the dwelling acquired by the Federal agency was encumbered by a bona fide mortgage which was a valid lien on such dewlling for not less than one hundred and eighty days prior to the initiation of negotiations for the acquisition of such dwelling. Such amount shall be equal to the excess in the aggregate interest and other debt service costs of that amount of the principal of the mortgage on the replacement dwelling which is equal to the unpaid balance of the mortgage on the acquired dwelling, over the remainder term of the mortgage on the acquired dwelling, reduced to discounted present value. The discount rate shall be the prevailing interest rate paid on savings deposits by commercial banks in the general area on which the replacement dwelling is located.

Given the amount remaining on the original mortgage, the number of monthly payments remaining, the original mortgage interest rate and the mortgage interest rates in effect in the year of the relocation, the increased interest cost is calculated as follows:

$$I = \frac{A-B}{C} D$$

where:

小学生,一生生物的复数形式 化合理机器 建建立合金

ŝ

14 Same

I = increased interest cost

- A = monthly payment based on new interest rate
- B = monthly payment based on original interest rate
- C = monthly payment based on passbook savings interest rate

(4)

D = outstanding balance on old mortgage.

The year in which the homeowner purchased his home, and the interest rate in effect in that year, are crucial to the determination of increased interest cost. Some homes in the relocation area may have been purchased recently at relatively high interest rates. Others may have been purchased long ago at the low interest rates prevailing at that time. This complex reality may be approximated with a single representative case. Specifically, the following assumptions apply to all purchased homes:

and the second
YEAR	YEAR INDEX	ACTUAL RATE	ESTIMATED RATE
1955	.0.0	0.0500	0.0483
1955	1.0	0.0530	0.0503
1957	2.0;	0.0590	0.0523
1958	3.0	0.0580	0.0542
1959	4.0	0.0620	0.0562
1960	5.0	0.0640	0.0581
1961	6.0	0.0610	0.0601
1962	7.0	0.0600	0.0621
1963	8.0	0.0589	0.0540
1964	9.0	0.0582	0.0660
1965	10.0	0.0851	0.0680
1966	11.0	0.0625	0.0699
1967	12.0	0.0646	0.0719
1968	13.0	0.0697	0.0738
1969	14.0	0.0780	0.0758
1970	15.0	0.0845	0.0778
1971	16.0	0.0774	0.0797
1972	17.0	0.0760	0.0817
1973	18.0	0.0795	0.0836
1974	19.0	0.0892	0.0856
1975	20.0	0.0901	0.0876
1976	21.0	0.0899	0.0895
1977	22.0	0.0901	0.0915
1978	23.0	0.0954	0.0934
1979	24.0	0.1077	0.0954

TABLE 6.3 ACTUAL AND ESTIMATED MORTGAGE INTEREST RATES FOR THE YEARS 1955-1979

Source: 1955-1962, The Data Resources U.S. Long-Term Review, Winter 1977, Data Resources, Inc., "Housing," pages 11.10 - 11.11

1963-1979, <u>Economic Report of the President</u>, <u>Transmitted to the</u> <u>Congress</u>, <u>January 1980</u>, Table 64, page 278

6-18

- --- مدد... و .--- مودو را محمد المبد . - ---

Wently hit has been at hit by and a star in a solar time continuation in some in some and and and a solar and a



ł

ĥ

1日の行きを、11日の日本の教室の人です

いたのではなどのないのないです。

ţ Section 1

- Mortgage duration at original purchase is 25 years
- Mortgage 10 years old at time of relocation (15 years remaining)
- Passbook saving rate of 5.25 percent
- Downpayment of 10% of purchase price
- Smooth-out interest rates used (See Table 6.3).

Combining all of these assumptions lead to a simplified equations for three representative relocation years:

$I_{1979} = 0.050414 E$	(5)
$I_{1990} = 0.114828 E$	(6)
$I_{2000} = 0.124469 E$	(7)

where: I = increased interest cost E = average home value.

The average home value for the Miami Rport is \$31,658. Thus, the increased 1979 interest cost is \$1,596.

Equations (5) to (7) coupled with the assumptions presented earlier are intended to provide a straight-forward means to estimate increased interest costs. An approximation of the costs associated with relocation years other than 1979, 1990 and 2000 may be obtained by extropolating between the constant values in the three equations.

Critical to the use of the simplified methodology is the use of the "smoothed out" interest rates in equation (3) and Figure 6.2. Drastically different results are obtained when year-to-year fluctuations in mortgage interest rates are considered. For example, suppose that a "relocatee" had purchased his home 10 years before the time of relocation. At that time he took a mortgage of \$50,000 with a term of 25 years at an interest rate of 9% per year. His monthly payment would be \$419.60. At the time of relocation the unpaid balance on his mortgage would be \$41,369.62. When the relocatee purchases a new home he is compensated for any additional interest costs incurred by his having to borrow \$41,369.62 at a higher rate of interest for 15 years (the time his first mortgage had to run). Assuming that the interest

6~20

the state of the second st

م در ۲۰ شهر این ۲۰۰ و در از و در در مؤوره م دومان می اماد ۲۰

rate at the time of relocation is 16% per year. The relocatee would have to pay \$607.60 per month in order to liquidate his debt in 15 years. This is \$607.60 - \$419.60 or \$188.00 per month more than he had been paying prior to relocation. The present value of this annuity at "the prevailing interest rate paid on savings deposits by commercial banks in the general area in which the replacement dwelling is located" for a period of 15 years is the compensation paid the relocatee for increased interest cost. In the present case, a bank interest rate of 5.5% per year is assumed. This gives \$23,008.66 as the amount the relocatee would receive.

The increased interest cost of \$23,000 in the above example is considerably higher than the \$1,596 estimate provided previously. This report is predicated on the later estimate on the assumption that the current (1981/1982) mortgage interest rates are the results of abnormal economic conditions and the rapid increase in rates is not likely to be representative of long term conditions and trends. The reader is referred to Appendix F of Reference 6 for derviation of interest costs based on actual mortgage rates and terms.

Income Foregone

i

÷

÷

の目的なになって書からいたいのも

Real Like and the second

Landlords typically suffer a disruption of their business operations and lose their existing tenants in the course of the relocation. However, the replacement properties which they purchase are typically occupied at the time of purchase.' Under the Federal Relocation Act, owners of multiple unit structures receive the difference in gross annual earnings, if any. The owners of such units are also entitled to compensation for moving costs, up to \$1,000, and search costs, up to \$500.

Owners of single unit rental structures who purchase comparable replacement structures are entitled to receive as compensation an amount equal to their average annual net earnings from their original rental property, if not less than \$2500 nor more than \$10,000. This payment is in lieu of moving costs and search costs. For simplicity, it is assumed that all owners of single unit rental property receive an amount equal to their average annual net earnings. It is further assumed that net earnings equal three-quarters of

6-21

gross earnings The average rental income in 1979 for the Miami Rport is \$2,376 per unit per year. The net rental income is 75 percent of this, or \$1,782 per single unit rental property.

The owners of multi-unit rental property receive a flat payment of \$1,500 plus compensation for loss in gross earnings. It is assumed that such owners experience no loss in gross annual earnings and therefore receive \$1,500. This payment is made without regard to the number of rental units in their buildings. To place income foregone costs on a per-rental property basis, the distribution of rental units among single and multi-unit structures must be known. This can be derived from the data in Figure 6.1 as follows. First, single-unit rentals equal single unit structures (3,144) less homeowners (2,183), or 961. Multi-unit rentals are simply total structures (3,582) less single-unit structures (3,144), or 438. From this example, 69 percent of all rental properties are single-unit properties and 31 percent are multiple-unit properties. Thus, the average income foregone per rental property is 0.69 times \$1,782 plus 0.31 times \$1,500, or \$1,694 per rental property.

Relocation Element Cost Summary

States the state with the state of the state

Table 6.4 presents a summary of all relocation cost elements for the Miami Rport. Costs associated with the four relocation cases presented earlier are also presented. Note that the procedures described herein are concerned with gross costs. They do not reflect value which may be received from salvage of purchased properties or from subsequent resale of the land. Benefits of these and similar transactions are discussed in Chapter II, Issue Analyses.

6-22

محصفين ومحجوه سنجو والمحاوي وتواد

والمتقمين الجرائية تشتار لمنتهزة بأرجا الانترية والراجا الرابي التنابية فحاله

TABLE 6-4

RELOCATION COSTS PER CASE (\$1979): (MIA) MIANI, PL BASELINE 1979 OPERATIONS

,

ł

ł

Sand of a planet

COST ELEMENT	RELOCATION CASE+			
	A	 R _ 		D
ADVISORY SERVICE COST	1200.	1200	1200.	1200.
MOVING COST	500.	500.		500.
PURCHASE PRICE			55472.	31658.
SUB-TOTAL1	1700.	1700	5667?.	33358.
REPLACEMENT COST	713.			2374.
INCREASED INTEREST COST			•	1596.
CLOSING COST		•		400.
DOWNPAYMENT		4000.		
INCOME FOREGONE			1694.	
SUB-TOTAL2	713.	4000	1694.	4370.
TOTAL COST PER CASE (S)	2413.	5700.	58366.	37728.
FREQUENCY OF CASE	2383.	454 <u>-</u>	1399.	2183.
***************************************				, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
TOTAL (SMILLIONS)	5.75	2.59	81.65	82.36
GRAND TOTAL (SMILLIONS): *RELOCATION CASES A. RENTERS WHO REMAIN RE B. RENTERS WHO RECOME HO C. RENTAL PROPERTY TO BE	172.35 INTERS DMEOWNERS E PURCHASED			

6-23

د در موسف بعد عند بر الهاد عند مادوند دولسوی رویده بیدگاه و وارد ایند هدهاها هم

REFERENCES

the second s

- DeLoach, R., <u>An Airport Community Noise-Impact Assessment Model</u>, NASA TM-80198, July 1980.
- 2. ORI, Inc., <u>User's Manual for the ALAMO Demographic Report Generator</u> <u>Program</u>, September 1981.
- U.S. DOT, Office of Right-of-Way, Federal Highway Administration, personal correspondence to ORI, January 23, 1981.
- Modig, C. <u>et. el.</u>, <u>Trends in the Literature on: The Effect of</u> <u>Aircraft and Traffic Noise on Residential Property Values</u>, Informatics, Inc., October 1980.
- Nelson, J. P., "Airports and Property Values" A Survey of Recent Evidence", <u>Journal of Transport Economics and Policy</u>, January 1980.
- Felder, J., <u>Procedures to Estimate Airport Residential Relocation</u> <u>Costs</u>, ORI Technical Report No. 1856, April 1981.

L

مىمىمىمى قاقى كىرىكى ، ئەرىپ قەرىكە بەكەركە بەكەركە بەر بەرىمىرىچە، چەرىمەر يەرىپەتەر

APPENDIX A

SPOUNDPROOFING/RELOCATION PROGRAM EXPOSURE SUMMARIES

ķ

•

a support the second second

.

TABLE A-1 AIRPORT-NOISE-EXPOSURE REDUCTION AND COSTS

Miami, FL (MIA)

Year and		S	oundproofing,			Soundproofing,
Airport	Population	Exposed	Relocation	Population E	xposed	Relocation
Scenario	L 65-75 dB Ove	ar L 75 dB dn	Cost _a L	dn 65-80 dB Ove	r ^I dn 80 dB	Costa
1979						
O-R*	216,000	13,100	336,600	227.800	1,300	185.200
1-FP	125,600	22,200	399,400	146.000	1.800	179.900
2-FT	63,800	4,300	192,900	68,100	2,800	93,200
1990						
O-R	166,100	7,200	221,500	171,900	1.400	170.000
1-FP _b	110,000	11,900	247,300	120,200	1.700	140.400
3-RD	142,900	6,100	183,100	147,800	1,200	138.800
4-RD+FP	96,000	11,400	228,400	105,900	1,500	122,500
5-RD+FT	42,200	5,300	94,900	44,500	3,000	74,600
2000						
0-R	95,900	2.500	109.800	96.700	1.700	104.500
3-RD	69,100	1,700	73,500	69,600	1,200	70.300
5-RD+FT	20,400	1,500	33,700	20,800	1,100	29,200

•

المراجب والمراجب والمروح ومستروبهم والمعوور والمعود ومراجع والمراجع

R –	Reference data base	a - Cost in Constant
FP -	Flight procedure, FAA AC 91-53,	1979 Dollars/1000.
	maximum thrust reduction	b - Interpolated,
RD -	Residential development restricted to	1979 - 2000
	prevent encroachment after 1979 (land use)	
FT -	Selected flight tracks and	
	priority runway use	
	R - FP - RĎ - FT -	 R - Reference data base FP - Flight procedure, FAA AC 91-53, maximum thrust reduction RD - Residential development restricted to prevent encroachment after 1979 (land use) FT - Selected flight tracks and priority runway use

TABLE A-1 - CONTINUED. AIRPORT-NOISE-EXPOSURE REDUCTION AND COSTS

LaGuardia, NY (LGA)

Year Airp Scen	and ort ario	Popula L 65-75 d	tion Exposed B Over L 75 dB dn	Soundproofing Relocation Cost L	Population 65-80 dB O	Exposed ver L 80 dB dn	Soundproofing, Relocation Cost _a
<u>1979</u>	•		00 (00	4 284 222	1 403 300	474 600	000 100
	0~R*	1,337,300	83,600	1,374,000	1,403,300	171,600	839,100
	1-FP	736,600	112,500	1,377,600	822,000	27,100	610,800
	2-гт	961,000	40,200	794,100	990,800	10,400	565,900
1990							
	0-R	811.10	0 46.800	804,700	851.500	6.400	483.700
	1-FP.	440.40	0 61,600	757.600	487.700	14.300	355.800
	2-FT ^D	563,40	0 21,900	454,300	581,700	3,600	314,900
2000							
	0-R	171,10	0 15,300	195,600	183,700	2,700	124,000
	2 - FT	123,80	0 7,000	109,200	129,200	1,600	84,400

* R - Reference data base a - Cost in constant FP - Flight procedure, FAA AC 91-53, maximum thrust reduction 1979 dollars/1000. b - Interpolated, RD - Residential development restricted to prevent encroachment after 1979 (land use)
FT - Selected flight tracks and priority runway use 1979 - 2000

A-3

	San Anto	nio, TX (SAT)	Sioux Falls, S	sid (FS <u>D</u>)	
Year and Airport Scenario	Population L 65-75 dB Ov	Exposed er L 75 dB dn	Soundproofin Relocation Cost	g, Population Ex L _{dn} 65-75 dB Ove	posed er L _{dn} 75 d	Soundproofing, Relocation B Cost ^A a
<u>1979</u> O-R* 1-FP 2-FT	64,240 42,000 24,650	1,590 3,860 10	52,500 95,800 15,900	2,640 3,730 90	900 890 890	7,880 7,670 5,590
1990 O-R 1-FP 3-RD 4-RD+FP 5-RD+FT	40,350 41,820 28,980 31,000 11,120	1,640 1,850 1,360 1,840 10	63,600 68,900 47,900 56,500 9,900	3,030 3,530 2,640 3,140 90	1,070 1,090 890 890 800	7,890 7,890 6,640 6,670 5,050
2000 .O-R 3-RD 5-RD+FT	41,650 21,000 8,070	30 10 0	44,400 20,700 7,900	3,360 2,590 90	1,280 890 800	8,350 5,940 5,020

الما المالية الجارثة المحد فتسادهم هوشاءه

TABLE A-1 - CONTINUED. AIRPORT-NOISE-EXPOSURE REDUCTION AND COSTS

R - Reference data basea - Cost in constantFP - Flight procedure, FAA AC 91-53,
maximum thrust reduction1979 dollars/1000.RD - Residential development restricted to
prevent encroachment after 1979 (land use)1979 - 2000FT - Selected flight tracks and
priority runway use1979 - 2000

4